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Order of Business

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE NO
10 ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 3
10.2 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION 57/2017 - CONSTRUCTION OF FORD
AND [ISUZU SHOWROOM, VEHICLE DISPLAY AND SIGNAGE,
MAITLAND STREET, MUSWELLBROOK 3
10.3 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION NO. 70/2017 18 ROOM BOARDING
HOUSE, 14 HAYDON STREET, MUSWELLBROOK 48
10.4 REQUEST TO WAIVE SECTION 68 APPLICATION FEE - COMPASS
HOUSING COMMUNITY CHRISTMAS PARTY 90
12 CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 92
12.5 2016/17 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 92
18 ADJOURNMENT INTO CLOSED COUNCIL 229

19.4

19.5

PROVISION AND MANAGEMENT OF COMPANION ANIMAL IMPOUNDING
FACILITY (ANIMAL SHELTER)

Iltem 19.4 is classified CONFIDENTIAL under the provisions of Section10A(2)(c) of the
local government act 1993, as it deals with information that would, if disclosed, confer
a commercial advantage on a person with whom the council is conducting (or
proposes to conduct) business, and Council considers that discussion of the matter in
an open meeting would be, on balance, contrary to the public interest.

REVIEW AND SELECT A LOAN FUNDING OPTION FOR THE SEWER

Iltem 19.5 is classified CONFIDENTIAL under the provisions of Section10A(2)(c) of the
local government act 1993, as it deals with information that would, if disclosed, confer
a commercial advantage on a person with whom the council is conducting (or
proposes to conduct) business, and Council considers that discussion of the matter in
an open meeting would be, on balance, contrary to the public interest.
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10 ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

10.2 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION 57/2017 - CONSTRUCTION OF FORD
AND ISUZU SHOWROOM, VEHICLE DISPLAY AND SIGNAGE,
MAITLAND STREET, MUSWELLBROOK

Responsible Officer: Fiona Plesman - Director - Planning, Community & Corporate
Services

Author: Donna Watson - Development Planner

Community Plan Issue: Support Job Growth

Community Plan Goal: Facilitate the expansion of and establishment of new industries and
business.

Community Plan Strategy: Provide advice in relation to strategic land use planning and
development control and assessment to support the work of the
Economic Development and Innovation function.

Attachments: A. Draft conditions
B. Roads and Maritime Services response
C. Plans

Documents reference to in the assessment but not attached:
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979

Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations 2000

Water Management Act 2000

Building Code of Australia

Local Environmental Plan 2009

Development Control Plan 2009

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007

State Environmental Planning Policy No.55 — Remediation of Land

State Environmental Planning Policy No.64 — Advertising and Signage
Contaminated Land Policy

Interim Construction Noise Guidelines

Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997

Protection of the Environment Operations (Noise Control) Regulation 2008
Australian Standard 1428: 2009— Design for Access & Mobility

Australian Standard 2890.1: 2004 — Parking Facilities — Off Street Car Parking
NSW Environment Protection Authority Noise Policy

APPLICATION DETAILS

Applicant: Nielsen Project Management

Owner: A & A Kibble Pty Limited

Proposal: Construction of a Ford and Isuzu showroom, vehicle display and
signage

Location: Lot 2 DP 258257, Lot B DP 409046 and Lot 4 DP 25935
113 - 121 Maitland Street, Muswellbrook

Recommendation: Approval
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RECOMMENDATION

Development Application No. 57/2017 proposing the construction of a Ford and Isuzu Showroom,
vehicle display area and sighage at Lot 2 DP 258257, Lot B DP 409046, Lot 4 DP 25935, 113 - 121
Maitland Street, Muswellbrook be approved subject the conditions in Appendix A to the report.

Moved:

Seconded:

Cr J. Ledlin

Cr J. Foy

Cr S. Reynolds

Cr J.F. Eades

Cr S. Bailey
Cr M. Green
Cr B.N. Woodruff

Cr M. Bowditch

Aerial Photograph Identifying Development Site

Cr G. McNeill

Cr R. Scholes

Cr S. Ward

Cr M.L. Rush
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PURPOSE OF REPORT TO COUNCIL

The application is being reported to Council on the request of the Director — Planning, Corporate and
Community Services

REPORT
1.0 BACKGROUND
The table below is a listing of the applications lodged on the subject land.

Description Year No Description
Building Application 1978 176 | Laundry
Building Application 1981 164 | 2 Pole Signs
Building Application 1984 337 | Sign
Building Application 1985 143 | Additions
Building Application 1985 222 | Additions
Building Application 1992 138 | Signs
Building Application 1992 200 | Showroom
Development Applications 1995 [ 10156 | Sighage
Development Applications 1995 18 | Erection Of Ausco Office Module With Verandah
Development Applications 1998 [ 10026 | Hino Pole Sign
Development Applications 2004 266 | A-Frame Sign
Development Applications 2004 222 | Sighage
Development Applications 2005 18 | Shed (withdrawn)
Development Applications 2007 25 | Storage Shed
Remove Existing Signage and Replace With
Development Applications 2008 10 | New Signage
Complying Development App | 2017 2 | Installation of Photovoltaic Solar Panels to Roof
Interim Development Order 5 (869) | Storage and Display of Motor Vehicles
Interim Development Order 671 | Extension to Workshop - Muswellbrook Toyota
Interim Development Order 475 | Alterations and Additions to Service station

Interim Development Order (IDO) 869 (former lots 1, 2 and 3 DP 258257)

A review of this file found that lot 1 DP 258257 appeared to have “existing use rights” under the
Local Government Act 1919 for the purpose of garage, service station, car repair station, motor
vehicle sales, motor showrooms and a small shop. This was confirmed in Council’s
correspondence to the owner of the site in June 1975.

Council requested that a formal application be lodged seeking the extension the above mentioned
“existing use” on Lot 1 to include Lots 2 and 3, as the three lots were under the same ownership.
Upon review of the application, it was found Lots 2 and 3 DP 258257 were zoned residential under
the Planning scheme at the time. Therefore, the application also included a request to rezone the
land to business.

Page 5



ORDINARY MEETING SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA

14 NOVEMBER 2017

2.0

3.0

("rc’ 2 NE
4 Py
%8 132° 04 5
P " - o
| 1330:1@ 76 3% 23773 W@
w
e | X s
ond ] ]
e B2 |
-y ic »
= o g1&Im® |2 3
=, Wl < o~
o |° :' ™
x| 20413
|2 u s
o 2 215 226am * 46
“r |asls S ox B
3 o O (;\) e (5
“ 0 B & 3 B 4
Q% 5 ™ 226300 £ 7798
& ¢ g
o 2% n B (€
ol o & 18-7¢ %
S =N bs
= | o~ :a‘
& £5 X l
—
| < 5 3 05—

At the November 1980 Council meeting, it was resolved to support the application subject to a
concurrence application being supported by the Department of Planning for the rezoning. Council
received confirmation from the Department of Planning that this matter could be addressed under
the existing use provision of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

However, in the consideration of IDO 869, the land was required to be consolidated into one title.
A review of Council’s mapping, has found the land is still in a number of parcels which confirms
that the land has never been consolidated into one title.

Since the consideration of the Interim Development Order 869, a number of applications have
been received for the subject land. These are listed in the table above.

Existing use of the site

A search of Council’s registers has found a number of applications relating to site. Refer to the
table below in the Background section of the report. From a review of the applications, in particular
Interim Development Order 869, the “existing use” only relates to Lots 1, 2 and 3 DP 258257.
However, lots 1, 2 and 3 DP 258257 are now currently zoned B2 Local Centre under the
Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan 2009 (MLEP 2009). The current landuse activities being
undertaken on these lots are permissible with development consent. Thus, IDO 869 is not
applicable in this case.

Further to the above, the application before Council is seeking permission to include Lot B DP
409046 and Lot 4 DP 25935 in the overall commercial operation of the site. These lots are
currently zoned R1 General Residential under the MLEP 2009 and the proposed landuse of vehicle
sales premises is not permissible within this zone.

SITE AND LOCALITY DESCRIPTION

The property fronts Maitland Street (New England Highway) to the north east and Rutherford Road
to the north west of the site. To the south of the site is one residential dwelling, which is used in
conjunction with the adjoining business, this being Darryl’s Bobcats. The existing dwellings directly
adjoining the site will be demolished should the application be approved.

To the north west of the site is the Muswellbrook Showground and to the west are residential
dwellings.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL

The applicant is seeking consent for:
e the demolition of two dwellings
e construction of a Ford and Isuzu showroom
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4.0

5.0

5.1

51

¢ vehicle display area
¢ replacement of two pylon signs and
e associated works.

The proposed showroom building will have a gross floor area of 257m? and contain a reception
desk, four offices, customer lounge area, meeting room, a unisex toilet and floor area for displaying
of vehicles.

ADEQUACY OF APPLICANT’S SUBMISSION

In relation to the Statement of Environmental Effects, the plans and other documentation submitted
with the Application, the applicant has provided adequate information to enable an assessment of
the Application.

The applicant has included the following ancillary reports with the supporting documentation:
- Statement of Environmental Effects

- Traffic Assessment report

- Site Waste Minimisation and Management Plan

- Stormwater Management Strategy

- Landscape Plan

REFERRALS

Internal Referrals

The application was referred to Council’s Building Section, Environmental Health Officer, Water
and Waste and Community Infrastructure. Each section reviewed the proposal and recommended

standard conditions to be placed on the development consent should the application be approved.

External Referrals

5.1.1 Roads and Maritime Services

The application was referred to the RMS for consideration and comment. Upon initial
consideration of the application, the RMS requested additional information from the applicant in
the way of turning circles for the delivery vehicles. This information was provided to the RMS and
a response was received on 19 September 2017.

The RMS advised they raised no objection to the proposed development subject to the
consideration of the following matters which are recommended to be included in the development
consent, if approved:

e All heavy vehicles access to the site to be via Acacia Drive from Rutherford Road.

e Ensure that appropriate traffic measures are in place during the construction phase of the
development to minimise the impacts of construction vehicles on traffic efficiency and
road safety within the vicinity.

e Consideration of appropriate sight line distances in accordance with Australian Standard
2890.

o Discharged stormwater from the development shall not exceed the capacity of the
Maitland Street stormwater drainage system. Council shall ensure that drainage from the
site is catered for appropriately and should advice RMS of any adjustments to the system
that are required prior to the final approval of the development.

A copy of the Roads and Maritime Services response is attached as Appendix B.
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5.1.2 NSW Police

6.0

The application was referred to the NSW Police for consideration and comment. The Police
verbally advised they had no interest in this application and a response would not be sent.

ASSESSMENT

This report provides an assessment of the material presented in the Application against the
relevant State and local planning legislation and policy.

Section 79C Matters for Consideration

Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan 2009 (MLEP 2009)

Land Use Zone and Permitted Land Use

The development site is zoned R1 General Residential and B2 Local Centre pursuant to MLEP
2009.

Obijectives of the R1 General Residential Zone

» To provide for the housing needs of the community.

» To provide for a variety of housing types and densities.

+ To enable other land uses that provide facilities or services to meet the day to day needs of
residents.

* To enable sensitive infill development of other housing types.

» To allow people to carry out a reasonable range of activities from their homes, where such
activities do not adversely affect the living environment of neighbours.

» To promote the principles of ecological sustainable development including energy and water
efficient subdivision and housing design.

* To minimise the impact of non-residential uses and ensure these are in character and
compatible with surrounding development.

» To ensure that development is carried out in a way that is compatible with the flood risk of the
area.

The proposed development is not permissible within the R1 General Residential Zone.

Obijectives of the B2 Local Centre Zone

» To provide a range of retail, business, entertainment and community uses that serve the needs
of people who live in, work in and visit the local area.

* To encourage employment opportunities in accessible locations.

+ To maximise public transport patronage and encourage walking and cycling.

+ To maintain the status and encourage the future growth of the Muswellbrook established
business centre as a retail, service, commercial and administrative centre while maintaining the
centre’s compact form.

+ To enable a wide range of land uses that are associated with, ancillary to, or supportive of the
retail and service functions of a business centre.

* To maintain the heritage character and value and streetscape of the business centre of
Muswellbrook.

» To support business development by way of the provisions of parking and other civic facilities.

However, the proposed use is permissible under the B2 Local Centre Zone with the development
consent.
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Relevant Clauses applicable under the Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan 2009

Part 2 Permitted or prohibited development

2.1 Land use zones Noted
2.2 Zoning of land to which Plan applies See above
2.3 Zone objectives and Land Use Table See above

Part 4 Principal development standards

4.1 Minimum subdivision lot size

MLEP 2009 specifies a minimum lot size of

600m? in relation to the land. The proposal
does not seek to subdivide the land, and
therefore complies with this development
standard.

4.3 Height of buildings

MLEP 2009 specifies a maximum building
height of 13m (in B2 zone) and 8.5m (in R1
zone) in relation to the land. The proposal
does not involve building works over 5m
and therefore complies.

4.4 Floor space ratio

MLEP 2009 specifies a floor space ratio of
2:1 (in B2 zone) and 0.5:1 (in R1 zone) in
relation to the land. The proposal does not
involve building works that would exceed
these ratios.

5.3 Development near zone boundaries

See discussion below

Provision of Clause 5.3 of the MLEP 2009

Under the Standard LEP, certain clauses are mandatory for Council’'s to include in their

comprehensive Local Environmental Plans.

In this instance, Clause 5.3 is a mandatory clause.

This clause allows development which would normally be prohibited on the site to be permitted by
taking on the adjoining property’s zoning provisions up to a distance of 30m.

In this regard, for Lot B DP 409046 and Lot 4 DP 25935 (currently zone R1 General Residential) to
be considered in the commercial operation of the site, the applicant has lodged the subject
application pursuant to clause 5.3 of the Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan 2009.

This Clause relates to “development near zone boundaries” and states:

(1) The objective of this clause is to provide flexibility where the investigation of a site and its

)

®3)

(4)

surroundings reveals that a use allowed on the other side of a zone boundary would enable a
more logical and appropriate development of the site and be compatible with the planning
objectives and land uses for the adjoining zone.

This clause applies to so much of any land that is within the relevant distance of a boundary
between any 2 zones. The relevant distance is 30 metres.

This clause does not apply to:

(@) land in Zone RE1 Public Recreation, Zone E1 National Parks and Nature Reserves,
Zone E2 Environmental Conservation, Zone E3 Environmental Management or Zone
W1 Natural Waterways, or

(b)  land within the coastal zone, or

(c) land proposed to be developed for the purpose of sex services or restricted premises.

Despite the provisions of this Plan relating to the purposes for which development may be
carried out, development consent may be granted to development of land to which this
clause applies for any purpose that may be carried out in the adjoining zone, but only if the
consent authority is satisfied that:
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@
(b)

and

the development is not inconsistent with the objectives for development in both zones,

the carrying out of the development is desirable due to compatible land use planning,

infrastructure capacity and other planning principles relating to the efficient and timely

development of land.

©®)

This clause does not prescribe a development standard that may be varied under this Plan.

In this case, point 3 does not apply as the land is currently zoned R1 General Residential, is not
within a coastal zone and the applicant is not proposing a sex service or restricted premises.
However all the other sections of this clause are applicable to the development.

The table below provides discussion to each section of Clause 5.3.

Clause

Discussion

(1) The objective of this clause is to provide
flexibility where the investigation of a site and
its surroundings reveals that a use allowed
on the other side of a zone boundary would
enable a more logical and appropriate
development of the site and be compatible
with the planning objectives and land uses
for the adjoining zone.

The subject site is zoned R1 General Residential,
however, the adjoining land to the south fronting
New England Highway, has a number of
commercial uses. These uses include Darryl's
bobcat, Service Station, KFC and the motel.

The proposed development does not contradict the
adjoining zone objectives and allows for a non-
residential use that is in character and compatible
with the surrounding development. The
development is not a high impact commercial use
and can be appropriately managed to minimise
impact in the locality.

The proposed development will allow for a more
logical and appropriate development of the site
when considered in the context of Maitland Street
and its existing commercial uses. This section of
Maitland Street has a number of commercial uses
as listed above, some of which went through the
re-zoning process prior to the current MLEP.

The proposed structure will be located within 30m
of the adjoining B2 Zone. Should the application
be approved, a condition will be imposed requiring
the applicant to obtain an identification survey of
the new building to confirm the structure is within
the 30m. This survey will be required to the
pouring of the footings.

(2) This clause applies to so much of any land
that is within the relevant distance of a
boundary between any 2 zones. The relevant
distance is 30 metres.

(3) This clause does not apply to:

(@) land in Zone RE1l Public Recreation,
Zone E1 National Parks and Nature
Reserves, Zone E2 Environmental
Conservation, Zone E3 Environmental
Management or Zone W1 Natural
Waterways, or

(b)  land within the coastal zone, or

(c) land proposed to be developed for the

purpose of sex services or restricted
premises.

The application relates to land that is zoned both
B2 Local Centre and R1 General Residential.
Therefore, this section is not applicable.

Not applicable
Not applicable
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Clause

Discussion

(4) Despite the provisions of this Plan relating to
the purposes for which development may be
carried out, development consent may be
granted to development of land to which this
clause applies for any purpose that may be
carried out in the adjoining zone, but only if

the consent authority is satisfied that:

(@) the development is not inconsistent
with the objectives for development in

both zones, and

(b) the carrying out of the development is
desirable due to compatible land use
planning, infrastructure capacity and
other planning principles relating to the
efficient and timely development of

land.

The application is for the demolition of existing
dwellings and the construction of a new vehicle
showroom on land that is currently zoned R1
General Residential under the MLEP 2009. This
use is not permitted under the current land zoning.
However, by utilising this Clause of the MLEP, the
proposed development would in principle be
permissible subject to the consideration of the
following subclauses.

The proposed development is consistent with the
B2 Local Centre zone objectives. The proposed
land use is permissible with the consent of Council.

The R1 General Residential zone objectives are
predominately focused on achieving compatible
residential development and uses, however, it
does allow non-residential uses that are able to not
adversely impact the surrounding development.

The proposed extension of the vehicle showroom
is consistent with the locality and its adjoining land
uses and will not impact them adversely affect
them by way of noise generation, light, traffic and
odour

When reviewing the land use table for permitted
uses in the B2 Local Centre Zone, the vehicle
showroom would be the use which would impact
the adjoining properties the least. This can be
attributed to the building only being single storey in
height, front setback being further than the
previous dwellings and operating hours to
conclude by 5.30pm.

As stated above, the vehicle showroom would
have minimal amount of impact to the adjoining
properties.

The subject site currently has two existing
dwellings with access off the New England
Highway. The proposed vehicle showroom would
not require any additional works to be undertaken
to infrastructure to facilitate the development. The
infrastructure available to the site has the capacity
to facilitate the development and does not require
any further works or upgrading.

The allotments already exist and are being
redeveloped to allow for the expansion of the
existing business.

(5) This clause does not prescribe a
development standard that may be varied

under this Plan.

Noted.
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In this regard, the aerial below indicatively demonstrates where the 30m line would be in relation to the
lot boundaries.
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2. State Environmental Planning Policy No. 55 — Remediation of Land

A review of Council’'s Contaminated Land Information System has found that some of the lots
associated with the development are identified as being potentially contaminated due to previous
landuses. The lot which will primarily contain the new showroom building is not listed as being
contaminated land.

Further, the intended “commercial” use of the subject land does not warrant any remediation to be
undertaken on the site. Should the application be approved, a condition will be imposed on the
development requiring compliance with SEPP 55.

3. State Environmental Planning Policy No.64 — Advertising and Signage

The development proposal is for an advertising sign and therefore SEPP 64 needs to be
considered in the assessment of the application.

Clause | Comment
Part 1 — Preliminary
4 Definitions The applicant is proposing a range of signs

for the development. The signage can be
defined as “Business Identification Signage”
and “Pylon Signage”.
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Clause | Comment

Part 3 — Advertisements

Division 1 — General

9 Advertisement to which this Part applies The proposed business identification
signage is not required to be assessed
under the SEPP. However as the applicant
is proposing two pylon signs, each having a

height of 7m.

Division 2 — Control of advertisements

13 Matters for consideration The proposed signage has been assessed
under Schedule 1 of the SEPP, see table
below.

14 Duration of consents The pylon signs, if approved, will only be

approved for 15 years. At the expiration of
this time, the signs are to be removed or a
further development application is to be
lodged.

Part 4 — Miscellaneous
31 Consultation with RMS The application was referred to RMS for
their consideration and comment. They
raised no objection to the proposed
signage.

It is considered that the proposed Construction of Ford and Isuzu Showroom, Vehicle Display and
Sighage is consistent with SEPP 64, specifically Schedule 1, refer to the table below.

SEPP 64: Schedule 1 Assessment Criteria

Assessment Iltem Planning Comment

1. Character of the area The proposed business identification signs
are consistent with the signage on the
adjoining Toyota building.

However, the applicant is proposing two 7m
high freestanding pylon signs. These signs
will be located approximately 25m apart and
advertise the two new brands for the site.
The applicant has indicated that these signs
are to replace the existing “Hino” and “Ford”
signs currently on the site.

2. Special areas The subject site is not identified as a special
area. Therefore, this matter is not applicable
to the subject development.

3. Views and vistas The proposed signage will not obscure or
compromise views, will not dominate the
skyline and will not limit the viewing rights of
other advertisers.

The height of the replacement pylon signs is
consistent with the height requirement
under Section 14 of the Muswellbrook
Development Control Plan 2009.

4. Streetscape, setting or landscape The proposed signage will not impact on the
streetscape as there is already similar
signage for the other commercial
developments.

5. Site and building The proposed signage is considered to be
compatible with the scale and proportion of
the building on which it is located.
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SEPP 64: Schedule 1 Assessment Criteria

Assessment Iltem Planning Comment

6. Associated devices and logos with The development is proposing a number of
advertisements and advertising structures business identification signs on the new

building. These are consistent with the

vehicle branding.

7. Hlumination The supporting documentation provided

with the application states the two pylon

signs are proposed to be illuminated. In this

regard, it is recommended a condition be

imposed restricting the hours of illumination

to be from 5pm through to 11pm. This will

reduce potential lighting impacts to nearby

residential properties.

8. Safety The proposed signage is not considered a

risk to public safety.

4. Muswellbrook Development Control Plan (DCP) 2009

Section 3 — Site Analysis

It is considered that the documentation provided with the Development Application satisfies the
provisions of Section 3 of the Muswellbrook DCP.

Section 4 — Notification

In accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of the Muswellbrook DCP 2009, the Application was
notified for a period of not less than fourteen days from 19 June 2017 to 12 July 2017. A notice
was also placed in the local newspaper, the Hunter Valley News, at the commencement of the
notification period.

No submissions were received during the notification period.

Section 6 — Residential Development

The site in which the proposed showroom is to be constructed on land currently zoned R1 General
residential under the MLEP 2009. Therefore, technically, this section of the DCP applies.

However, as the applicant is requesting that Lot B DP 409046 and Lot 4 DP 25935 utilise the
provisions of Clause 5.3 of the MLEP 2009. Hence, it could be argued that this section of the DCP
would no longer apply as these lots (up to 30m) would take on the B2 Local Centre provisions.

In this regard, no further assessment under Section 6 has been undertaken.

Section 9 — Local Centre Development

9. LOCAL CENTRE DEVELOPMENT
9.1 Built Form

Building Design The building design is consistent with other
car dealership showrooms. The building is
expected to house two car brands, with
sliding doors to allow customers to easily
view the vehicles.

The external material is FC cladding which
will be painted white. In addition, part of the
front facade will have silver cladding
towards the top of the building. This will
provide a contrast to the whiteness on the
building.
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Building Height The submitted plans indicate that the
building will have a height of no more than
5m. This is consistent with the streetscape
as this area is predominately contains single
storey structures.

Setbacks The proposed front setback is
approximately 19m from Maitland Street
which is further than the existing dwellings.

9.2 Urban Landscape
Landscaping The applicant has submitted a landscape
plan which indicates low maintenance
vegetation which will be no higher than 1m.
As the application is for a vehicle
showroom, the proposed type of
landscaping is suitable.

Car Parking Refer to assessment under Section 16 of
the DCP.

Outdoor Eating Areas Not applicable

Sighage and Advertising Refer to assessment under SEPP 64 earlier

in the report.

Section 14 — Outdoor Signage

The application has been considered under the State Environmental Planning Policy No. 64. Refer
to earlier discussion. The signage proposed for the development complies with the SEPP and also
this section of the Development Control Plan.

Should the application be approved, a condition will be imposed on the development restricting the
height of the replacement pylon signs to be a maximum of 7m.

Section 16 — Car Parking and Access

Comment

16.2 Residential Development The site in which the proposed building will
be located in zoned R1 General Residential.
However, as the applicant is seeking
consent under Clause 5.3 of the MLEP
2009, it could be argued the development is
not residential.

16.3 Non — Residential Development The applicant is proposing an extension to
the existing car dealership on the corner of
Rutherford Road and Maitland Street.

16.4 Design Guidelines for off-street vehicular parking areas

16.4.1 Access to the site Access to the site can occur two ways.
Firstly, the access off Maitland Street is
preferred for customers and when vehicles
are being taken for test drives.

Secondly, the access off Acacia Drive will
be for staff and delivery vehicles.

The applicant has provided turning
templates for vehicles accessing the site.
The largest vehicle to access the site will be
12.5m in length. Should the application be
approved, a condition restricting vehicle size
will be imposed.

The documents provided with the applicant
indicate there will be some need to widen
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Comment

these two existing driveways. In this regard
a Section 138 permit, under the Roads Act,
will be required prior to these works being
undertaken.

16.4.2 Car Park Design The applicant is proposing to redesign the
carparking area to the north of the proposed
building. This area will incorporate drop off
bays and customer parking.

Further to this, the development is
proposing 24 spaces for the display of
vehicles. The layout of the vehicle display
area is consistent with other car
dealerships.

Should the development be approved, a
condition will be imposed on the applicant
requiring the site comply with AS 2890.
16.4.3 Parking for people with disabilities The plans submitted do not appear to
include any spaces for disabled parking. A
condition will be imposed requiring disabled
carparking to be provided in accordance
with AS 2890.

16.4.4 Loading/Unloading Facilities The Traffic Assessment submitted with the
application states that no car delivery
vehicles will access the site. It was stated
that these transport vehicles would travel to
the dealership in Scone and then transport
the vehicles back to Muswellbrook on a
smaller vehicle.

The plans provided do not show a dedicated
loading / unloading bay, more so, there is
room behind the existing servicing
workshop building for delivery vehicles to
park.

The RMS have recommended that all heavy
vehicle access to the site be off Acacia

Drive.
16.4.5 Internal roads Not Applicable.
16.4.6 Construction Materials The carparking areas for the development,

as a whole will be required to be sealed
prior to the issuing of any occupation
certificate. This will reduce the possibly of
materials leaving the site.

16.4.7 Landscaping The applicant has submitted a landscape
plan which indicates low maintenance
vegetation which will be no higher than 1m.

As the application is for a vehicle
showroom, the proposed type of
landscaping is suitable.

16.5 Qualifications and exceptions to parking standards

16.5.1 Calculation of numbers | Refer to table below
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The development comprises of a range of different definitions relating to the different uses within
the building. This can be seen in the table below:

Land Use Requirement Area Parking classification
Dealership — Ford 45m? Vehicle showroom
Dealership — Isuzu 50m* Vehicle showroom

Offices (4 rooms) 30m* Business premises
Meeting room 16.5m* Business premises
Unisex toilet 6m° Not included in calculation
Area used for display of vehicles | 585m? Vehicle showroom

The above definitions are consistent with the recent development on Rutherford Road, being DA
95/2016. From the above, the following additional carparking is required for the development:

Landuse requirement | Criteria Required
Vehicle showroom 0.75 spaces per 100m? of site | 6.8 spaces
area
Business premises 1 space per 35m? of gross floor | 1.3 spaces
area
Total Carparking Required 8.1 spaces (rounded up to 9 spaces)

The applicant has indicated on the submitted plans that there will be 44 carparking spaces
provided for the whole development site. Of the 44 carparking spaces, the applicant has
calculated that 16 of these spaces are related to the new showroom development. From the
assessment above, the new vehicle showroom component only requires 9 additional carparking
spaces. Should the application be approved, a condition will be imposed on the consent requiring
an overall total of 44 spaces.

Section 20 — Erosion and Sediment Control

The applicant has provided a sediment and erosion control plan for the development. This plan
meets the requirements of Section 20 of the DCP. Should the application be approved, a condition
regarding sediment and erosion control will be imposed.

Section 21 — Contaminated land

This has been addressed earlier in the report under the SEPP 55 section.

Section 24 — Waste Management

The proposed development includes the demolition of the existing dwellings located on the eastern
side of the existing development. The applicant has submitted a waste management plan when
the application was lodged. This plan provides an estimate of the amount of demolition waste
generated and where it will be disposed of.

The plan also indicates how much construction waste will be generated and where it will be
disposed of. Should the application be approved, a condition requiring receipts for disposal will be
required.

Section 25 — Stormwater Management

The applicant has provided a concept stormwater plan for the site. Council’s Community
Infrastructure section has reviewed the plans and raised no objections. A condition will be included
requiring the applicant to lodge a Section 68 application with Council for the connection of
stormwater to Council’s system.
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Section 94A Contributions Plan 2009

A developer contribution of $4,454.59 will apply to the proposed development should the
application be approved. This amount will be required to be paid to Council prior to the issuing of
the Construction Certificate.

5. Likely Impacts of that Development
Context and setting

The site in which the proposed new showroom is to be located fronts Maitland Street (ie New
England Highway). This means the site has excellent frontage for a business. However, the land
in which the showroom is to be constructed is zoned residential and currently contains two
dwellings and associated structures.

This side of Maitland Street already contains a number of commercial businesses in a ribbon
development nature. The businesses include Darryl's Bobcats, Service Station, KFC and a Motel.
The granting of consent to this development would not impact greatly on the context or setting of
the locality.

Built form

The proposed showroom building will be setback back approximately 19m from Maitland Street.
The building will be single storey to be in keeping with the character of the street. The estimated
height of the building is no more than 5m and the applicant is proposing some small scale
landscaping at the front of the site to help soften the development.

The bulk and scale of the development is consistent with other car dealership buildings.

Access to the site for delivery vehicles

As the site originally operated under “existing use” and no formal development application can be
located, it can be acknowledged there were no requirements / restrictions on delivery vehicles.
From an inspection of the site, it was found there is insufficient space for car delivery trucks to
access the site.

The car delivery trucks have been witnessed unloading on Rutherford Road which has the
potential to cause conflict with users of Rutherford Road.

With the expansion of the operations on site, the applicant is proposing have the car transport
vehicle unload the new vehicles at the Scone dealership and then transport the new vehicles to the
Muswellbrook site on a smaller truck. The applicant has indicated the maximum size vehicle to
access the site will be 12.5m in length. These vehicles will enter and leave the off via Acacia Drive
in accordance with the recommendation of the Roads and Maritime Services.

Potential impact on adjoining properties

The showroom is proposed to be constructed on land currently zoned residential. The showroom
will possibly increase the amount of traffic accessing the site. The dwelling at 125 Maitland Street
is associated with the Darryl’s bobcat’s business. In this instance, the potential impact on this
dwelling is considered minor.

The rear of the site adjoins two residential properties. The showroom is proposed to be
constructed approximately 10m from this adjoining boundary. The majority of impact will be from
the Maitland Street frontage. Should the application be approved, a condition will be imposed on
the applicant to install a 2.5m high acoustic fence along the property boundaries which adjoin
residential dwellings.

Noise and vibration

The development, if approved, will generate noise during the demolition and construction of the
buildings. Conditions will be imposed on the consent regarding the hours of demolition and
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construction. In addition to this, conditions will also be imposed on the hours of operation for the
site, as well as delivery vehicle times. By imposing these restrictions on the development, the
impact on the adjoining properties will be minimised.

Further, a condition will also be imposed on the development to comply with the requirements of
the Industrial Noise Policy. Should it be found that the development is consistently not complying
with this policy, adjoining properties may be entitled to mitigation measures.

In addition to the above, this development may not increase the noise impact to adjoining
residential properties. However the overall operation of this site does generate noise as a result of
the servicing of vehicles. In this regard, should the application be approved, a condition will be
imposed on the applicant to install a 2.5m high acoustic fence along the property boundaries which
adjoin residential dwellings.

Safety, security and crime prevention

The applicant has not provided a Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) report
as the nature of the business does not warrant this detailed assessment. The application was
referred to the NSW Police for consideration and comment. The Police advised, they have no
interest in this application as it is deemed to be a low risk.

The applicant will ensure the site is secure as they will not want the vehicles being damaged. This
will be addressed by the operators of the site in their day to day operation of the site.

Social and economic impact on the locality

The proposal, if approved, will be constructed on residentially zoned land and used for a
commercial purpose under Clause 5.3 of the MLEP 2009. The development will allow the car
dealership to expand and met their obligations in relation to the new brands.

Construction

The application is to be constructed in accordance with the Building Code of Australia, applicable
Australian Standards and any other relevant legislation. Should the application be approved,
conditions will be imposed in relation to the construction hours, noise and removal of waste.

It is considered that the development is compatible with surrounding land uses and site
characteristics, subject to consent conditions.

5 CONCLUSION

The application has been assessed in accordance with the legislation listed at the beginning of the
report. The application has also been placed on public exhibition for a minimum of fourteen days.
No submissions were received during the notification period. It is considered that the proposal is
not contrary to the public interest.

It is recommended the application be approved subject to conditions of consent.

Disclosure of Political Donations and Gifts

No disclosures of a political donations or gifts have been made in relation to this application.
SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The development as presented will not result in any specific social implications for Council.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

This development as presented has no direct financial impact upon Council’s adopted budget or forward
estimates.
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POLICY IMPLICATIONS
The development as presented will not result in any specific policy implications for Council.
STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

Statutory implications relating to assessment of the subject application have been addressed in the body
of the report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

This matter has no specific legal implications for Council.
OPERATIONAL PLAN IMPLICATIONS

This matter has no specific Operational Plan implications for Council.
RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

This matter has no specific risk management implications for Council.

Page 20



Item 10.2 - Attachment A Draft conditions

| IDENTIFICATION OF APPROVED PLANS

1. Development in Accordance with Plans

The development being carried out in accordance with the development
application and the drawings referenced below, and endorsed with Council's
approval stamp, except where amended by the following conditions.

Drawing No. Rev Drawn / Prepared by Drawing Date
Site Plan and tuming circles < SECA Solution August 2017
Elevations - front B Struxi Design Pty Ltd June 2017
| Elevations — end B Struxi Design Pty Ltd June 2017
| Floor and roof Plan B Struxi Design Pty Ltd June 2017
Pylon Sign Details B Struxi Design Pty Ltd June 2017
Landscape Plan B Struxi Design Pty Ltd June 2017
llustrative Views C Struxd Design Pty Ltd June 2017
Sediment and Erosion Control Plan | A RHM June 2017
Sediment and Erosion Control A RHM June 2017
Notes
Statement of Environmental Effects Orbit Planning June 2017
Traffic Impact Statement Seca Solutions September 2017
2. Plans on Site

A copy of all stamped approved plans, specifications and documents (including
the Construction Certificate if required for the work incorporating certification of
conditions of approval) must be kept on site at all times so as to be readily
available for perusal by any officer of Council or the Principal Certifying
Authority

3 Signage - limitation
All signage erected on site must be maintained in good condition at all times,

and is only approved for a period of 15 years in accordance with the State
Environmental Planning Policy No.64 Signage.

mmmmmummm&msmwmwmmm
_ISSUE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

4. Construction Management Program

A Construction Management Program must be prepared, submitted to, and
approved in writing by the Certifying Authority prior to the issue of any
Construction Certificate. The program shall include such matters as:

(a) a Safe Work Method Statement;

(b) the proposed method of access to and egress from the site for
construction vehicles, including access routes through the Council
area and the location and type of temporary vehicular crossing for the
purpose of minimising traffic congestion and noise in the area, with no
access across public parks or reserves being allowed;
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

0]

1)

(k)
M

(m)

(n)

the proposed phases of construction works on the site, and the
expected duration of each construction phase;

the proposed order in which works on the site will be undertaken, and
the method statements on how various stages of construction will be
undertaken;

the proposed manner in which adjoining property owners will be kept
advised of the timeframes for completion of each phase of
development/construction process;

the proposed method of loading and unloading excavation and
construction machinery, excavation and building materials, formwork
and the erection of any part of the structure within the site. Wherever
possible mobile cranes should be located wholly within the site;

the proposed areas within the site to be used for the storage of
excavated materials, construction materials and waste containers
during the construction period;

the proposed method/device to remove loose material from all
vehicles andfor machinery before entering the road reserve, any run-
off from the washing down of vehicles shall be directed to the
sediment control system within the site;

the proposed method of support to any excavation adjacent to
adjoining properties, or the road reserve. The proposed method of
support is to be designed and certified by an appropriately qualified
and practising structural engineer, or equivalent;

proposed protection for Council and adjoining properties. Details are
to include site fencing and the provision of “B" class hoardings and
fans over footpaths and laneways;

proposed protection for Council and adjoining properties;

the location and operation of any on site crane,

the location of any Construction Zone (if required) approved by
Council’s Traffic Committee, including a copy of that approval, and

location, identification, treatment and disposal of all hazardous
materials on site.

All work and excavation, demolition or construction activities shall be undertaken
in accordance with the approved Construction Management Program and any
conditions attached to the approved plan. A copy of the approved Construction
Management Plan, and any conditions imposed on that plan, shall be kept on the
site at all times and made available to any officer of Council upon request.
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Traffic Management Plan

A Traffic Management Plan prepared by an appropriately qualified civil engineer
shall be prepared and submitted to the Certifying Authority for written approval
prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate. The Traffic Management Plan
shall include certification and details addressing the following:-

(a) Details demonstrating compliance with relevant provisions in AS2890.1 -
Off Street Car Parking Facilities, including, but not limited to, aisle widths,
and parking space dimensions;

(b) Details of the proposed circulation routes within the car park;

(c) Details of proposed pedestrian routes, kerb construction methods and
other protective measures such a bollards or the like to ensure safety of
users;

(d) Details of proposed traffic control signage to be installed and references
to relevant RTA Guidelines and Australian Standards; and

(e) Details of speed limit restrictions within the car park.

Notes:

(1 It Is recommended that the Traffic Management Plan be prepared and submitted at an
early stage as the Traffic Committee only meets once a month, and make require further
information prior to approval.

(h) The Traffic Management Plan is used o ensure approprate safety and traffic
management is pravided within the development which can be enforced through relevant
legislation. It is in the interests of the applicant that it is completed,

ASSESSMENT ACT AND REGULATIONS AND OTHER RELEVANT LEGISLATION

Building Code of Australia

All building work must be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the
Building Code of Australia.

ANCILLARY MATTERS TO BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF THE CONSTRUCTION
CERTIFICATE

7.

Muswellbrook Shire Water and Waste Division

A 'Notice of Requirements' under the Water Management Act 2000 must be
obtained, prior to any Construction Certificate application, detailing water and
sewer extensions to be built and charges to be paid by the applicant. Any
charges identified in the ‘Notice of Requirements’ as requiring payment at
construction certificate stage are to be paid prior to release of a Construction
Certificate.

Details demonstrating compliance with any requirements for works by
Muswellbrook Shire Council Water & Waste Department are to be provided with
the Construction Certificate application.

The final compliance certificate must be submitted to the Principal Certifying
Authority prior to release of the Subdivision or Occupation Certificate.
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10.

1.

12

Structural Engineer's Plans and details — Proposed Works

A certificate and detailed drawings issued by an appropriately qualified
structural engineer are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority with the
Construction Certificate application, which certifies that the design and
construction of the structural elements will be structural adequate for its
intended purpose.

Kerb and Gutter Alignment Levels

The kerb and gutter alignment levels shall match the existing levels except where
modified for the vehicular crossing. The applicant shall design and construct
having regard for the aforementioned levels. No approval is granted for any
change to existing kerb and gutter alignment levels to accommodate the
development. Details demonstrating compliance with this requirement must be
submitted to the Certifying Authority for approval with any Construction Certificate
for works that relate to the provision of vehicular access or accommodation,

Parking for People with Disabilities

A total of one (1) car-parking space for use by persons with a disability shall be
provided as part of the total car-parking requirements. Consideration must be
given to the means of access from the car-parking spaces to adjacent buildings,
to other areas within the building and to footpath and roads and shall be clearly
shown on the plans submitted to the Certifying Authority for approval with the
Construction Certificate. All details shall be prepared in consideration of, and
construction completed in accordance with Australian Standard AS2890.1 fo
achieve compliance with the Disability Discrimination Act, and the relevant
provisions of AS1428.1 and AS1428 4.

Off Street Car Parking

A total of 44 off-street car-parking spaces are to be provided for the whole
development. The carparking spaces are to comply with Australian Standard
2890. A certificate prepared and certified by an appropriately qualified and
practising Civil Engineer for the construction of these areas in accordance with
this requirement shall be submitted to the Certifying Authority for approval with
the Construction Certificate.

Asbestos & Hazardous Material Survey (High Hazard)

In relation to the demolition or alteration of the existing building (or part of a
building) on the site:

(a) a report prepared by an appropriately qualified person (such as an
Occupational Hygienist or Environmental Consultant) is to be submitted to
the Certifying Authority, with the Construction Certificate application,
detailing whether any asbestos or hazardous materials exist on the site
that are affected by the proposed building works. (e.g. lead in paints,
ceiling dust, glass fiber insulation or asbestos based products).

Note: If no hazardous materials are identified, the demolition may proceed in
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13.

accordance with AS2601 and the following conditions, including dust contral and
WorkCover requirements.

(b) should any hazardous materials be identified as per item (a), a Work Plan
shall be submitted to the Certifying Authority with the Construction
Certificate application and set out in accordance with AS2601 -
Demolition of Buildings. The report shall contain details regarding:

i. The type of hazardous material;

ii. The level or measurement of the hazardous material in
comparison to National Guidelines;

iii.  Proposed methods of containment; and

iv.  Proposed methods of disposal.

v. Details of signage to be provided on the site to comply with the
provisions of the Occupational Health and Safety Regulation 2001,
to ensure persons are wamed, by the use of signs, labels or other
similar measures, of the presence of asbestos or asbestos-
containing material in a place at which construction work is being
carried out.

(c) where unacceptably high levels of lead are found in a premises to be
demolished soil samples from site are to be tested by a NATA Registered
laboratory before and after demolition and submitted to Council. This will
determine whether remediation of the site is necessary.

(d) the demolition must be undertaken in accordance with AS2601.

(e) any works involving asbestos based products must be undertaken in
accordance with the requirements of the WorkCover Authority in relation
to removal, handling and disposing of material, and the Work Safe
Australia Asbestos Code of Practice. (Refer to the information publications
provided in your approvals package for more specific information)

(f)  all work involving lead removal must not cause lead contamination of air
or ground, and the Work Plan submitted to comply with item (b) must
comply with the requirements of AS 4361.2-1998 : Guide to lead paint
management - Residential and commercial buildings. Particular attention
must be given to the control of dust levels on the site.

Details demonstrating compliance with these requirements are to be approved
by the Certifying Authority and submitted with the Construction Certificate.

Notes:
1. Further details regarding requirements for removal of hazardous materials can be obtained
from the WorkCover website or at www.lead.org.au.

2. Fallure to comply with legisiative requirements relating to the removal or handling of

hazardous materials is likely to result in enforcement action, including fines or prosecution
withoul prior warnings.

Roofing & External Cladding Materials - Reflectivity

Roofing materials shall be factory pre-finished with low glare and reflectivity
properties to be compatible with the colours of neighbouring buildings. The
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14.

15.

Certifying Authority shall undertake an assessment in relation to the proposed
roofing material to determine the potential for glare nuisance or excessive
reflectivity to adjoining or nearby properties, relative to the chosen roofing
material. The Certifying Authority shall be provided with certification
accompanying the Construction Certificate that the selected roofing material will
not cause a glare nuisance or excessive reflectivity to adjoining or nearby
properties

Access for People with Disabilities

Access for people with disabilities is to be provided to and within the entire
building. Consideration must be given to the means of dignified and equitable
access from public places to adjacent buildings. to other areas within the building
and to footpath and roads. Compliant access provisions for people with
disabilittes shall be clearly shown on the plans submitted to the Certifying
Authority for approval with the Construction Certificate. All details shall be
prepared in consideration of, and construction completed to achieve compliance
with the provisions of the Disability Discrimination Act, and the relevant
provisions of AS1428.1 and AS1428.4.

Section 94A Contributions

Pursuant to section 80A(1) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act
1979, and the Muswellbrook Shire Council Section 94A Development
Contributions Plan 2010, a contribution of $4,454.59 shall be paid to
Muswellbrook Shire Council.

The amount to be paid is to be adjusted at the time of the actual payment, in
accordance with the provisions of the Muswellbroock Shire Council Section 94A
Development Contributions Plan 2010. The contribution is to be paid prior to the
issue of the Construction Certificate.

[ CONDITIONS THAT MUST BE ADDRESSED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT

16.

17.

Sediment and Erosion Control

All required erosion and sedimentation techniques are to be properly installed
prior to the commencement of any site works and maintained in a functional and
effective condition throughout the construction activities until the site is
stabilised.

Site Sign

A sign must be erected in a prominent position on any work site on which work
involved in the erection or demolition of a building is being carried out:

(a) stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited;

(b) showing the name of the principal contractor (or person in charge of the
work site), and a telephone number at which that person may be
contacted at any time for business purposes and outside working hours;
and
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18.

19.

(c) showing the name, address and telephone number of the Principal
Certifying Authority for the work.

Any such sign must be maintained while to building work or demolition work is
being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

This condition does not apply to building works being carried out inside an
existing building.

Construction Certificate Requirement

No works shall commence on site until such time as a Construction Certificate
has been issued for either part or all of the works. If a certificate is issued for
part of the works it must cover the works being undertaken onsite.

Site Facilities

(a) If the development involves building work or demolition work, the work site
must be fully enclosed by a temporary security fence (or hoarding) before
work commences.

(b) A minimum width of 1.2m must be provided between the work site and the
edge of the roadway so as to facilitate the safe movement of pedestrians,

(c) Any such hoarding or fence is to be removed when the work has been
completed.

(d) A garbage receptacle fitted with a tight fitting lid for the reception of all
food scraps and papers from the work site must be provided prior to
building work commencing and must be maintained and serviced for the
duration of the work.

(e) Toilet facilities must be provided on the work site at the rate of one toilet
for every 20 persons or part of 20 persons employed at the work site.

(f)  Each toilet provided must:

* be a standard flushing toilet, connected to a public sewer, or

= if connection to a public sewer is not available, to an on-site effluent
disposal system approved by the council, or

* an approved temporary chemical closet.

(g) The provision of toilet facilities must be completed before any other work
is commenced.

(h) A person having the benefit of this certificate who causes an excavation
that extends below the level of the base of the footings of a building on an
adjoining allotment of land must at their own expense and where
necessary:

« protect and support the building from damage, and
*  If necessary, underpin and support the building in accordance with
the details prepared by a professional engineer.

(i) A person having the benefit of this certificate who causes the excavation
must, at least 7 days before commencing this work, give notice of
intention to do so to the owner of the adjoining allotment of land and
provide particulars of the proposed work.

(i) Erosion and sediment controls must be provided in accordance with the
details shown on the approved plans, prior to the disturbance of any soil
on the work site.
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20. Section 68 Local Government Act Approval

Prior to the commencement of any works it shall be necessary for the applicant
to obtain a Section 68 Local Government Act approval for all water supply and
sewer drainage works.

21. Damage to Public Infrastructure

The applicant shall bear the cost of all restoration works to Council property
damaged during the course of this development. The applicant shall submit in
writing and/or photographic record, of any existing damage to Council property
before commencement of work.

Note:  This documentation will be used to resoive any dispute over damage to infrastructure, If
no documentation is received prior to commencement of work it will be assumed that the
infrastructure was undamaged and the applicant will be required to restore all damaged
infrastructure at their expense.

22. Vehicle entry / upgrade
Prior to commencing construction of the driveway/vehicle crossing/layback,

within the road reserve, a permit for the work must be obtained from Council,
under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993.

| CONDITIONS THAT MUST BE COMPLIED WITH DURING DEMOLITION AND BUILDING WORK |

23. Approved Materials

The colour, texture and substance of all external materials shall be generally as
detailed in the application.

24, Second Hand Materials

Second hand materials shall not be used unless specifically approved by the
Certifying Authority or Principal Certifying Authority in writing.

25. Construction Hours

(a) Subject to this clause, building construction is to be carried out during the
following hours:

i between Monday to Friday (inclusive)}—7.00am to 6.00pm
i, on a Saturday—=8.00am to 1.00pm

(b) Building construction must not be carried out on a Sunday or a public
holidays.

{c) Demolition works and excavation works must only be carried out between
Monday to Friday (inclusive) between 8.00am and 5.00pm.

(d) The builder and excavator must display, on-site, their 24 hour contact
telephone numbers, which are to be clearly visible and legible from any
public place adjoining the site.
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26. Prohibition on Use of Pavements

Building materials and equipment must be stored wholly within the work site,
unless prior written approval has been obtained from council. Equipment must
not be operated on the footpath or roadway, unless prior written approval has
been obtained from council.

27. Demolition or Removal of Buildings

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

)

Demolition must be carried out in accordance with AS 2601-1991,
Demolition of structures.

Demolition materials must not be burnt or buried on the work site.

A person having the benefit of this certificate must ensure that all vehicles
leaving the work site carrying demolition materials, have their loads
covered and do not track soil or waste material onto the road.

If demolition work obstruct or inconvenience pedestrians or vehicular
traffic on an adjoining public road or reserve, a separate application must
be made to council to enclose the public place with a hoarding or fence,

Erosion and sediment controls must be provided in accordance with the
details shown on the approved plans, prior to the disturbance of any soil
on the work site and must be maintained in a functional condition
throughout the construction activities until the site is stabilised.

The work site must be left free of wasle and debris when work has been
completed.

28. Mandatory Council Inspections

At the following stages of construction, a satisfactory report from Council is to
be obtained prior to works proceeding:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sewer drains — all pipes are to be correctly laid, suitably bedded and
ready to backfill. Suitable backfill material is to be available on site at
the time of inspection.

Connection of stormwater drainage to easement- following installation
and bedding of drainage lines and prior to backfilling

Driveway crossover of the footpath or nature strip;

- prior to pouring concrete

- Section 138 Roads Act Permit required prior to inspection being
carried out.

Council infrastructure- at completion of works and prior to an
Occupation Certificate inspection.
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To arrange an inspection please contact Council's Environmental Service
Department on (02) 6549 3745.

Note: Inspection fees will be charged in accordance with Council's adopted fees and charges
and must be paid prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

Compliance with Clause 5.3 of the MLEP 2009

Prior to pouring the footings, an identification survey is to be provided to the
Principal Certifying Authority which confirms the development is within 30m of the
adjoining B2 Local Centre Zone.

CONDITIONS WHICH MUST BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF THE OCCUPATION
CERTIFICATE

30.

31.

32.

33.

Access for People with Disabilities
Provision shall be made for access to and within the building on the site for
persons with a disability in accordance with the provisions of AS 1428 Part 1 prior
to the issue of any Occupation Certificate.

Occupation

The building is not to be used or occupied until a final inspection has been

carried out and an occupation certificate has been obtained from the Principal

Certifying Authority.

Disposal Information

Upon completion of works and prior to accupation, the person entitled to act on
this consent shall provide to Council the following information;,

(a) the total tonnage of all waste and excavated material disposed of from the
site;

(b) the disposal points and methods used; and

(c) a copy of all disposal receipts are to be provided

Asbestos & Other Hazardous Materials

Prior to issuing any Occupation Certificate for building works where asbestos
based products and other hazardous materials have been removed lipping
receipts, which detail that all waste has been disposed of at an approved waste
disposal depot shall be provided to the Principal Certifying Authority.
Connection to Sewer

The premises shall be connected to the sewer system in accordance with the
Australian Standard 3500. A works as executed plan on Council's approved form
is to be submitted to Council within seven (7) days following the final drainage
inspection and prior to any Occupation Certificate being issued.

Page 10 ot 16
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35.

36.

37.

39.

Allocation of Parking Areas

All required parking areas, loading bays, driveways, internal access ways,
vehicular ramps and turning areas shall fully constructed, sealed, line marked,
sign posted, numbered and in accordance with the consent prior to the release of
the Occupation Certificate.

Redundant vehicle crossings

Where a redundant layback will occur at the frontage of the property, a new
concrete kerb and gutter must be constructed to replace the redundant layback
prior to the issue of an occupation certificate,

Installation of driveways

Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate the applicant shall provide a sealed
vehicular access way, in compliance with the following:

a) the sealed vehicular access way shall comply with Muswellbrook
Shire Council footpath, kerb and guttering policy to ensure that an 85"
percentile vehicle (as defined as AS2890.1) will not scrape/strike the
surface of the carriageway, layback, vehicular crossing or garage
floor,

b) the width of the vehicular layback shall be a maximum of 6 metres
(including the wings),

c) the crossing (between the layback and the property boundary) shall
be placed on a single straight grade to align with existing concrete
footpath , falling to the back of the layback.;

d) the footpath is to be graded flush with the crossing. Where the
crossing is above or below the level of the existing footpath the
footpath is to be ramped, with a gentle fall, to the level of the crossing.

Final Compliance Certificate for Water Supply and Sewerage Works

The final compliance certificate for water supply and sewerage works is to be
obtained from Muswellbrook Shire Council Water & Waste Department and a
copy must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to release of
any Occupation Certificate.

Evidence of mandatory inspections

Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, a satisfactory inspection report is
to be obtained from Council confirming that the following inspections have been
carried out:

(a) Sewer drainage
(b) Connection of stormwater drainage
(c) Driveway crossover of the footpath or nature strip

Page 11 0f 14
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40.

aM.

42.

(d) Council infrastructure
Consolidation of lots

a) Lots 1, 2 and 3 DP 258257, Lot B DP 409046 and Part of Lot 4 DP 25935
are to be registered into one title prior to the issue of any Occupation
Certificate.

b) The residual of Lot 4 DP 25935 is to be consolidated with Lot 5 DP 25935
prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate.

Acoustic fencing

The applicant is to construct a 2.5m high acoustic fence along the property
boundaries which adjoin residential dwellings prior to the issue of any
Occupation Certificate.

Zone Boundary fencing

The applicant shall construct a fence at the 30m boundary to ensure the
development complies with Clause 5.3 of the Muswellbrook Local
Environmental Plan 2009 and remains wholly within this area. This fencing is to
be installed prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate.

| CONDITIONS THAT MUST BE COMPLIED WITH AT ALL TIMES |

43.

45.

46.

Stormwater Disposal

All stormwater from the development including all hardstandings and overflows
from rainwater tanks is to be collected and disposed of to the kerb and gutter

(piped).
Hours of Operation

The vehicle showroom must open for business only between the following
hours:-

Monday — Friday 8.00am to 5.30pm
Saturday 8.00am to 1.00pm
Sunday and Public Holiday Closed

Impact on Amenity of Surrounding Area — Non Residential Areas

The implementation and intensity of this development shall not adversely affect
the amenity of the neighbourhood by reason of excessive levels of illumination
(internal or external), solar glare arising from the building materials utilised in
any construction processes or fit-out, the emission of noises, noxious fumes,
odours and waste.

Trade Waste

Trade waste water shall be disposed of in accordance with the requirements of
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47.

48.

49.

51.

52.

53.

55.

the existing trade waste agreement between the Owner and Muswellbrook Shire
Council.

Visitors Sign
A sign, legible from the street, shall be permanently displayed to indicate that
visitor parking is available on the site and the visitor car parking spaces shall be
clearly marked as such.

Obstruction of Parking Areas
No parking spaces, loadings bays or vehicular access ways or access thereto
shall be restricted, constrained or enclosed by any form of structure such as
fencing, or the like, without prior consent from Council.

Vehicle Egress Signs
Appropriate sign(s) shall be provided and maintained within the site at the
point(s) of vehicular egress to compel all vehicles to stop before proceeding onto
the public way.

Vehicle movement
All vehicles must enter and leave the site in a forward direction at all times.

Fencing - boundary
The applicant shall ensure that the site is suitably fenced, at all times, to reduce
the potential for vehicles to impact pedestrians on Maitland Street, Rutherford
Road and Acacia Drive.

Hours of lllumination

The sign shall cease illumination between the hours of 10.00pm and 6.00am
daily eastern summer time and eastern standard time.

lllumination Intensity
The level of illumination and/or lighting intensity used to illuminate the signage is
to be minimised to ensure that excessive light spill or nuisance is not caused to
any nearby premises and the users of Maitland Street.

Delivery Hours

No deliveries, loading or unloading associated with the premises are to take
place between the hours of 6.00pm through to 7.00am on any day.

Deliveries

All deliveries, including car delivery vehicles, to the site must be unloaded
wholly within the site, at all times.
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56.

57.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

65.

Vehicle movement
At all times, vehicles must enter and leave in a forward direction.
Lighting
No flood lighting is to be provided to the building.
Landscaping

The landscaped area of the development is to be maintained at all times in
accordance with the approved landscape plan

Noise - legislation

The premises shall comply with Protection of the Environment Operations Act
1997, NSW EPA Industrial Noise Policy at all times.

Vehicle size - restriction

The maximum size vehicle to access the site, at any time, is 12.5m.
Signage - height limit

The maximum height of the two pylon signs are limited to 7m.
Contaminated land — legislation

The development is to comply with the requirements of State Environmental
Planning Policy No. 55, or its amended equivalent, at all times.

Signage —- Legislation
All signs should meet the criteria contained in Section 3.2.5 of the Department of
Planning's Transport Corridor Outdoor Advertising and Signage Guidelines (July
2007) - lllumination and reflectance. The sign must be constructed entirely within
private property and shall not encroach or overhang, into the road reserve.
Signage

The sign must not obstruct any road regulatory, safety or directional signage in
the vicinity.

Signage - restrictions.

The sign must not incorporate:
» Coloured writing. Only white writing should be permitted.

» Flashing lights or messages.

Page 14 of 10
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* Electronically changeable messages, unless in accordance with the
Department of Planning's Transport Corridor Outdoor Advertising and
Signage Guidelines (July 2007).

» Animated display, moving parts or simulated movement.
+ Complex displays that hold a driver's attention beyond “glance appreciation”

» Displays resembling traffic signs or signals, or giving instruction to traffic by
using words such as ‘halt’ or ‘stop’.

* A method of illumination that distracts or dazzles

GENERAL TERMS OF APPROVAL PURUSANT TO SECTION 91A OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL
PLANNING AND ASSESSMENT ACT 1979 (AS AMENDED)

Roads and Maritime Services

66. Access
All heavy vehicles access to the site to be via Acacia Drive from Rutherford
Road.

67. Stormwater

Discharged stormwater from the development shall not exceed the capacity of
the Maitland Street stormwater drainage system.

[ REASON FOR IMPOSITION OF CONDITIONS: |

The reason for the imposition of the following conditions is to ensure, to Council’s satisfaction, the objects of
the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (as amended) are achieved:

(a) To encourage:

() The proper management, development and conservation of natural and artificial resources,
including agricultural land, natural areas, forest, minerals, water, cities, towns, and villages
for the purpose of promoting the social and economic welfare of the community and a better
environment;

(#)  The promotion and co-ordination of the orderly and economic use of develcpment of land;

(i)  The protection, provision, and co-ordination of communication and utility services;

(iv)  The provision of land for public purposes,

(v) The provision and co-ordination of community services and facilites,

(vi)  The protection of the environment, Including the protection and conservation of native
animals and plants including threatened species, populations, and ecological communities
and their habitats;

(vil)  Ecologically Sustainable Development; and

(viii)  The provision and maintenance of affordable housing

(b) To promote the sharing of the rasponsibility for environmental planning between the different levels
of government In the State.

(c) To provide increased opportunity for public involvement and participation in environmental planning
and assessment.
[ ADVICE: ]
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(1) Location of Services

Prior to construction work commencing you should ensure that all services have
been clearly located and identified by contacting “Dial before you Dig" by
telephoning 1100.

* You are advised that changes 1o the external configuration of the building, changes
to the site layout, density and unit configuration or internal changes to the proposed
building or any changes to the proposed operation of a use MAY require the
submission of a modification under Section 96 of the Environmental Planning &
Assessment Act, 1979. Any such changes may need to be the subject of a separate
Development Application.

Please bear this in mind before preparing documentation in support of a
Construction Certificate application. Council staff would be pleased to assist in
identifying such changes which may require the submission of a modification of a
Development Application under Section 96 of the Environmental Planning &
Assessment Act.

+ This document is a development consent only, and does not authorise construction
or subdivision works to commence. Prior to commencing any building, subdivision or
associated construction works, the following provisions of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the "Act’) are to be complied with:

(i) A Construction Certificate is to be obtained in accordance with Section
81A(2)(a) of the Act.

(i) A Principal Certifying Authority is to be appointed and Council is to be notified
of the appointment in accordance with Section 81A(2)(b) of the Act.

(iii) Council is to be notlified at least two (2) days before the intention to commence
building works, in accordance with Section 81A(2)(c) of the Act.

* The applicant may apply to the Council or an Accredited Certifier for the issuing of a
Construction Certificate and to be the Principal Certifying Authority to monitor
compliance with the approval and issue necessary documentary evidence or
certificate/s.

* Failure to comply with any of the above requirements is an offence under the
provisions of the Act, and may result in enforcement action being taken by Council if
these requirements are not complied with.

| RIGHT OF APPEAL: ]|

Section 82A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 provides that the
applicant may request the Council to review the determination. The request must be
made in writing (or on the review application form) within six (6) months after receipt of
this Notice of Determination, together with payment of the appropriate fees. It is
recommended that the applicant discuss any request for a review of the determination
with Council Officers before lodging such a request.

If you are dissatisfied with this decision, Section 97 of the Environmental Planning and

Assessment Act, 1979 gives you the right to appeal to the Land and Environment Court
within six (6) months after the date on which you receive this notice.
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&,
.

NSW

Transport
Roads & Maritime
Services

19 September 2017

CR2017/002251
SF2017/127309
KML

General Manager
Muswellbrook Shire Council
PO Box 122
MUSWELLBROOK NSW 2333

Attention Donna Watson

NEW ENGLAND HIGHWAY (A15): DA 57/2017, DEMOLITION OF 2 DWELLINGS AND
CONSTRUCTON OF FORD & ISUZU SHOWROOM, LOT: 2 DP: 258257, LOT: B DP:409046,
LOT:4 DP:25935, 113-121 MAITLAND STREET MUSWELLBROOK

Reference is made to Council's letter, regarding the abovementioned application which was
referred to Roads and Maritime Services (Roads and Maritime) for comment.

Roads and Maritime understands the development to be for the demolition of two dwellings and
construction of a Ford and Isuzu showroom, vehicle displays, signage and associated works.

Roads and Maritime response
Roads and Maritime has reviewed the information provided and has no objections to the proposed

development provided the following matters are addressed and included in Council's conditions of
development consent:
« All heavy vehicles access to the site to be via Acacia Drive from Rutherford Road.
Advice to Council
Roads and Maritime recommends that the following matters should be considered by Council in

determining this development:

* Roads and Maritime has no proposal that requires any part of the property.

Roads and Maritime Services

Leve! 8, 266 King Street, Newcastle NSW 2300 |
Locked Bag 2030, Newcastie NSW 2300 | www.rms.nsw.gov.au | 132213
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» Council should ensure that appropriate traffic measures are in place during the construction
phase of the project to minimise the impacts of construction vehicles on traffic efficiency and
road safety within the vicinity.

« Council should have consideration for appropriate sight line distances in accordance with the
relevant Australian Standards (i.e. AS2890:1:2004) and should be satisfied that the location of
the proposed driveway promotes safe vehicle movements.

» Discharged stormwater from the development shall not exceed the capacity of the Maitland
Street stormwater drainage system. Council shall ensure that drainage from the site is catered
for appropriately and should advise Roads and Maritime of any adjustments to the existing
system that are required prior to final approval of the development.

On Council's determination of this matter, please forward a copy of the Notice of Determination to
Roads and Maritime for record and / or action purposes. Should you require further information
please contact Hunter Land Use on 4908 7688 or by email at
development.hunter@rms.nsw.gov.au

Yours sincerely

\

)

Peter Marler
Manager Land Use Assessment
Hunter Region
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LANDSCAPING NOTES:

THE LAYOUT ON THIS SHEET IS FOR RLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY
AND IS INTENDED TO HIGHUIGHT HOW PLANTING CAN PROVIDE VISUAL
BREAKS AND AESTHETIC APPEAL THROUGHOUT THE SITE.

PLANTING IMAGES PRESENTED ON THIS SHEET ARE EXAMPLES ONLY
OF THE TYPES LOW MAINTENANCE VEGETATION THAT MIGHT B

CONSIDERED SUITABLE FOR THE REGION,

FOR A MORE DETAILED AND ACCURATE LANDSCAPING LAYOUT A
SUITABLY QUALIFIED PLANTING CONSULTANT SHOULD BE ENGAGED,
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Plans

L

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

1, THS PLANTS TO 8 READ I CONJUNCTION WITH THE ENGINEERING PLANS, AND ANY OTHER PLANS OR
WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS THAT MAY B 5SUED AND RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT AT THE SUBXECT STE

2. THE SITE SUPERINTENDENT WILL ENSURE THAT ALL SOE AND WATER MANAGEMENT WORKS ARE LOCATED
AS INSTRUCTED IN THIS SPECIFICATION.

3. ALLSULDERS AND SUB-CONTRACTORS WILL BE INFORMED OF THEIR RESPONSISILITES IN MINIMISING THE
POTENTIAL FOR SO EROSION AND POLLUTION TO DOWNSLOPE LANDS AND WATERWAYS,

CONSTRUCTION SEQUINCE
4 THESOIL EROSION POTENTIAL ON THE SITE 5 TO BE MINWISED.
HENCE WORXS SHALL BE UNDERTAKEN IN THE FOLLOWING SEQUENCE -
(A} INSYALL SEDIMENT FENCES
() CONSTRUCT OPEN SWALES AND CHANNELS AS NECESSARY AND DIRECTED EY THE SITE

SUPERINTENDENT,
(C) CONSTRUCT STABILISED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE TO LOCATION AS OETERMINED BY

SUPERINTENDENT.

(DF INSTALL SEDIMENT TRAPS AS SHOWN ON PLAN,

(E) UNDERTARE SITE DEVELOPMENT WORKS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ENGINEERING PLANS.
PHASE DEVELOPMENT 50 THAT LAND DISTURBANCE 15 CONFNED TO AREAS OF WORKABLE SZE.

EROSION CONTROL
5. DURING WINDY WEATHER, LARGE, UNPROTECTED AREAS WILL BE KEFT MOIST (NOT WET) BY SPRANKLING
WITH WATES TO KEEP DUST UNDER CONTROL.

6, FINAL SITE LANDSCAPING WILL BE UNDERTAKEN AS SOON AS POSSELE AND WITHIN 20 WORKING DAYS
FROM COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

SEDMENT CONTROL

LS STOCKPILES WILL NOT BE LOCATED WITHIN 2 METRES OF HAZARD AREAS, INCLUDING LIELY AREAS OF
CONCENTRATED OR HIGH VELOCITY FLOWS SUCH AS WATERWAYS. WHERE THEY ARE BETWEEN 2 AND 5
METRES FROM SUCH AREAS, SPECIAL SEQIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHOULD BE TAKEN TO MINIAISE
POSSIBLE POLLUTION TO DOWNSLOPE WATERS, EG. THROUGH INSTALLATION OF SEDIMENT FENCING.

& ANY SAND USED IN THE CONCRETE CURING PROCESS (SPREAD OVER THE SURFACE} WILL BE AEMOVED AS
SOON AS POSSIBLE AND WITHIN 10 WORIONG DAYS FROM PLACEMENT,

9. WATER WILL BE PREVENTED FAOM ENTERING THE FERMANENT DRAINAGE SYSTEM UNLESS IT 15 RELATIVELY
SECIMENT FREE, LE THE CATCHMENT AREA HAS BEEN PERMANENTLY LANDSCAPED AND/OR ANY LIKELY
SEDIMENT HAS BLEN FILTERED THAOUGH AN APPROVED STRUCTURL

10.  TEMPORARY SOR AND WATER MANAGEMENT STRUCTURES WILL EE REMOVED ONLY AFTER THE LANDS
THEY ARE PROTECTING ARE REHABILUTATED,

OTHER MATTERS

11, ACCEFTASLE RECEPTORS WILL 8E PROVIOED FOR CONCRETE AND MORTAR SLURRIES, PANTS, ACID
WADINGS, LIGHT-WEGHT WASTE MATERIALS AND LITTER,

12 ANY EXISTING TREES WHICH FORM PART OF THE FINAL LANDSCAFING PLAN WILL BE PROTECTED FROM

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES BY:

{Al PROTECTING THEM WITH BARRIER FENCING OR SIMILAR MATERIALS INSTALLED OUTSIDE THE DRP UNE.
(B} ENSURING THAT NOTHING IS NALED TO THEM.

(S PROHIBITING FAVING, GRADING, SEDWENT WASH OR PLACING OF STOCKFILES WITHIN THE DRIP LINE
EXCEPT UNDER THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS.

() ENCROACHMENT ONLY OCCURS ON ONE SIDE AND NO CLOSER TO THE TRUNK THAN BITHER 1.5
METRES  ORHALF THE DISTANCE BETWEEN THE QUTER EDGE OF THE DRIP LINE AND THE TRUNK, WHICH
EVER 15 THE GREATER.

0N ADRANAGE SYSTEM THAY ALLOWS AR AND WATER TO CIRCLLATE THAOUGH THE ROOT ZONE
EG.A GRAVEL BED) IS PLACED UNDER ALL FILL LAYERS OF MORE THAN 300 MLLIMETRES DEPTH.

(N0 CARE IS TAXEN NOT TO CUT ROOTS UNNECESSARILY AND NOT TO COMPACT THE SOL ARDUND

SITE INSPECTION & MAINTENANCE

13 RECEPTORS FOR CONCRETE AND MORTAR SLURSIES, PAINTS, ACID WASHINGS, LIGHT-WEIGHT WASTE
MATERIALS AND LITTER ARE TO BE EMPTIED AS NECESSARY. DISPOSAL OF WASTE SHALL BE IN A MANNER
APPROVED BY THE SITE SUPERINTENDENT.

12 M STAR PICKET DRIVEN 600
UND

ELEVALTION s P
. HALE

NYLON OR WIRE BINDINGS

STRAW BALES
TIGHTLY ASUTTING

Yourre. o o I uum B

PLAN VIEW

BALES EMSIEDOED 100 MM INTO GROUN

CONSTRUCTION NOTES SECT'ON A-A
m:"":frmw FILTER AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE TO BENG PARALLEL YO THE CONTOURS OF THE

1. PLACE BALES LENGTHWISE IN A ROW WITH ENDS TIGHTLY ASUTTING. USE STRAW TO FRLL ANY
GAP BETWEEN BALES, STREWS ARE TO BE PLACED PARALLEL TO GROUND.

ENSURE THAT THE MAXIMUM HEKGHT OF THE FILTER IS ONE BALE.

3. EMDED EACH BALE IN THE GROUND 75MM TO 100MM AND ANCHOR WITH TWD 1.2 METER STAR
PICKETS OR STAKES. ANGLE THE FIRST STAR PIOKET OR STAKE IN EACH BALE TOWARDS THE
PREVIOUSLY LAD BALE CRIVE THEM G00MM INTO THE GROUND AND, F SOSSIBLE, FLUSH WITH
THE TOP OF THE BALES. WHERE STAR PICKETS ARE USED AND THEY FROTRUDE ABOVE THE
BALES, ENSURE THEY ARE FTTTED WITH SAFETY CAPS.

4. WHERE A STRAW BALE FILTER 1S CONSTRUCTED DOWNSLOPE FROM A DISTURSED BATTER,
ENSURE THE BALES ARE PLACED 1 TO 2 METERS DOWNSLOPE FROM THE TOE.

5. ESTABLISH A MAINTENANCE PROGRAM THAT ENSURES THE INTEGARITY OF THE DALES IS
RETANED - THEY COULD REQUIRE REPLACEMENT EACH TWO TO FOUR MONTHS.

STRAW BALE FILTER (TYPICAL)

SEDIMENTATION AND EROSION CONTROL

SET. LAND DISTURBANCE SHALL BE UMITED TO THAT NECESSARY FOR WRLEMENTATION OF THE PLANS OF WORK AND
LANDS NOT TO BE DISTURBED SHALL BE CLEARLY MARKED WITH BARAIER FENCES. SEDIMENT FENONG AND STRAW
;ﬁmmswuummmmnuwmmvmmammm

INSTALL SEDIMENT FENCING AND STRAW BALE FILTER IN ACCORDANCE WITH DETAILS ABOVE AND LOCAL COUNCIL
REQUIREMENTS.

g

THE LOCATION OF "SILT™ FENCES, SEDIMENT FENCES STRAW SALE FILTER AND OTHER DEVICES SHALL BE DETERMINGD
ON SITE IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE SUPERINTENDENT. VARIATIONS ARE PERMITTED TO BEST SUAT N

g

SE4. INSTALL TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION VERICLE EXIT IN ACCORDANCE WITH TYPICAL DETAIS

SES.  STRIP VEGETATION FROM ALL CUY AREAS AND DISPOSE OFF SITE

SEA.  STRIP TOPSOIL FROM ALL CUT AREAS AND STOCKFILE ON SITE

SE7. DXCAVATE ALL CUT AREAS AND PLACE COMPACTED FLL WHERE REQUIRED,

SEE  ALL ADJACENT LANDSCAPE AREAS ARE TO RE STASLISED AND VEGETATED WITHIN 20 DAYS OF COMPLETION.

SE9.  EXCAVATE LAY AND BACKFILL DRAINAGE LINES, OPEN TRENOH LENGTHS ARE NOT YO EXCEED 25 METRES. WHERE
TRENCHES ARE OFEN OVER NIGHT, FLACE TEMPORARY TURF LINED SWALE ALONG HIGHER SIDE OF TRENCH AND

DIVERT ROTENTIAL SURFACE WATER TO A SAFE LOCATION.

SE10. CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE PITS AND INSTALL PIT PROTECTION MEASURES N ACCORDANCE WITH DETALS ABONE,
LOCAL COUNTIL AND ROADS AND TRAFHC AUTHORITY STANOARDS.

mmm ERDSION CONTROL DEVICES ARE REMOVED EARLIER IN THE CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE

THAN AS SPECIFIED ASOVE. ENSURE THAT THE DISTURBED GROUND IS NE-VEGETATED 1O REDUCE THE LIXELINOOO OF
EROSION AND SEDIMENT TRANSPORT FROM THE SITE ENSURE ALSO THAT SEDIMENT LADEN WATER CAN STEL REACH
SEDIMENTATION BASINS FOR TREATMENT.

1.5 M STAR PICKETS AT
MAX 25 M CENTRES

T
S00MMTO
00 MM

MIN 1.5 PLAN
CONSTRUCTION NOTES
1

STAR PICKETS AT
MAXIMMIM, 2 SM SPACNGS

FENCES AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE TO BENG FARALLEL TO THE

CONSTRUCT

CONTOURS OF THE SITE, BUT WITH SMALL RETURNS AS SHOWN IN THE DRAWING TO UMIT
THE CATCHMENT AREA OF ANY ONE SECTION, THE CATCHMENT AREA SHOULD 55 SMALL
ENOUGH TO LIMIT WATER RLOW IF CONCENTRATED AT ONE POINT TO 30 LITRES PER SECOND

N THE DESIGN STORM EVENT, USUALLY THE 10-YEAR EVENT.

2 CUT A 150-MM DEEP TRENCH ALONG THE UPSLOPE LINE OF THE FENCE FOR THE FABRICTO

EE ENTRENCHED,

3 DRIVE 1.5 METER LONG STAR PICKETS INTC GROUND AT 2.5 METER INTERVALS (MAX] AT THE
DOWNSLOPE EDGE OF THE TRENCM. ENSURE ANY STAR PIOCETS ARE FITTED WITH SAFETY

CAPS.

4. P SELF-SUPPORTING GEOTEXTILE TO THE UPSLOPE SIDE OF THE POSTS ENSURING IT GOES
TO THE BASE OF THE TRENCH. FIX THE GEOTEXTILE TO THE WIRE TIS OR AS RECCMMENDED
BY THE MANUFACTURER. ONLY USE GEOTEXTILE SPECFICALLY PROCUCED FOR SEDIMENT
FENCING. THE USE OF SHADE CLOTH FOR THIS PURPOSE IS NOT SATISFACTORY,

JOIN SECTIONS OF FABRIC AT A SUPPORT POST WITH A 1 50-MM OVERLAP,
BACKFALL THE TRENCH OVER THE BASE OF THE FABRIC AND COMPACT IT THOROUGHLY OVER
THE GEOTEXTILE

SEDIMENT FENCE (TYPICAL)

SEDIMENT RUN-OFF CONTROL

ACT  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL AND MAINTAIN SOIL ERQSION AND SEDIMENT
CONTHOL MEASURES GENERALLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GUIDELINES OF THE
KEW. DEFT. OF CONSERVATION AND LAND MANAGEMENT A5 NECESSARY TO
PREVENT AUN.OFF FROM SITE OF SEDIMENT AESULTING FROM THESE WORKS.
SUCH MEASURES SHALL ALSO COMPLY WITH REQLAREMENTS OF COUNCIL.

ACZ GRADE FINISHED SUAFACE YO SMID WATER EVENLY WITHOUT CHANNEUNG
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10.3 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION NO. 70/2017 18 ROOM BOARDING

HOUSE, 14 HAYDON STREET, MUSWELLBROOK

Responsible Officer: Fiona Plesman - Director - Planning, Community & Corporate
Services

Author: Donna Watson - Development Planner

Community Plan Issue: Continue to improve the affordability, livability and amenity of the

Shire's communities

Community Plan Goal: Facilitate the provision of affordable housing opportunities through

development application process as encouraged through the
Affordable Rental Housing SEPP 2009.

Community Plan Strategy: Facilitate the provision of affordable housing opportunities through

development application process as encouraged through the
Affordable Rental Housing SEPP 20009.

Attachments: A. Recommended Conditions
B. Plans
C. NSW Police Response
D Submission

Documents referred to in assessment not attached:

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations 2000
Building Code of Australia

Boarding House Act 2012

Boarding House Regulation 2013

Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997

State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing)
Local Environmental Plan 2009

Development Control Plan 2009

Interim Construction Noise Guidelines

Hunter River Flood Study 2014

Australian Standard 1428: 2009— Design for Access & Mobility
Australian Standard 2890.1: 2004 — Parking Facilities — Off Street Car Parking
NSW Environment Protection Authority Noise Policy

Floodplain Development Manual

APPLICATION DETAILS

Applicant: Haydon Street Development Pty Ltd

Owner: Haydon Street Development Pty Ltd

Proposal: Boarding house (3 storey — 18 rooms)

Location: 14 Haydon Street, Muswellbrook

Permissibility: The proposed development is permissible as Residential

Accommodation (Boarding House) within the B2 Local Centre Zone

Recommendation: Approval
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RECOMMENDATION

Development Application No. 70/2017 proposing a 18 room boarding house at 14 Haydon Street,
Muswellbrook be approved subject the conditions in Appendix A to the report.

Moved: Seconded:
Cr J. Ledlin Cr S. Bailey Cr G. McNeill
Cr J. Foy Cr M. Green Cr R. Scholes
Cr S. Reynolds Cr B.N. Woodruff Cr S. Ward
Cr J.F. Eades Cr M. Bowditch Cr M.L. Rush

Aerial Photograph Identifying Development Site
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DISCUSSION FROM 25 OCTOBER EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
The application was reconsidered by Council at the Extra-ordinary Council meeting held 25 October
2017. At this meeting it was resolved:

Decision be deferred to the November Council Meeting.

At this meeting there was discussion around the following matters:
1. Appearance of the lack of carparking provided on site and concerns over on street parking
2. Height of building in relation to the character of the area
3. Overshadowing of adjoining properties.
4. Possible non-compliance with SEPP (Affordable Rental Housing)

The below are comments and further explanation regarding the above points:

1. Appearance of the lack of carparking provided on site and concerns regarding on street parking

Comment:

The application has been assessed in accordance with the requirements of the
State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing), which is detailed
later in the report. Under this SEPP the carparking allocation is stated and the
review of the plans found the carparking proposed complies with the SEPP.

In relation to the concerns regarding “on-street parking”, a condition has been
included which requires the Management Plan for the site to specify that
carparking should be wholly within the property. This section of Haydon Street
does not restrict on-street parking by way of “no stopping/no standing” zones.

2. Height of building in relation to the character of the area

Comment:

As detailed in the assessment below, the site has a maximum building height of
13m under the Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan 2009. The proposed
development will have a maximum height of 10m. In this regard, the proposal
complies with the height requirement.

In addition to the requirements under the Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan,
the Land and Environment Court has a “Planning Principle” relating to “height, bulk
and scale”. The Planning Principle has a number of questions which need to be
considered when assessing any development application. These questions
include:

Planning Principle question Comment

Are the impacts consistent with impacts that may | The land is zoned B2 Local Centre under the
be reasonably expected under the controls? Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan 2009.

Under the MLEP 2009, the site has a height
restriction of 13m, no minimum lot size requirement
and a floor space ratio of 2:1.

As discussed later in the report, the proposed
development is well under the MLEP 2009
restrictions.

How does the proposal’s height and bulk relate to | The proposed development complies with the 13m
the height and bulk desired under the relevant | height requirement under the Muswellbrook Local

controls?

Environmental Plan 2009.
The proposed development will be no higher than
10m.

Does the area have a predominant existing | The existing character of the area is predominantly
character and are the planning controls likely to | single dwellings along Haydon Street. However,

maintain it?

the properties fronting Sydney and Maitland Street,
there a double storey buildings.
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Planning Principle question

Comment

The current planning controls for the B2 Local
Centre Zone under the Muswellbrook Local
Environmental Plan 2009 are not likely to maintain
the single storey nature of Haydon Street.

Does the proposal fit into the existing character of
the street?

The proposed development does not fit within the
existing character of Haydon Street as it is today.
However, the immediate locality is zoned B2 Local
Centre and has the potential to be redeveloped
into a commercial uses with a density of 2:1 and a
building height of 13m.

Under the current zoning and close proximity to
town centre, this locality can be redeveloped into
more intensive commercial uses.

Is the proposal consistent with the bulk and
character intended by the planning controls?

The proposed development is consistent with the
planning controls of the MLEP 2009.

Does the proposal look appropriate in its context?

Should the application be approved in its current
form, the development is likely to be incompatible
with the current streetscape.

3. Overshadowing of adjoining properties.
Comment:

This issue is discussed in further detail later in the report.

However, when

reviewing the proposed site plan in conjunction with Council’'s GIS system, it was
revealed that the siting of the proposed building has been chosen to reduce the
amount of potential overshadowing to adjoining properties.

In addition to the above, all parcels of land are entitled to adequate solar access to
private open space areas. Although SEPP 65 does not apply to this development,
Section 4A of State Environmental Planning Policy No. 65 — Design Quality of
Residential Apartment Development outlines the requirement for solar access to
private open spaces. In this regard, it is recommended that a minimum of 3 hours
of direct sunlight between 9am to 3pm at mid-winter be achieved.

From the assessment undertaken, and the proposed location of the new building,
this 3 hour minimum should be able to achieve.

4, Possible non-compliance with SEPP (Affordable Rental Housing)

Comment:

There were two concerns were raised at the extra ordinary Council meeting.

The first concern was in relation to compliance with Clause 30(1)(g) of the SEPP.

This clause states:

if the boarding house is on land zoned primarily for commercial purposed, no part
of the ground floor of the boarding house that fronts a street will be used for
residential purposes unless another environmental planning instrument permits

such a use

In this regard, the plans lodged with the application indicate there are three units

located on the ground floor of the boarding house.
located within the B2 Local Centre zone and will front a street.

The proposed building is
However, the

Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan 2009 permits Boarding Houses in the B2
Local Centre Zone. Therefore, it satisfies this clause of the SEPP.
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The second concern was regarding the applicant’s statement that the development
meets the definition of an accessible area under Clause 4(1)(a) of the SEPP. The
Department of Planning’s information sheet on Boarding Houses clarifies
accessible area:

Accessibility requirements for R2 Low Density
Zonhes:

Boarding houses are permissible in R2 Low Density
Residential zones in locations close to public transport
services:

(a) Sydney Region

¢  Within 800m walking distance of a railway station or
a Sydney Ferries wharf;

e  Within 400m walking distance of a light rail station;
or

e  Within 400m walking distance of a bus stop used
regularly between 6am and Spm Monday to Friday,
and 8am to 6pm weekends.

(b) Outside of Sydney Region
Must be within 400m walking distance of land within
a B2 Local Centre or B4 Mixed Use zone, or within
an equivalent land use zone.

As Muswellbrook is outside of the Sydney region, a boarding house must be within
400m walking distance to land zoned B2 Local Centre. As the subject site is
currently zoned B2 Local Centre under the Muswellbrook Local Environmental
Plan 2009, the development appears to meet the definition of “accessible area”.

DISCUSSION FROM 10 OCTOBER ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
The application was considered at the October Council meeting. At this meeting Council resolved to:

This item be deferred for consideration at the Extra-Ordinary Council meeting
scheduled for 25 October, 2017.

In this regard, the assessment of the application has been reviewed and a number of additional
recommended conditions have been included in Appendix A. These additional recommended
conditions make it clear to the applicant and / or person enacting on the consent that the boarding house
is to be used for affordable housing and is restricted to 18 occupants.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The application is being reported to Council due to one submission being received.

REPORT

1.0 BACKGROUND

The site is current vacant and a search of Council’s registers have not found any applications for
development.

2.0 SITE AND LOCALITY DESCRIPTION

The site fronts Haydon Street and is in close proximity to Wilkinson Avenue intersection. The
subject land has a combined area of 607m?. The site is surrounded by residential dwellings and
has a B2 Local Centre Zoning.

A site inspection revealed the land is predominately flat and contains minimal vegetation.
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3.0

4.0

5.0

5.1

5.1

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL

The proposed development will involve the construction of a three storey, 18 room boarding house.
The boarding rooms will be approximately 28m* and the disability access rooms will be
approximately 33m?  The rooms will be similar in design and include sufficient area to
accommodate a single bed, lounge / dining area, kitchenette and bathroom. The overall gross
floor area of the proposed development is 785.37m?.

The building will comprise of a ground level, undercover carpark, with two storeys above and will
be approximately 10m in height with a skillion roof. The supporting documentation states there will
be a 1.8m timber paling fence proposed along the side and rear boundaries.

The proposed ground floor will contain three boarding rooms and secure carparking area which
includes four spaces including one disabled, four motorbike spaces and a bicycle rack. The
carparking area will also include an enclosed bin storage area.

The proposed first floor will contain seven boarding rooms, including one disable access room.
Access to this level is via the lift, internal stairwell and directly from an external stair well. This
level also includes a common room area.

The proposed second level contains eight boarding rooms, including one disable access room. .
Access to this level is via the lift and two internal stairwell

A copy of the plans are attached as Appendix B.

ADEQUACY OF APPLICANT’S SUBMISSION

In relation to the Statement of Environmental Effects, the plans and other documentation submitted
with the Application, the applicant has provided adequate information to enable an assessment of
the Application.

SPECIALIST COMMENTS

Internal Referrals

The application was referred to Council’s Building Section, Water and Waste and Community
Infrastructure. Each section reviewed the proposal and recommended standard conditions to be
placed on the development consent should the application be approved.

External Referrals

5.1.1 NSW Police

6.0

The application was referred to the NSW Police for consideration and comment. The Police have
raised no objection to the proposed development and provided standard conditions to be included
in the determination, if approved. The response from the NSW Police is attached as Appendix C.
ASSESSMENT

Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan 2009 (MLEP 2009)

Land Use Zone and Permitted Land Use

The development site is zoned B2 Local Centre pursuant to MLEP 2009. The proposal is best
defined as Boarding House, which is permitted with consent in the subject Zone.
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Obijectives of the B2 Local Centre Zone

To provide a range of retail, business, entertainment and community uses that serve the
needs of people who live in, work in and visit the local area.

To encourage employment opportunities in accessible locations.

To maximise public transport patronage and encourage walking and cycling.

To maintain the status and encourage the future growth of the Muswellbrook established
business centre as a retail, service, commercial and administrative centre while maintaining
the centre’s compact form.

To enable a wide range of land uses that are associated with, ancillary to, or supportive of
the retail and service functions of a business centre.

To maintain the heritage character and value and streetscape of the business centre of
Muswellbrook.

To support business development by way of the provisions of parking and other civic
facilities.

It is considered that the development proposal is not contrary to the objectives of the Zone.

Relevant Clauses applicable under the Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan 2009

Part 2 Permitted or prohibited development

2.1 Land use zones The subject site is zoned B2 Local Centre

under MLEP 2009 and ‘boarding house’ is
permitted with consent in the subject Zone.

2.3 Zone objectives and Land Use Table See above
Part 4 Principal development standards
4.1 Minimum subdivision lot size MLEP 2009 does not specify a minimum lot

size for the land. The application is not for a
subdivision, therefore this clause is not
applicable.

4.3 Height of buildings MLEP 2009 specifies a maximum building

height of 13m in relation to the land. The
proposal does not involve building works over
10m. The proposed development complies
with Clause 4.3(2).

However, the proposed building will result in
substantial overshadowing of the adjoining
property during the winter months, this being
12 Haydon Street. Council's GIS system
shows the existing structure on 12 Haydon
street being parallel to the proposed boarding
house. In this regard, the overshadowing will
predominately be over the existing dwelling.
The occupier of 12 Haydon Street will still
achieve a minimum 4 hours of solar access to
the private open space area at the rear of the
dwelling.

Further, the rear of the proposed building
contains 9 large windows which could allow
the tenants to look into adjoining properties.
From Council’s GIS the adjoining properties to
the rear of the site are approximately 20m from
the proposed external wall of the boarding
house. This distance provides suitable
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separation distance between the proposed
boarding house and the existing dwellings.

In addition to the rear windows, the northern
facade of the proposed building contains 6
large windows. Again, Council’'s GIS system
indicates the distance from the northern wall to
the adjoining dwelling is approximately 8
metres. The dwelling located at 16 Haydon
Street is constructed quite close to the
boundary and with the applicant proposing a
1.8m high timber fence, the privacy to the
adjoining resident will be improved.

4.4 Floor space ratio

MLEP 2009 specifies a floor space ratio of 2:1
in relation to the land. The proposal does not
involve building works that would result in floor
space greater than 0.8:1.

2. State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009

The subject development is for a boarding house and Division 3 of the SEPP applies to the
development. The assessment standards for boarding houses are outlined in Clause 30 of the
SEPP. The table below details the applicable criteria.

Criteria

Comments

30(1) A consent authority must not consent
to development to which this Division
applies unless it is satisfied of each of the
following:

a) If a boarding house has 5 or more
boarding rooms, at least one communal
living room will be provided,

The development is for an 18 room boarding
house. The plans submitted with the application
show the communal living area will be provided
on the first floor.

b) No boarding room will have a gross floor
area (excluding any area used for the
purpose of private kitchen or bathroom
facilities) of more than 25 square metres,

A review of the floor plans found the average
room is 20m? once the bathroom and kitchen area
was excluded. The development complies with
this requirement.

c) No boarding room will be occupied by
more than 2 adult lodgers,

The applicant is proposing to have one single bed
in each room. In this regard, the intended
occupancy is one person per room.

d) Adequate bathroom and kitchen facilities
will be available within the boarding
house for the use of each lodger,

Each of the rooms have a bathroom and
kitchenette facilities.

e) If the boarding house has capacity to
accommodate 20 or more lodgers, a
boarding room or on site dwelling will be
provided for a boarding house manager,

Not applicable as the proposal is for 18 boarding
rooms.

f) repealed

g) if the boarding house is on land zoned
primarily for commercial purposed, no
part of the ground floor of the boarding
house that fronts a street will be used for
residential purposes unless another
environmental  planning  instrument
permits such a use

The subject land is zoned B2 Local Centre under
the Muswellbrook LEP 2009.
The plans submitted for
development show there will
located on the ground floor.

As the boarding house building fronts a street
within a commercial zone, the ground floor cannot

the proposed
be three units
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Criteria Comments

be used for units. As the MLEP 2009 permits this
type of development, this clause has been
satisfied.

h) at least one parking space will be | The plans indicate there will be four bicycle and
provided for a bicycle, and one will be | four motorbike spaces provided.
provided for a motorcycle, for every five
boarding rooms.

Muswellbrook Development Control Plan 2009

Section 3 — Site Analysis

It is considered that the documentation provided with the Development Application satisfies the
provisions of Section 3 of the Muswellbrook DCP.

Section 4 — Notification

In accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of the Muswellbrook DCP 2009, the Application was
notified for a period of not less than fourteen days from 2 August 2017 to 16 August 2017. A notice
was also placed in the local newspaper, the Hunter Valley News, at the commencement of the
notification period.

One submission was received during the notification period. The issues raised in the submissions
are addressed in this Report.

Section 9 — Local Centre Development

9. LOCAL CENTRE DEVELOPMENT
9.1 Built Form

Building Design The site is located within the B2 Local Centre
Zone, however, the adjoining properties are
residential in nature. Future the surrounding
buildings are single storey. In this regard, the
proposed building is not sympathetic to the
existing character of the street.

Building Height The proposed building will be no higher than
10m. Under the Muswellbrook LEP 2009, the
maximum height of buildings within the B2
Local Centre Zone is 13m.

However, the proposed building will result in
substantial overshadowing of the adjoining
property during the winter months, this being
12 Haydon Street. Council's GIS system
shows the existing structure on 12 Haydon
street being parallel to the proposed boarding
house. In this regard, the overshadowing will
predominately be over the existing dwelling.
The occupier of 12 Haydon Street will still
achieve a minimum 4 hours of solar access to
the private open space area at the rear of the
dwelling.
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9. LOCAL CENTRE DEVELOPMENT

Setbacks

There is no minimum front setback specified
for the B2 Local Centre Zone.

However, this section of the DCP recommends
that the front of buildings should be aligned to
provide a continuous street frontage.

The plans indicate the front setback for the
proposed building will be consistent with
adjoining properties.

Accessibility

The development is proposing a lift to provide
access to all the floors / levels. There are two
accessible rooms provided. One on level 1 and
the other is on level 2.

9.2 Urban Landscape

Landscaping

The applicant has provided a landscaping plan
with the lodgement of the application. This
plan does not indicate the height the plants
when planted. The plan does indicate the
overall mature height of the plants.

Should the application be approved, a
condition will be imposed on the applicant
requiring them to submit a full landscaping plan
indicating species, height at maturity and
confirm the height when planted.

Car Parking

The applicant has provided carparking, bicycle
and motorbike spaces for the development.
Access to the site is via a secured roller door.
In this regard, the carparking should not be
visible from the street.

Section 13 — Flood Prone Land

Under the Hunter River Flood Study 2014 and the Muswellbrook Development Control Plan 2009,
the site is subject to flooding. The study identifies the site as being low hazard flood storage. A
review of the GIS information has found the flood level for the site ranges from 145.45 AHD to
145.49AHD. Further, the GIS also states the height of the flood water would be approximately

50cm in depth.

The plans submitted have adopted a flood level of 145.52AHD and the finished floor level for the
building will be 146.02AHD. From the submitted plans, it is presumed that the building will be a

minimum of 500mm above the known flood level.

Should the application be approved, conditions will be imposed requiring the following:

e Prior to the release of the Construction Certificate, the applicant shall to provide an engineer’s
report to confirm the building can withstand flood forces;

e Prior to the release of the Construction Certificate, the applicant shall provide evidence on the
construction plans that the design of the building has considered the flood proofing code within
Section 13 of the Muswellbrook DCP 2009; and

e Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate, the applicant shall provide a survey report
confirming the finish floor level of the building is a minimum of 146.02AHD.
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Section 16 — Car Parking and Access

This section of the DCP applies to the site as a new building is being proposed. Upon review of
the carparking schedule it was found that the proposed development is not clearly defined within
this table. In this regard, the closest / most similar landuse to a boarding house was that of a
hostel. The carparking requirements for a hostel are as follows:

1.0 Hostel

2.0 1 space per 3 beds
plus 1 per 5 beds visitor
space OR 1 per room plus
1 per 5 rooms visitor
space (whichever is the
greater) bedroom, PLUS

5.0 Spaces per bedroom
may be reduced if in close
proximity to public
transport interchange or
targeted market. The
visitor parking area should

be appropriately located

3.0 1 space per 3| -, sign posted.

employees
4.0

By using the above table to calculate the required carparking for the proposed boarding house, the
amount of carparking required would be:

1 space per room = 18 spaces and 4 visitors spaces (18 boarding rooms / 5 = 3.6 spaces —
rounded up to 4). Hence, the development would require 22 spaces.

Muswellbrook DCP provides staff with a benchmark for developments to be assessed against.
However, should a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP) be applicable to the proposed
development, in this case there is, the SEPP prevails over the DCP.

Consequently, Clause 29(2)e) of the State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental
Housing) outlines the carparking rate for boarding houses. In this regard, the requirement is:

(). in the case of development in an accessible area—at least 0.2 parking spaces are
provided for each boarding room, and

(ii). in the case of development not in an accessible area—at least 0.4 parking spaces are
provided for each boarding room, and

(iii).in the case of any development—not more than 1 parking space is provided for each
person employed in connection with the development and who is resident on site,

The development is in an accessible area as it meets the definition of Clause 4(1)(a) of the SEPP,
which states:

800 metres walking distance of a public entrance to a railway station or a wharf from which a
Sydney Ferries ferry service operates

In this regard, the amount of carparking required by the development is as follows:
18 boarding rooms proposed x 0.2 spaces = 3.6 spaces (rounded up to 4 spaces)

The submitted plans indicate there will be four spaces, including one disabled, provided for the
development. Hence, the development complies with the requirements of the SEPP. In addition to
the carparking spaces, the applicant is proposing to provide 4 motorbike and 4 bicycle spaces for
the development.

Section 20 — Erosion and Sediment Control

The applicant has submitted a sediment and erosion control plan with the application. This plan
indicates what type of measures will be in place for different areas of the development. Should the
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application be approved, a condition will be imposed on the applicant that sediment and erosion
measures are in place throughout the construction of the boarding house.

Section 24 — Waste Management

The applicant has identified two areas for bins to be located. In each section, it is proposed to
have five bins. The bin areas will be located within the carparking area. Should the application be
approved, conditions will be imposed regard garbage collection.

With regard to construction waste, as the site is vacant there will be no demolition waste
generated. However, there will be construction waste during this phase. Again, conditions will be
imposed regarding construction waste.

Section 25 — Stormwater Management

The applicant has submitted a concept stormwater plan which indicates how stormwater will be
managed on site. These plans state there will be a 5000l rainwater tank place on the southern
side of the building to capture roof runoff. The overflow of this tank will be connected to the
proposed internal system which connects to Council’s stormwater system in Haydon Street. There
are no issues with drainage for the site.

Section 94A Contributions Plan 2009

Council’'s Section 94A Contributions Plan 2010 applies to the land. However, under Clause
25J(3)() of the Environmental Planning And Assessment Regulation 2000, no Section 94A
contributions can be implied. Clause 25J(3) states:

(3) The following costs and expenses are not to be included in any estimate or determination of
the proposed cost of carrying out development:

(@) the cost of the land on which the development is to be carried out,

(b) the costs of any repairs to any building or works on the land that are to be retained in
connection with the development,

(c) the costs associated with marketing or financing the development (including interest on
any loans),

(d) the costs associated with legal work carried out or to be carried out in connection with
the development,

(e) project management costs associated with the development,

(f)  the cost of building insurance in respect of the development,

(g) the costs of fittings and furnishings, including any refitting or refurbishing, associated
with the development (except where the development involves an enlargement,
expansion or intensification of a current use of land),

(h) the costs of commercial stock inventory,

(i) any taxes, levies or charges (other than GST) paid or payable in connection with the
development by or under any law,

()  the costs of enabling access by disabled persons in respect of the development,

(k) the costs of energy and water efficiency measures associated with the development,

()  the cost of any development that is provided as affordable housing,

(m) the costs of any development that is the adaptive reuse of a heritage item.

This is due to the application being lodged under State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable
Rental Housing) 2009.

Likely impacts of that development

Context and Setting

The character and nature of Haydon Street is residential and contains a number of single storey
residential dwellings. The proposed building is not consistent with the existing character and
streetscape of Haydon Street, however, in the locality of the area there are other large scale
buildings.
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The street has two zones under the Muswellbrook Local Environmental Plan 2009, these being B2
Local Centre and R1 General Residential.

Under Section 9 of the MDCP 2009, there is no minimum setback stipulated. However, it is
recommended the setback be considerate of the adjoining buildings. In this regard, the proposed
development will be setback a minimum of 4.5m at the closest point. The building is proposed to
be approximately 1.5m from both side boundaries and 3m from the rear boundary.

Built Form

The development is proposed to be three storeys and will have a maximum height of 10m with a
skillion roof. The proposed height of the building complies with the MLEP 2009 requirement of
13m. However, as mentioned above, the character of Haydon Street is predominately single
storey residential dwellings and the bulk and scale of this development would not be in keeping
with the streetscape.

The Statement of Environmental Effects states the building will have a metal roof, brick facade
features and cement rendered walls. The windows in the living and common spaces are proposed
to be single glazed aluminium. The side and rear boundaries are proposed to have a 1.8m timber
paling fence.

Potential Impact on Adjoining Properties

The proposed development is likely to have an impact on adjoining properties with regard to
potential loss of privacy and overshadowing. As stated earlier in the report, the adjoining
properties have a suitable separation distance from the proposed building to not raise any further
concern.

The application included the submission of shadow diagrams which depicts the 9am, 12noon and
3pm on 21 March and 21 June. The shadow diagrams show the property on the southern side,
being 12 Haydon Street, will be heavily impacted upon during the winter months. As discussed
earlier, the proposed development does not appear to meet the objective of Clause 4.3(1)(d),
which states:

to maintain solar access to new and existing dwellings and public recreation areas and to
promote solar access to new buildings,

Safety, Security and Crime Prevention

The Statement of Environmental Effects stated the carparking area would be secured. This will
provide the tenants with added security. The application was referred to the NSW Police for their
consideration and comment. Refer to the earlier discussion regarding the Police’s response.
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Should the application be approved, it is recommended that conditions be imposed on the
development regarding crime prevention and security of the site.

Social Impact on Locality

The applicant has not indicated the type of potential tenants for this development. However, the
application is being lodged under State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing)
2009, Clause 6 of the SEPP defines “affordable housing” as:

affordable housing means housing for very low income households, low income households or
moderate income households, being such households as are prescribed by the regulations or as
are provided for in an environmental planning instrument.

(1) In this Policy, a household is taken to be a very low income household, low income household
or moderate income household if the household:
6.0
(@) has a gross income that is less than 120 per cent of the median household income for
the time being for the Greater Sydney (Greater Capital City Statistical Area) (according
to the Australian Bureau of Statistics) and pays no more than 30 per cent of that gross
income in rent, or

(b) s eligible to occupy rental accommodation under the National Rental Affordability
Scheme and pays no more rent than that which would be charged if the household were
to occupy rental accommodation under that scheme.

(2) In this Policy, residential development is taken to be for the purposes of affordable housing if
the development is on land owned by the Land and Housing Corporation.

In this regard, the NSW Police have raised concerns about potential anti-social behaviour and
increase in crime and have provided conditions to be included in the determination, if approved.

Construction

Should the application be approved, the applicant will be required to obtain a Construction
Certificate. All works proposed with the development will need to comply with the Building Code of
Australia and the applicable Australian Standards.

Submissions

One submission was received during the notification period and is attached as Appendix D.

Name Address Town
Mr B French 12 Haydon Street MUSWELLBROOK NSW 2333

The concerns raised in the submissions are summarised below.

1. Increase in noise due to increase population

Comment: The proposed development does not include any balconies associated with
each boarding room. Under the SEPP, boarding houses are required to
provide communal living areas. The submitted plans indicate one
communal living space on the first floor, which is fully enclosed.

From the review of the submitted documentation it is unlikely that there will
be a substantial increase in noise.
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2. Overshadowing of adjoining dwelling

Comment:

3. Increase in traffic
Comment:

The applicant has provided shadow diagrams, which shows that 12 Haydon
Street will be heavily impacted by overshadowing during the winter months.
However, on closer examination, the overshadowing from the development
will be predominately over the existing dwelling. In this regard, 12 Haydon
Street would still be able to achieve a minimum 4 hours of solar access to
the rear of the property.

The application is being considered under State Environmental Planning
Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009. As mentioned earlier in the
report, this SEPP provides different housing options for very low income
households. In this regard, the development only proposes to provide four
carparking spaces, 4 bicycle and 4 motorbike spaces.

4, Lack of off street carparking

Comment:

The application is being considered under State Environmental Planning
Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009. This policy outlines a number of
different criteria the applicant needs to address with the application for a
boarding house. As discussed earlier, the development complies with the
requirement under the SEPP.

5. Potential lack of security and safety for adjoining residences

Comment:

Public Interest

From the plans submitted with the application, the rear of the proposed
building contains 9 large windows which could allow the tenants to look into
adjoining properties. From Council’'s GIS the adjoining properties to the
rear of the site are approximately 20m from the proposed external wall of
the boarding house. This distance provides suitable separation distance
between the proposed boarding house and the existing dwellings.

In addition to the rear windows, the northern facade of the proposed
building contains 6 large windows. Again, Council’'s GIS system indicates
the distance from the northern wall to the adjoining dwelling is
approximately 8 metres. The dwelling located at 16 Haydon Street is
constructed quite close to the boundary and with the applicant proposing a
1.8m high timber fence, the possibility of loss of privacy is reduced.

Should the application be approved, conditions will be imposed regarding
regarding crime prevention and security of the site.

It is considered that the proposal is not contrary to the public interest due to one submission being
provided and the development will provide a low income housing option to the community of

Muswellbrook.

5 CONCLUSION

The application has been assessed in accordance with the legislation listed at the beginning of the
report. The application has also been placed on public exhibition for a minimum of fourteen days
with one submission being received.

It is recommended the application be approved subject to conditions of consent.
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Disclosure of Political Donations and Gifts:

No disclosures of a political donations or gifts have been made in relation to this application.
SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The development as presented will not result in any specific social implications for Council.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

This development as presented has no direct financial impact upon Council’s adopted budget or forward
estimates.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
The development as presented will not result in any specific policy implications for Council.
STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

Statutory implications relating to assessment of the subject application have been addressed in the body
of the report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

This matter has no specific legal implications for Council.
OPERATIONAL PLAN IMPLICATIONS

This matter has no specific Operational Plan implications for Council.
RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

This matter has no specific risk management implications for Council.
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[ IDENTIFICATION OF APPROVED PLANS 1

1. Development in Accordance with Plans

The development being carried out in accordance with the development application
and the drawings referenced below, and endorsed with Council's approval stamp,
except where amended by the following conditions,

Drawing No. Drawn by Drawing Date
D.001 - Site plan, Site Analysis | White Dickson Architects April 2017
_Plan and Landscape plan :
D.101 - Floor Plans White Dickson Architects April 2017
D.102 - Floor Plans White Dickson Architects April 2017
D.201 - Sections White Dickson Architects April 2017
D.301 - Elevations White Dickson Architects April 2017
D.401 — Shadow diagrams White Dickson Architects April 2017
D.402 - Shadow diagrams White Dickson Architects April 2017
Statement of Environmental | White Dickson Architects April 2017
Effects

2, Plans on Site

A copy of all stamped approved plans, specifications and documents (including the
Construction Certificate if required for the work incorporating certification of
conditions of approval) must be kept on site at all times so as to be readily available
for perusal by any officer of Council or the Principal Certifying Authority.

ANCILLARY MATTERS TO BE ADDRESSED TO THE SATISFACTION OF COUNCIL PRIOR TO THE
ISSUE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE '

3. Construction Management Program

A Construction Management Program must be prepared and submitted to, and
approved in writing by the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of any
Construction Certificate. The program shall include such matters as:

a)

b)

c)

d)

a Safe Work Method Statement;

the proposed method of access to and egress from the site for construction
vehicles, including access routes through the Council area and the location
and type of temporary vehicular crossing for the purpose of minimising
traffic congestion and noise in the area, with no access across public parks
or reserves being allowed;

the proposed phases of construction works on the site, and the expected
duration of each construction phase;

the proposed order in which works on the site will be undertaken, and the
method statements on how various stages of construction will be
undertaken,

the proposed manner in which adjoining property owners will be kept
advised of the timeframes for completion of each phase of
development/construction process;
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OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED UNDER THE ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING AND
ASSESSMENT ACT AND REGULATIONS AND OTHER RELEVANT LEGISLATION

f)

9)

h)

)

the proposed method of loading and unloading excavation and construction
machinery, excavation and building matenials, formwork and the erection of
any part of the structure within the site. Wherever possible mobile cranes
should be located wholly within the site;

the proposed areas within the site to be used for the storage of excavated
materials, construction materials and waste containers during the
construction period;

the proposed method/device to remove loose material from all vehicles
and/or machinery before entering the road reserve, any run-off from the
washing down of vehicles shall be directed to the sediment control system
within the site;

the proposed method of support to any excavation adjacent to adjoining
properties, or the road reserve. The proposed method of support is to be
designed and certified by an appropriately qualified and practising structural
engineer, or equivalent;

proposed protection for Council and adjoining properties. Details are to
include site fencing and the provision of “B" class hoardings and fans over
footpaths and laneways;

proposed protection for Council and adjoining properties;

the location and operation of any on site crane;

the location of any Construction Zone (if required) approved by Council's
Traffic Committee, including a copy of that approval; and

location, identification, treatment and disposal of all hazardous materials on
site.

All work and excavation or construction activities shall be undertaken in accordance
with the approved Construction Management Program and any conditions attached
to the approved plan. A copy of the approved Construction Management Plan, and
any conditions imposed on that plan, shall be kept on the site at all times and made
available to the Certifying Authority upon request.

4.

Building Code of Australia

All building work must be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the
Building Code of Australia.

Boarding House legislation

The proposed boarding house must operate in accordance with the Boarding House
Act 2012 and Boarding House Regulation 2013, or its amended equivalent.
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Affordable Rental Housing SEPP

The proposed development must comply with the requirements of the State
Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009 or its amended
equivalent.

ANCILLARY MATTERS TO BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF THE CONSTRUCTION
CERTIFICATE

7.

10.

1.

Muswellbrook Shire Water and Waste Division

A 'Notice of Requirements' under the Water Management Act 2000 must be
obtained, prior to any Construction Certificate application, detailing water and sewer
extensions to be built and charges to be paid by the applicant. Any charges
identified in the 'Notice of Requirements’ as requiring payment at construction
certificate stage are to be paid prior to release of a Construction Certificate.

Details demonstrating compliance with any requirements for works by Muswelibrook
Shire Council Water & Waste Department are to be provided with the Construction
Certificate application,

The final compliance cerlificate must be submitted to the Principal Certifying
Authority prior to release of the Subdivision or Occupation Certificate.

Structural Engineer’s Plans and details - Proposed Works

A certificate and detailed drawings issued by an appropriately gualified structural
engineer are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority with the Construction
Certificate application, which certifies that the design and construction of the
structural elements will be structural adequate for its intended purpose.

Colours (External)

External colours shall be similar to traditional colour schemes appropriate to the
type and architectural style of the building, and be complimentary to similar
buildings in the immediate vicinity. Details of the proposed colour scheme are to be
submitted to the Certifying Authority for approval with the Construction Certificate.

Bicycle and Motorbike Storage and Parking

Storage areas shall be provided for bicycles and motorbikes within the site to
accommodate a minimum of four bicycles and 4 motorbikes. Such storage areas
shall be designed in accordance with AS 2890.1. Details demonstrating compliance
are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority for approval with the Construction
Certificate.

Parking for People with Disabilities

A total of one car-parking spaces for use by persons with a disability shall be
provided as part of the total car-parking requirements. Consideration must be given
to the means of access from the car-parking spaces to adjacent buildings, to other
areas within the building and to footpath and roads and shall be clearly shown on
the plans submitted to the Certifying Authority for approval with the Construction
Certificate. All details shall be prepared in consideration of, and construction
completed in accordance with Australian Standard AS2890.1 to achieve compliance
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12.

13.

14,

15.

with the Disability Discrimination Act, and the relevant provisions of AS1428.1 and
AS1428.4.

Off Street Car Parking

A total of four off-street car-parking spaces, together with access driveways, shall
be constructed, paved and line marked in accordance with the approved
development plans, appropriate Australian Standards and industry best practice as
appropriate. The plans shall also nominate the allocation of parking spaces for
specific purposes as required by conditions of this consent. A certificate prepared
and certified by an appropriately qualified and practising Civil Engineer for the
construction of these areas in accordance with this requirement shall be submitted
to the Certifying Authority for approval with the Construction Certificate.

Garbage and Recycling Facilities

An appropriate area shall be provided within the premises for the storage of
garbage bins and recycling containers for all waste and recyclable material
generated by this premises. The following requirements shall be met:

a) include provision for the separation and storage in appropriate categories of
material suitable for recycling;

b) the storage area shall be adequately screened from the street and located
behind the building line;

c) garbage enclosures serving residential units are to be located within areas
designated for non-residential uses; and

d) all waste is to be removed weekly from the site by a contractor and disposed
of at a site approved for such purposes

Details of the storage area are to be provided to, and approved by the Certifying
Authority prior to issuing of the Construction Certificate,

Waste Management Plan

A Waste Management Plan is to be submitted with the Construction Certificate. The
plans should include, but not be limited to, the estimated volume of waste and
method of disposal for the construction and operation phases of the development,
all landfill removed from the site, haulage routes, design of on-site wind proof waste
storage and recycling area and administrative arrangements for waste and recycling
management during the construction process.

Access for People with Disabilities

Ramps and access for people with disabilities are to be provided to and within the
entire building. Consideration must be given to the means of dignified and equitable
access from public places to adjacent buildings, to other areas within the building
and to footpath and roads. Compliant access provisions for people with disabilities
shall be clearly shown on the plans submitted to the Certifying Authority for
approval with the Construction Certificate. All details shall be prepared in
consideration of, and construction completed to achieve compliance with the
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16.

17.

18.

provisions of the Disability Discrimination Act, and the relevant provisions of
AS1428.1 and AS1428 4.

Floor Levels for Flooding

Habitable floor levels adjacent to overland flow paths and flood affected land are to
be minimum 500mm above the 1 in 100 year flood level. Plans and certification
prepared by an appropriately qualified person demonstrating compliance with this
requirement are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority for approval with the
Construction Certificate.

Potential Flood Damage to Buildings

An assessment, report and certification by a qualified practising Consulting
Engineer stating that the structure has been designed to withstand the flood
pressures, including debris and buoyancy forces, imposed in the event of a 1% AEP
flood and that the structure will not sustain unacceptable damage from the impact of
floodwater and debris is to be submitted to the Certifying Authority for approval with
the Construction Certificate.

Water Management Act 2000

Prior to the release of the Construction Certificate, the applicant is consult with DPI
Water to determine if a Controlled Activity Approval is required under the Water
Management Act.

| CONDITIONS THAT MUST BE ADDRESSED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT |

19.

20.

21,

Sediment and Erosion Control

All required erosion and sedimentation techniques are to be properly installed prior
to the commencement of any site works and maintained in a functional and effective
condition throughout the construction activities until the site is stabilised.

Site Sign

A sign must be erected in a prominent position on any work site on which work
involved in the erection or demolition of a building is being carried out:

(a) stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited;

(b) showing the name of the principal contractor (or person in charge of the work
site), and a telephone number at which that person may be contacted at any
time for business purposes and outside working hours; and

(c) showing the name, address and telephone number of the Principal Certifying
Authority for the work.

Any such sign must be maintained while building work is being carried out, but must
be removed when the work has been completed.

Construction Certificate Requirement

No works shall commence on site until such time as a Construction Certificate has
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22,

23,

been issued for either part or all of the works. If a certificale is issued for part of the
works it must cover the works being undertaken onsite.

Damage to Public Infrastructure

The applicant shall bear the cost of all restoration works to Council property
damaged during the course of this development. The applicant shall submit in
writing and/or photographic record, of any existing damage to Council property
before commencement of work.

Note:  This documentation will be used to resolve any dispute over damage to infrastructure. If no
documentation is received prior to commencement of work it will be assumed that the
infrastructure was undamaged and the applicant will be required to restore all damaged
Infrastructure at their expense.

Site Facilities

(a)

(b)
(€
(d)

(e)
M

(9)
(h)

(i)

0

For development that involves building work, the work site must be fully

enclosed by a temporary security fence (or hoarding) before work

commences.

A minimum width of 1.2m must be provided between the work site and the

edge of the roadway so as to facilitate the safe movement of pedestrians.

Any such hoarding or fence is to be removed when the work has been

completed.

A garbage receptacle fitted with a tight fitting lid for the reception of all food

scraps and papers from the work site must be provided prior to building work

commencing and must be maintained and serviced for the duration of the

work.

Toilet facilities must be provided on the work site at the rate of one toilet for

every 20 persons or part of 20 persons employed at the work site.

Each toilet provided must:

*  be a standard flushing toilet, connected to a public sewer, or

« if connection to a public sewer is not available, to an on-site effluent
disposal system approved by the council, or

* an approved temporary chemical closet.

The provision of toilet faciliies must be completed before any other work is

commenced.

A person having the benefit of this certificate who causes an excavation that

extends below the level of the base of the footings of a building on an

adjoining allotment of land must at their own expense and where necessary:

+  protect and support the building from damage, and

» If necessary, underpin and support the building in accordance with the
details prepared by a professional engineer,

A person having the benefit of this certificate who causes the excavation

must, at least 7 days before commencing this work, give notice of intention to

do so to the owner of the adjoining allotment of land and provide particulars of

the proposed work.

Erosion and sediment controls must be provided in accordance with the

details shown on the approved plans, prior to the disturbance of any soil on

the work site.
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24,

25,

26.

Water Meter

A water meter issued and installed by Muswellbrook Water & Waste depariment
must be connected to the town's reticulated water supply prior to any
commencement.

Section 68 Local Government Act Approval

Prior to the commencement of any works it shall be necessary for the applicant to
obtain a Section 68 Local Government Act approval for all water supply and sewer
drainage works.

Vehicle Entry

Prior to commencing construction of the driveway/vehicle crossing/layback, within

the road reserve, a permit for the work must be obtained from Council, under
Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993.

| CONDITIONS THAT MUST BE COMPLIED WITH DURING DEMOLITION AND BUILDING WORK |

27.

28.

29,

30.

Construction Hours

(a) Subject to this clause, building construction is to be carried out during the
following hours:

i. between Monday to Friday (inclusive)}—7.00am to 6.00pm
ii. on a Saturday—8.00am to 1.00pm

(b) Building construction must not be carried out on a Sunday or a public
holidays.

(¢) Excavation works must only be carried out between Monday to Friday
(inclusive) between 8.00am and 5.00pm.

(d) The builder and excavator must display, on-site, their 24 hour contact
telephone numbers, which are to be clearly visible and legible from any public
place adjoining the site.

Prohibition on Use of Pavements

Building materials and equipment must be stored wholly within the work site, unless
prior written approval has been obtained from Council. Equipment must not be
operated on the footpath or roadway, unless prior written approval has been
obtained from council.

Second Hand Materials

Second hand materials shall not be used unless specifically approved by the
Certifying Authority in writing.

No Removal of Trees on Public Property
No trees on public property (footpaths, roads, reserves, etc.) unless specifically

approved in this consent shall be removed or damaged during construction
including for the erection of any fences, hoardings or other temporary works.,
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31.

32.

33.

35.

Progress Survey — Major Development

In order to ensure compliance with approved plans, a Survey Certificate, to
Australian Height Datum, shall be prepared by a Registered Surveyor as follows:-

(a) at the initial footing/slab reinforcement inspection of the ground floor level
indicating the level of that floor and the relationship of the building to the
boundaries;

(b) atthe completed height of the building;

(c) at completion, the relationship of the building, and any projections thereto, to
the boundaries.

Progress certifications in response to points (a) through (c) shall be provided to the
Principal Cerlifying Authority at the time of carrying out relevant progress
inspections. Under no circumstances will work be allowed to proceed should such
survey information be unavailable or reveal discrepancies between the approved
plans and the proposed works.

Dust Emission and Air Quality

(a) Materials must not be burnt on the site.

(b) Vehicles entering and leaving the site with soil or fill material must be covered.

(c) Dust suppression measures must be carried out to minimise wind-borne
emissions in addition odour suppression measures must also be carried out
where appropriate so as to prevent nuisance occurring at adjoining properties.

Excavation

(@) All excavations and backfilling associated with the erection of a building must
be executed safely and in accordance with appropriate professional
standards.

(b) All excavations associated with the erection of a building must be properly
guarded and protected to prevent them from being dangerous to life or

property.

(c) The builder is to ensure that persons working on the site comply with the
WorkCover Authority's requirements.

Hot Water Installations

Hot water installations shall be in accordance with AS 3500 and shall deliver hot
water to all sanitary fixtures used primarily for personal hygiene purposes, at a
temperature not exceeding 50°C

Mandatory Council Inspections

At the following stages of construction, a satisfactory report from Council is to be
obtained prior to works proceeding:
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(a) Sewer drains — all pipes are to be correctly laid, suitably bedded and ready
to backfill. Suitable backfill material is to be available on site at the time of
inspection.

(b) Connection of stormwater drainage to easement— following installation and
bedding of drainage lines and prior to backfilling

(c) Driveway crossover of the footpath or nature strip:
- prior to pouring concrete
- Section 138 Roads Act Permit required prior to inspection being
carried out.

(d) Council infrastructure- at completion of works and prior to an Occupation
Certificate inspection.

To arrange an inspection please contact Council's Environmental Service
Department on (02) 6549 3745.

Note: Inspection fees will be charged in accordance with Council's adopted fees and charges and
must be paid prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

CONDITIONS WHICH MUST BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF THE OCCUPATION
CERTIFICATE ‘

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Occupation

The building is not to be used or occupied until a final inspection has been carried
out and an occupation certificate has been obtained from the Principal Certifying
Authority.

Fences - boundary

Prior to the issuing of any Occupation Certificate, the applicant shall install a 1.8m
high timber paling fence for the north, south and western boundaries of the site.

Fences - gates

Access gates must be hung so that they do not encroach on a footpath or roadway.
Access for People with Disabilities

Provision shall be made for access to and within the building on the site for persons
with a disability in accordance with the provisions of AS 1428 Part 1 prior to the
issue of any Occupation Certificate.

Disposal Information

Upon completion of works and prior to occupation, the person entitled to act on this
consent shall provide to Council the following information;

(a) the total tonnage of all waste and excavated material disposed of from the
site;
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41.

42.

43,

45,

46.

(b) the disposal points and methods used; and
(c) a copy of all disposal receipts are to be provided
Operational Plan

An Operational Plan shall be prepared to the satisfaction of the Certifying Authority

and approved prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate. As a minimum the

Operational Plan is to include the following:

. Compliance with State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental
Housing) 2009 or its amended equivalent

. Compliance with the Boarding House Act 2010 and Regulations 2013 or its
amended equivalent,

. Details on how illegal, nuisance and overflow parking will be managed if it
arises.

Identification of Non Potable Water

Prior to the issuing of any Occupation Certificate, signage in accordance with
AS3500.1 shall be installed to all taps that supplied by the rainwater tank where
mains reticulated water supply is provided to the site.

Connection to Sewer

The premises shall be connected to the sewer system in accordance with the
Australian Standard 3500. A works as executed plan on Council's approved form is
to be submitted to Council within seven (7) days following the final drainage
inspection and prior to any Occupation Certificate being issued.

Allocation of Parking Areas

All required parking areas, driveways and turning areas shall be fully constructed,
sealed and sign posted in accordance with the consent prior to the release of any
Occupation Certificate.

Installation of Driveways

Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate the applicant shall provide a sealed
vehicular access way, in compliance with the following:

(a) the sealed vehicular access way shall comply with Muswellbrook Shire
Council footpath, kerb and guttering policy to ensure that an 85" percentile
vehicle (as defined as AS2890.1) will not scrape/strike the surface of the
carriageway, layback, vehicular crossing or garage floor;

(b) the width of the vehicular layback shall be a maximum of 6 metres (including
the wings),

(c) the crossing (between the layback and the property boundary) shall be placed
on a single straight grade of between 2 & 5%, falling to the back of the
layback;

Public Infrastructure Inspection
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47.

48.

49.

50.

Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate written confirmation is to be
obtained from Muswellbrook Shire Council’ Building Section that all damage caused
to Council's infrastructure has been reinstated to a satisfactory condition. Council's
inspection charges will apply.

Final Compliance Certificate for Water Supply and Sewerage Works

The final compliance certificate for water supply and sewerage works is to be
obtained from Muswellbrook Shire Council Water & Waste Department and a copy
must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to release of any
Occupation Certificate.

Evidence of mandatory inspections

Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate, a satisfactory inspection report is to
be obtained from Council confirming that the following inspections have been
carried out:

(a) Sewer drainage

(b) Connection of stormwater drainage to easement
(c) Driveway crossover of the footpath or nature strip
(d) Council infrastructure

Consolidation of lots

Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate, the applicant shall provide evidence
to the Certifying Authority, which confirms Lots 1 and 2 DP 551973 have been
consolidated into one title.

NSW Police - Maintenance Plan

Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate, the applicant shall provide to the

Certifying Authority, a Site Maintenance Plan which as a minimum is to address
repairs, rapid graffiti removal and general upkeep of the development.

| CONDITIONS THAT MUST BE COMPLIED WITH AT ALL TIMES |

51.

52.

53.

Stormwater Disposal

All stormwater from the development including all hardstandings and overflows from
rainwater tanks is to be collected and disposed of in accordance with the
stormwater drainage plan.

Impact on Amenity of Surrounding Area - Non Residential Areas

The implementation and intensity of this development shall not adversely affect the
amenity of the neighbourhood by reason of excessive levels of illumination (internal
or external), solar glare arising from the building materials utilised in any
construction processes or fit-out, the emission of noises, noxious fumes, odours
and waste.

Waste Collection
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55.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

Waste and recyclable material, generated by this premises, must not be collected
between the hours of 10pm and 6am on any day.

Noise from Rainwater Tank Pump

Pumps used in association with rainwater water supplies are not to exceed the
ambient noise level by more than 5dB(A) when measured at the boundary,

Landscaping

The landscaped area of the development is to be maintained at all times in
accordance with the approved landscape plan

Flood Evacuation Plan

A Flood Evacuation Plan for users of the development is to be prepared by the
applicant and submitted to Council within six months of the occupation Certificate
being issued. This Plan is to be maintained throughout the life of the development.

Traffic movements
All vehicles are to enter and leave the site in a forward direction at all times.
NSW Police - Lighting (external — general)

The applicant shall ensure, at all times, the external lighting complies with the
applicable Australian Standard and is projected away from the building towards
pathways and gates but not towards windows or doors.

Note: The use of sensor lighting can save on electricity as well as being a deterrent for uninvited
persons,

NSW Police - Lighting (Carpark)

The applicant shall ensure, at all times, the lighting of the carparking area should be
of a standard to allow clear vision after dark and illuminate the internal stairs. The
interior paint colour should be white to help reflect the light.

NSW Police - Lights

The applicant shall ensure, at all times, the external lights in public areas are vandal
resistant.

NSW Police — Access Control

a) The external doors for the development shall be provided with an entry
control system, like a keypad,

b) Each entry door to the individual rooms shall be provided with a door viewer
/ peep holes at varying heights to accommodate disabled persons.

c) The security gate to the carparking area shall remain closed before and after
guests leave the site. At no time should the security gate remain open for
convenience.

Attachment A

Page 75



Item 10.3 - Attachment A Recommended Conditions

62,

63.

65.

Affordable Housing restriction

The applicant shall ensure at all times, the occupants of the boarding house meet
the criteria for “affordable housing™ as defined in the State Environmental Planning
Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009 or its amended equivalent.

Number of Occupants

The development is limited to no more than one occupant per room at all times and
shall not exceed 18 occupants in total.

Operational Plan - review

The Operational Plan must be reviewed, prepared and submitted by the Operator to
Council within three months of any written request by Council. The revised
Operational Plan will be reviewed by Council and when the Plan is to Council's
satisfaction, it will be approved.

Annual report

The applicant shall prepare an annual report, which is to be made available to
Council upon request, detailing:

how many residents frequented the boarding house

the length of stay for each resident

the number of visitors to the site

any non-compliances with the Operational Plan

| REASON FOR IMPOSITION OF CONDITIONS: |

The reason for the imposition of the following conditions is to ensure, to Council's satisfaction, the
objects of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (as amended) are achieved:

(a)

(b)

(c)

To encourage:

(i) The proper management, development and conservation of natural and artificial
resources, including agricultural land, natural areas, forest, minerals, water, cities,
towns, and villages for the purpose of promoting the social and economic welfare of the
community and a better environment;

(i)  The promotion and co-ordination of the orderly and economic use of development of
land;

(ili)  The protection, provision, and co-ordination of communication and utility services;

(iv)  The provision of land for public purposes;

(v)  The provision and co-ordination of community services and facilities;

(vi) The protection of the environment, including the protection and conservation of native
animals and plants including threatened species, populations, and ecological
communities and their habitats:

(vii) Ecologically Sustainable Development; and

(viii) The provision and maintenance of affordable housing.

To promote the sharing of the responsibility for environmental planning between the different
levels of government in the State.

To provide increased opportunity for public involvement and participation in environmental
planning and assessment.
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| ADVICE:

(1)

(2)

Location of Services

Prior to construction work commencing you should ensure that all services have
been clearly located and identified by contacting “Dial before you Dig" by
telephoning 1100.

Location of Mailbox

The mailbox erected to service the property shall not encroach on Council's
footpath or kerb area.
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NSW Police Force

Muswellbrook Shire Council 25 September 2017
PO Box 122
Muswellbrook. NSW 2333

Attention: Donna Watson
Development Planner

RE: Development Application No. 70/2017 — Boarding House
Property: Lot 1 DP: 551973 — 14 Hayden Street Muswellbrook.

Dear Donna,

A copy of the D. A. plans and & statement of environmental effects were forwarded to Hunter
Valley Police for comment on the proposed development,

In April, 2001 the NSW Minister for Planning introduced Crime Prevention Guidelines to
Section 79C of the Environment Planning and Assessment Act, 1979, These guidelines
require consent authorities to ensure that development provides safety and sceurity to users
and the community. ‘If a development presents a crime risk, the guidelines can be used to
Jjustify modification of the development to minimise crime risk, or, refusal of the
development on the grounds that crime risk cannot be appropriately minimised.’

Crime Prevention Through Environmmental Design (CPTED)

Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) is a crime prevention strategy
that focuses on the planning, design and structure of cities and neighbourhoods. It reduces
opportunities for crime by using design and place management principles that reduce the
likelihood of essential ctime ingredients from intersecting in time and space.

Predatory offenders often make cost-benefit assessments of potential victims and locations
before committing crime. CPTED aims to create the reality (or perception) that the costs of
committing crime are greater than the likely benefits. This is achieved by creating
environmental and social conditions that:

HUNTER VALLEY LOCAL AREA COMMAND

26 William Street  Muswellbrook NSW 2333

T 02 6542 6999 EN 61999 F 02 6542 6911 EN 61911 W www.police.nsw.gov.au
TTY 02 9211 3776 for the hearing and speech impaired ABN 43 108 613 180

TRIPLE ZERO (000) POLICE ASSISTANCE LINE (131 4 e CRIME STOPPERS (1800 333 000)

-Emergency enly 5 T T VR . For nom. ‘sfnefgenties " -, "
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e Maximize risk to offenders (increasing the likelihood of detcction, challenge and
apprehension}.

o Maximise the effort required to commit crime (increasing the time, energy and
resources required to commit crime)

¢ Minimise the actual and perceived benefits of crime (removing, minimizing or
concealing crime attractors and rewards) and

¢ Minimise excuse making opportunities (removing conditions that encourage/facilitate
rationalization of inappropriate behaviour)

The proposed development application is for the construction of 3 storey, 18 room boarding
house with onsite parking. Currently the proposed location is a vacant block of land with
residential houses on either side and nearby. Access to the development is from Haydon
Street which is a local road used to access Wilkinson Ave for sporting facilities and other
residence accessing their homes. Hayden Street is also used as a “rat run” for people trying to
avoid the traffic control lights at Maitiand and Sydney Street.

[ have petused the plans and documents supplied by Muswellbrook Shire Council. The plans
and documents supplied have a CPTED assessment included. | have assessed these
document and have the following comments.-

There is no Crime Prevention through Envirenmental Design assessment attached to the
plans. Therefore the following comments are made:-

Lighting:

Lighting should meet minimum Australian and New Zealand Standards. Lighting in the car
park should be of a standard to allow clear vision after dark and illuminate the internal stairs.
There should be an even distribution of effective lighting. The interior paint colour should be
white to help reflect light.

External lights should be projected away from the building towards path ways and gates but
not towards windows or deors. The use of sensor lights can save on electricity as well as
being 2 deterrent for uninvited persons.

Lights in public areas should be vandal resistant. A site maintenance plan should be part of
any approval addressing repairs, rapid graffiti removal and general up kcep of the

development.

Territorial Reinforcement:

The guardianship of the property will be mainly provided by the occupants. It is proposed
that the development will have 1.8m high paling fence on both sides and rear. This will
reduce any natural surveillance from nearby properties and poses as a target for graffiti.
Consideration should be given to the construction of a steel security fence. This will allow
natural surveillance into the property as well as reduce the opportuaity for the fence being
damaged due to graffiti.
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Access control:

The development has a number of different access points both internally and externally. All
windows and doors should be fitted with locks to the Australian and New Zealand standard.
Most break ins occur at the side and rear of buildings.

Recommendation: That the external doors are fitted with entry control systems like a
keypad as well as the door from the garage into the ground level lobby. Entry into the
complex should be controlled by those living in the building.

Recommendation: That each entry door to the boarding rooms should be fitted with a door
viewer/peep hole and perhaps two, at varying heights for the disabled access rooms. This
allows identification of who is outside the door before opening it.

! Recommendation: Appropriate signage to be displayed around the building to deter
uninvited persons.

Car park: The plans state that the basement car park will have a roller door at the front. To
reduce unauthorised entry into the building this roller door will need fo be closed after use
and not left open for convenience. All vehicle movement into and out of the car park should
be in a forward movement as outlined in the plans.

The basement car park has made provisions for 4 car spaces, with 1 being designated for
disabled parking. This may meet the requirements for the application but Police are
concerned that with 18 rooms, there will be more residents with vehicles than car park
spaces. Parking on the footpath or the street outside the development will present a danger to
both pedestrians and vehicular traffic.

Further considerations:

The plans display 2 disabled access rooms. 1 room is on the first floor and 1 on the second
floor. The building is serviced by a lift and steirs. There is no mention in the attached
documents if there is a backup generator that will be used in the event of a power blackout or
maintenance plan for other service difficulty with the lifi. Police hold concerns that in the
event that the lift is unserviceable or there is a fire, those disabled residence that rely on the
lift and are unable to use the stairs, may be trapped.

Perhaps consideration should be given to the disabled rooms being placed on the ground
floor level.

Conclusion

The New South Wales Police have a vital interest in ensuring the safety of members of the
community and their property. By using the recommendations contained in this evaluation,
any person who does so acknowledges that:

1. It is not possible to make areas evaluated by the NSWP absolutely safe for members
of the community or their property
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2. It is based upon the information provided to the NSWP at the time the evaluation was
made,

3. The evaluation is a confidential document and is for use by the consent authority or
organizations referred to on page 1 only,

4. The contents of this evaluation are not to be copied or circulated otherwise that for the
purposes of the consent authority or organization referred to on page 1.

The NSW Police hopes that by using the recommendations contained in this document,
criminal activity will be Teduced and the safety of members of the community and their
property will be increased. However, it does not guarantec that all risks have been identified,
or that the area evaluated will be free from criminal activity if its recommendations are
followed.

We would like to thank you for the opportunity of inspecting the plans for this development
and should you require further information on the subjects mentioned within this report feel
free to contact Senior Constable Sheree Gray, Crime Prevention Officer, Hunter Valley LAC,
Phone 6542-6999.

Yours sincerely

< _D@L\"ﬁ"‘f

L
T. Seymour
Detective Chief Inspector
Crime Manager
Hunter Valley Local Area Command.
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Barry Charles French

12 Haydon Street
MUSWELLBROOK NSW 2333
Phone: 0401 460 322

22 August 2017

Attention: The General Manager
Muswellbrook Shire Council

157 Maitland Street,
MUSWELLBROOK NSW 2333

Dear the General Manager,

| Barry Charles French of 12 Haydon Street, Muswellbrook am writing to express my
concemns with the proposed Boarding House Development at 14 Haydon Street,
Muswellbrook (DA 70/2017).

My concerns with this development are:

* Increase in noise due to the increased population

e Over shadowing of my house and yard due to the large scale of the development

* Increased traffic on the road and not enough car spaces for the proposed 18 rooms

* Increased pedestrian traffic of people coming and going from the proposed boarding
house

= Perception of security and safety issued with an increased population

» Disruption to the neighborhood and the closely connect community

| can be contacted on 0401 460 322 or via post.

Kind regards,

Barry Charles French /
; NS
/6«/‘/’7 - é B '

5. P! e 1 23
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ORDINARY MEETING SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA 14 NOVEMBER 2017

10.4 REQUEST TO WAIVE SECTION 68 APPLICATION FEE - COMPASS
HOUSING COMMUNITY CHRISTMAS PARTY

Responsible Officer: Fiona Plesman - Director - Planning, Community & Corporate
Services

Author: Donna Watson - Development Planner

Community Plan Issue: Collaborative and responsive community leadership that meets the
expectations and anticipates the needs of the community

Community Plan Goal: Enhanced collaboration with  Council's community and

stakeholders to ensure Council and its elected arm is best placed
to make decisions in the best interest of the community.

Community Plan Strategy: Implement and maintain a diverse range of communication
channels between Council and community stakeholders..

Attachments: Nil

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is for Council to consider a request from Compass Housing, for the fees for an
application for an activity approval under the Local Government Act 1993 that they have submitted
recently, to be waived.

RECOMMENDATION
1. Council waive the fee of $311.50 payable by Compass Housing for the application 10/2017.
2. The fee amount to be allocated from the Sundries Donations budget.
Moved: Seconded:
Cr J. Ledlin Cr S. Bailey Cr G. McNeill
Cr J. Foy Cr M. Green Cr R. Scholes
Cr S. Reynolds Cr B.N. Woodruff Cr S. Ward
Cr J.F. Eades Cr M. Bowditch Cr M.L. Rush
BACKGROUND

An application for an Activity Approval has been received for a community event at 55 — 75 Wollombi
Road Muswellbrook (Wollombi Park), to be held on Friday 22 December 2017. The event is being
organised by Compass Housing who are a non-for profit community organisation. Applications for
activity approvals require the payment of a fee as resolved by Council in the annual adoption of fees.
The applicant has included in their application a request that Council waive the fee on the basis they are
non-for profit organisation and the events raise money for charity.
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CONSULTATION

Discussions regarding the status of the Sundries Donations budget have taken place with the Co-
ordinator Finance.

REPORT

Application 10/2017 for an Activity Approval has been received for a community event at Wollombi Park.
The event is a community Christmas party. The event is being organised by Compass Housing who are
non-for profit community organisation. Applications for activity approval require the payment of a fee as
resolved by Council in the annual adoption of fees. The applicant has included in their application a
request that Council waive the fee on the basis they are non-for profit organisation and the events raise
money for charity. The request to waiver the fees was received by Council on Friday 10 November 2017.
The urgency for this matter to be considered is that the event can not be finalised until Council has made
a decision on the request. Compass would like to be able to promote the event and can not do so until
the request has been considered.

The fee for the application is $311.50. There are adequate funds in the Sundries Donation budget to
allocate this funding from. It is suggested that the request is a reasonable request given the events are
charity events and the organiser is a non-for profit organisation.

OPTIONS

The options for Council are to waive the fees either in full or in part or refuse to waive the fee.

CONCLUSION

The request for the waiving of fees is a reasonable request given the event is for the community and the
organiser is a non-for profit organisation. There are adequate funds in the Sundries Donation budget to
allocate this funding from.

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The waiving of the application fee assists in the success of these community events which contribute to
the well-being of residents. The event supports a service that contributes to the safety of the community.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are adequate funds in the Sundries Donation budget to allocate this funding from.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

No policy exists to guide this decision.

STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS
None applicable

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
None applicable

OPERATIONAL PLAN IMPLICATIONS

None applicable

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

None applicable
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12 CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

12.5 2016/17 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attachments: A. 2016-17 Financial Statements

Responsible Officer: Fiona Plesman - Director - Planning, Community & Corporate
Services

Author: Natalia Cowley - Manager, Corporate Services

Community Plan Issue: Progressive leadership

Community Plan Goal: That Muswellbrook Shire is well led and managed

Community Plan Strategy: A financially sustainable council

PURPOSE

To present and accept the 2016/17 General Purpose Financial Reports, Special Purpose Financial
Reports, Special Schedules and Audit Reports for the year ended 30 June 2017.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

Council accept the General Purpose Financial Reports, Special Purpose Financial Reports,
Special Schedules and Audit Reports for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Moved: Seconded:

BACKGROUND

Council is required to accept the annual financial statements in accordance with Section 418 (3) of the
Local Government Act 1993. The required notice in regard to advising that the statements will be
considered at this meeting has been provided.

CONSULTATION

Council’s External Auditors — Hill Rogers Spencer Steer

REPORT

A full copy of the General Purpose Financial Statements, Special Purpose Financial Reports and Special
Schedules, along with the attendant Auditor Reports has been provided for each Councillor.

Income Statement

Overall, the operating result for the consolidated statements show a surplus of $10.0m ($14.8m in 2016).
The $4.8m decrease in operating surplus since last year is due to a $9.9M reduction in capital grants,
which is offset by:

e $1.6m increase in rental income;

e $1m increase in employee benefits and on-costs due to award increases; competencies’ step
ups; termination cost increases; lower salary capitalisations and new departmental units;

e $1.7m decrease in materials and contracts as a result of the drop in capital grants;
e $2m decrease in other expenses as a result of fair value adjustments on investment properties.

Council’s sources of revenue are broken down as follows:
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Viostly state funding W
& planning “e. Capital

agreements grants,
contributions $5,732 Bt
Common- grants, __charges,
$19,243

wealth & $9,413
state funding

Rental on Other
investment revenues, _
properties $3,124

Interest and User charges
investments, and fees,
All numbers $2,392 $11,592

are in ‘000

The breakdown of rates and annual charges is shown in the graph below:

Ordinary rates Annual Charges

1%
$139 ;
Ay

Residential Farmiand Mining

All numbers
are in ‘000

Council’'s expenses are broken down as follows:
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Waste levy; Other Borrowing

electricity; costs, $1,379
insurance; :

expenses,
$5,060

street lighting

Employee
benefits and
on-costs,
$13,817
Depreciation
and
amortisation,
$10,409
Materials and
contracts,
510,883

All numbers
are in ‘000

Council’s total comprehensive income for the year of $1.3m is driven by $7.3m loss on the revaluation of
the sewerage network and $1.8m loss on the revaluation of community land.

Over the past 3 years, Council has been steadily improving its operating performance and expense
management. This can be easily seen from the operating performance ratio. The operating performance
ratio measures how well Council contained operating expenditure within operating revenue (excluding
capital grants and contributions, fair value adjustments and reversal of revaluation decrements). The
benchmark set by the Office of Local Government (OLG) is greater than zero percent. Here’s Council’s
ratio over the past 3 years:

8.12%

2.62%

2016 2017

-3.09%

Statement of Financial Position

Council’s total assets have decreased by $0.4m to $650.2m since prior year, due to a decrease in
investments driven by the net transfers from restrictions.

Total liabilities have decreased by $1.8m as loans are being repaid or refinanced.

In regards to the consolidated local government industry indicators, as shown in note 13a, Council is
comfortably performing above the benchmarks for all ratios apart from the “rates, annual charges,
interest and extra charges outstanding percentage”, which at 14.92% is above the benchmark of less
than 10%. This is due to the increase in doubtful debts as a percentage of collectible rates and annual
charges due to the delayed replacement of Council’s debt collector. There were also a number of late
mining debtor issues.
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CONCLUSION

The results for the consolidated statements, show a surplus of $10.0m in the operating result from
continuing operations.

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Annual Financial reports indicate that Council is in a sound financial state and this is supported by
the Auditor’s Report.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable

STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable

OPERATIONAL PLAN IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable
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Financial Statemants 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Contents Page

1

2.

. Understanding Council’s Financial Statements 2

Statement by Councillors and Management 3

. Primary Financial Statements:

- Income Statement

— Statement of Comprehensive Income
— Statement of Financial Position

- Statement of Changes in Equity

— Statement of Cash Flows

o~ O

. Notes to the Financial Statements 9

. Independent Auditor's Reports:

- On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2])
— On the Conduct of the Audit (Sect 417 [3))

&8

Overview

(i

(i)

{uiy

(iv)

These financial statements are General Purpose Financial Statements and cover the operations for
Muswellbrook Shire Council.

Muswellbrook Shire Council is @ body politic of NSW, Australia - being constituted as a local government area
by proclamation and Is duly empowered by the Local Government Act 1993 (LGA),

Council's guiding principles are detalled In Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

* principles applying lo the exercise of functions generally by council,
* principles to be applied when making decisions,

* principles of community participation,

* principles of sound financial management, and

* principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework,
A descnption of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b)
All figures prasented in these financial statements are presented In Australian currency,

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Council on 30 October 2017,
Council has the power to amend and reissue these financial statements.
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Staternents 2017

Understanding Council's financial statements

Introduction

Each year, individual local governments across New
South Wales are required to present a set of audited
financial statements to their council and community.

What you will find in the statements

The financial statements set out the financial
performance, financial position and cash flows of
Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2017.

The format of the financial statements is standard
across all NSW Councils and complies with both the
accounting and reporting requirements of Australian
Accounting Standards and requirements as set
down by the Office of Local Government.

About the Councillor/Management Statement

The financial statements must be certified by senior
staff as ‘presenting fairly' the Council's financial
results for the year and are required to be adopted
by Council — ensuring both responsibility for and
ownership of the financial statements.

About the primary financial statements

The financial statements incorporate five ‘primary’
financial statements:

1. The Income Statement

Summarises Council's financial performance for the
year, listing all income and expenses.

This statement also displays Council's original
adopted budget to provide a comparison between
what was projected and what actually occurred.
2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income

Primarily records changes in the fair value of
Council's  Infrastructure, Property, Plant and
Equipment.

3. The Statement of Financial Position

A 30 June snapshot of Council’s financial position
Indicating its assets, liabilities and “net wealth”,

4. The Statement of Changes in Equity

The overall change for the year (in dollars) of
Council’s “net wealth".

5. The Statement of Cash Flows

Indicates where Council's cash came from and
where it was spent. This statement also displays
Council's original adopted budget to provide a
comparison between what was projected and what
actually occurred.

About the Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide
greater detail and additional information on the five
primary financial statements,

About the Auditor's Reports

Council's annual financial statements are required to
be audited by the NSW Audit Office. In NSW the
auditor provides 2 audit reports:

1. an opinion on whether the financial statements
present fairly the Council's financial performance
and position, and

2. their observations on the conduct of the audit,
including commentary on the Council's financial
performance and financial position.

Who uses the financial statements?

The financial statements are publicly available
documents and must be presented at a Council
meeting between seven days and five weeks after
the date of the Audit Report.

The public can make submissions to Council up to
seven days subsequent to the public presentation of
the financial statements.

Council is required to forward an audited set of

financial statements to the Office of Local
Government.
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
* the Local Govaernment Act 1983 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder,
* the Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements, and

¢ 1he Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these financial statements:
* present fairly the Council's operating result and financial position for the year. and

* accord with Council's accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed In accordance with a resolution of Council made on 12 September 2017,

Cr. M. Rush \ Cr. $7Bailpy
Mayor ywior

™
Mr, S. McDonald Mrs, g.CowIOy o/l
General manager Res unting officer
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Attachment A Page 99



Item 12.5 - Attachment A 2016-17 Financial Statements

Financal Statements 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Budget Actual Actual
2017  $'000 Notes 2017 2016
Income from continuing operations
Revenue:
19,377 Rates and annual charges ia 19,243 18,420
13,529  User charges and fees ) 11,592 11,495
2,254 Interest and investment revenue ¢ 2,392 2,586
2,325 Other revenues ¥ 3,124 1,563
6,251  Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes '« | 9,413 9,023
3,964 Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3e | 5732 15,638
Other income:
— Net gains from the disposal of assets 5 86 4
Net share of interests in joint ventures and
— associates using the equity method a 14 2
47,700 Total income from continuing operations 51,596 58,731
Expenses from continuing operations
13,696 Employee benefits and on-costs \a 13,817 12,876
1,716 Borrowing cosls 4o 1,379 973
10,823 Materials and contracts 4 10,883 12,542
11,287 Depreciation and amortisation id 10,409 9,874
- Impairment 4| - 600
4805  Other expenses de 5060  7.060
42427 Total expenses from continuing operations 41,548 43,925
5273 Operating result from continuing operations 10,048 14,806
Discontinued operations
—  Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 24 - -
5273 Net operating result for the year 10,048 14,806
5,273  Net operating result attributable to Council 10,048 14,806
~  Net operating result attributable to non-controlling interests - -
Net operating result for the year before grants and
1,308 contributions provided for capital purposes 4316 (832)
This statement should be read in conjuncton with the accompanying notes. page 4
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Actual Actual
$ '000 Notes 2017 2016
Net operating result for the year (as per Income Statement) 10,048 14,806
Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of |,PP&E 200 (il (8,708) 2,330
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently
to the operating result (8,708) 2,330
Amounts which will be reclassified subseqguently to the operating result
when specific conditions are met
Nil
Total other comprehensive income for the year (8,708) 2,330
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,340 17,136
Total comprehensive income attributable to Council 1,340 17,136
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests ~ -~
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 5
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2017

Actual Actual
$ '000 Nates 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents Ba 6,154 2,319
Investments & 15,253 9416
Receivables 7,798 7,888
Inventories 8 1,741 2,116
Other - 156 102
Non-current assets classified as "heid for sale’ = =:
Total current assets 31,102 21,841
Non-current assets
Investments 26,750 38,919
Receivables 7 = =
Inventories B8 - -
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 9 570,307 569,080
Investments accounted for using the equity method 19 105 91
Investment property 14 21915 20,675
Intangible assets 25 - -
Total non-current assets 619,077 628,765
TOTAL ASSETS 650,179 650,606
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 10 5,249 5,529
Income received in advance 10 - -
Borrowings 10 806 987
Provisions 10 3,076 3,185
Total current liabilities 9,131 9,701
Non-current liabilities
Payables 10 - —
Income received in advance 10 - -
Borrowings 10 24 855 26,393
Provisions 10 5625 5,284
Total non-current liabllities 30,480 31,677
TOTAL LIABILITIES 39,611 41,378
Net assets 610,568 609,228
EQUITY
Retained eamings 20 316,286 306,238
Revaluation reserves 20 294,282 302,990
Other reserves 20 - -
Councll equity interest 610,568 609,228
Non-controlling equity interests = =
Total equity 610,568 609,228
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 6
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity

Financial Statements 2017

for the year ended 30 June 2017
Asset Assel
17 1

0 revaluation Other Non- a9 revaluation Other Non-

Retained reserve  reserves  Council controlling Total Retained reserve  reserves  Council controlling Total
$°000 Notes earnings  (Felor 20b)  (Baler 204 interest  interest equity earnings  (Relur 20 (Fefer 200, interest  interest equity
Opening balance iss per kst yeuds sudited seccants) 306,238 302,990 - 609,228 - 609,228 281,432 300,660 - 592,092 - 592,092
a. Correction of prior penod errors - - - - - - - - - - - -
b. Changes in accounting policies (pnor yearaffects) 20 () - - - - - - - - - - - -
Revised opening balance 306,238 302,990 - 609,228 - 609,228 291,432 300,660 - 592,092 - 592,092
c. Net operating result for the year 10,048 - - 10,048 - 10,048 14,806 - - 14,806 - 14,806
d. Other comprehensive income

- Revaluations: IPP&E asset revaluation rsve 20 {1l - (8,708) - (8.708) - (8.708) - 2,330 - 2330 - 2,330
- Revaluations: other reserves 20b (U - - - - - - - - - - - -
- Transfers to Income Statement ab (il) - - - - - - - -~ - - . -
~ Impairment (loss) reversal relating to 1, PP&E Y {il) - - -~ - - - - - - - - -
— Joint ventures and associates ab - - - - - - — - - = - -
Other prehensive i - (8.708) - (8,708) - (8,708) - 2,330 - 2,330 - 2,330
Total prehensive ir (c&a) 10,048 (8,708) - 1,340 - 1,340 14,806 2,330 - 17,136 -~ 17,136
€. Distributions tof{contributions from) non-controliing iferests - - - - - - - - - - - -
f. Transfers between equity - - - - = - - - = = & o
Equity - balance at end of the reporting period 316,286 294,282 - 610,568 - 610,568 306,238 302,990 - 609,228 - 609,228
This statement should be read in ion with the accompanying notes. page 7
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Budget Actual Actual
2017 $'000 Notes 2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Recaipts:
19,377 Rates and annual charges 17,409 18,207
13,629  User charges and fees 11,614 10,646
2,254 Investment and interest revenue received 2,366 2,57
10,215  Grants and contributions 16,674 24423
— Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received 189 296
2,325 Other 2,653 4,000
Payments:
(13,094) Employee benefits and on-costs (13,676) (12,519)
(13,125) Materials and contracts (11,074) (12,687)
(1,716) Borrowing costs (1,029) (634)
- Bonds, deposits and retention amounts refunded (193) (305)
(3,205) Other (5,114) (9,383)
16,560  Net cash provided (or used in) operating activities 1b 19,819 24 615
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
Sale of investment securities 14,099 8,839

- Sale of real estate assets 690 -

77  Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 154 339
Payments:

-~ Purchase of investment securities (7,767) (11,000)
(10,000) Purchase of investment property (2,420) (15,180)
{30,804) Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (18,972) (25,288)

— Purchase of real estate assets - (26)

(40,727) Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities (14,216) (42,316)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts:
- Proceeds from borrowings and advances - 13,500
Payments:
(800) Repayment of borrowings and advances (1,768) (2,776)
(800) Net cash flow provided (used in) financing activities (1,768) 10,724
(24 967) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,835 (6,977)
-~ Plus: cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year 11, 2319 9,296
(24,967) Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year 1. 6,154 2,319
Additional Information:
plus. Investments on hand - end of year 42,003 48,335
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 48,157 50,654
Please refer to Note 11 for additional cash flow information.
This statement should be read in conjuncton with the accompanying notes. page 8
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements

Note

1
2(a)
2(b)

3

4

5
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6(c)
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9(c)
10(a)
10(b)
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12
13

14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21

23
24
25
26
27
28

Details

Summary of significant accounting policies

Council functions/activities — financial information

Council functions/activities — component descriptions
Income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations

Gains or losses from the disposal of assels

Cash and cash equivalent assets

Investments

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details
Receivables

Inventories and other assets

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — current year impairments

Payables, borrowings and provisions

Description of (and movements in) provisions

Statement of cash flows — additional information

Commitments for expenditure

Statement of performance measures:

13a Local government industry indicators (consolidated)
13b Local government industry indicators (by fund)
Investment properties

Financial risk management

Material budget variations

Statement of developer contributions

Contingencies and other liabilities/assets not recognised
Interests in other entities

Retained earnings, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

Financial result and financial position by fund

‘Held for sale’ non-current assets and disposal groups
Events occurring after the reporting date
Discontinued operations

Intangible assets

Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration liabilities
Fair value measurement

Related party disclosures

Financal Statements 2017
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless othenwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and Ausfralian Accounting
Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993
(NSW) and Regulations, and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial
Reporting. Council is a not for-profit entity for the
purpose of preparing these financial statements.

(i) New and amended standards adopted by
Council

AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures was adopted
during the year, the impact of this standard had no
Impact on reporting financial position or
performance, however note 28 has been added.

(ii) Early adoption of standards

Council has not elected to apply any
pronouncements before their operative date in the
annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2016.

(iii) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of certain financial assets and
liabilities and certain classes of property, plant and
equipment and investment property.

and

(iv) Significant estimates

judgements

accounting

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Council's accounting

policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Council and that

are believed to be
circumstances.

reasonable wunder the

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Council makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year include:

(i) Estimated fair values of investment properties

(i) Estimated fair values of infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment,

(i) Estimated tip remediation provisions.

Significant judgements in applying the Council’s
accounting policies

(1) Impairment of Receivabies

Council has made a significant judgement about the
impairment of a number of its receivables in Note 7.

(b) Revenue recognition

Council recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Council and
specific criteria have been met for each of the
Council’s activities as described below.

Council bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
measured on major income categories as follows:

(i) Rates, annual and
contributions

charges, grants

Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions
(including developer contributions) are recognised as
revenue when the Council obtains control over the
assets comprising these receipts. Developer
contributions may only be expended for the purposes

page 10
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

for which the contributions were required, but the
Council may apply contributions according to the
priorities established in work schedules.

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual
charges is obtained at the commencement of the
rating year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the
rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of
the rates.

Control over granted assets/contributed assets is
normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or
upon earlier nofification that a grant has been
secured, and is valued at their fair value at the date
of transfer.

Where grants or contributions recognised as
revenues during the financial year were obtained on
condition that they be expended in a particular
manner or used over a particular period and those
conditions were un-discharged at reporting date, the
unused grant or contribution is disclosed in Note
3(g). The note also discloses the amount of unused
grant or contribution from prior years that was
expended on Council’s operations during the current
year.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is
reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite
service has not been provided at reporting date,

(ii) User charges and fees

User charges and fees (including parking fees and
fines) are recognised as revenue when the service
has been provided or when the penalty has been
applied, whichever first occurs.

(iii) Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined
when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to
the buyer.

(iv) Interest

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest rate at the date that interest is eamed.

(v) Rent

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(vi) Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the Council's right to
receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(vii) Other income

Other income is recorded when the payment is due,
the value of the payment is notified, or the payment
is received, whichever occurs first.

(c) Principles of consolidation
(i) The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1)
of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money
and property received by Council is held in the
Council's Consolidated Fund unless it is required to
be held in the Council's Trust Fund.

Cash and other assets of the following entities have
been included as part of the Consolidated Fund:

General purpose operations
Water service

Sewerage service
Commercial Buildings

(ii) The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of
the Local Govermment Act 1993 (NSW) (as
amended), a separate and distinct Trust Fund is
maintained to account for all money and property
received by the Council in trust which must be
applied only for the purposes of, or in accordance
with the trusts relating to those monies. Trust monies
and property subject to Council's control have been
included in these reports.

Trust monies and property held by Council but not
subject to the control of Council have been excluded
from these reports. A separate statement of monies
held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at
the Council office by any person free of charge.

(iii) County Councils
Council is a member of the Upper Hunter Weeds

Authority, a body corporate established under the
Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) to control
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noxious plants, Council s one of three constituent
members and neither controls nor significantly
influences the County Council. Accordingly, the
County Council has not been consolidated in the
financial statements.

Council is of the opinion that it neither controls nor
significantly influences the above county council and
accordingly this entity has not been consolidated or
otherwise included within these financial statements.

(iv) Interests in other entities
Subsidiaries

Council has no interest in any subsidiaries.
Joint arrangements

The Council has determined that it has only a joint
venture.

Joint ventures/associates

Interests in joint ventures/associates are accounted
for using the equity method in accordance with
AASB128 Associates and Joint Ventures, Under this
method, the investment is initially recognised as a
cost and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the Council's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
investee after the date of acquisition.

If the Council's share of losses of a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the
Council discontinues recognising its share of further
losses.

The Council's share in the joint venture's gains or
losses arising from transactions between itself and
its joint venture are eliminated.

Adjustments are made to the joint venture's
accounting policies where they are different from
those of the Council for the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements.

(d) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where
Council, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other short-term
and long-term payables. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

The property, plant and egquipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the asset's useful
life or over the shorter of the asset's useful life and
the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that
Council will obtain ownership at the end of the lease
term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are not transferred to Council
as lessee are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where Council
is a lessor Is recognised as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(e) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
are not yet available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the assel's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately Identifiable cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units), Non-
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financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date,

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand;
deposits held at call with financial institutions; other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value;
and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the Statement of Financial
Position.

(g) Inventories

(i) Raw materials and stores, work in progress
and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour, and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on
the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on basis of
weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary 1o make the sale.

(i)

Inventory heid for distribution is held at cost,
adjusted where applicable for any loss of service
potential,

Inventory held for distribution

(iii) Land held for resale/capitalisation of
borrowing costs

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is assigned by specific
identification and includes the cost of acquisition, and
development and borrowing costs  during
development. When development is completed
borrowing costs and other holding charges are
expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for
resale are those costs that would have been avoided
if the expenditure on the acquisiton and
development of the land had not been made.
Borrowing costs incurred while active development is
interrupted for extended periods are recognised as
expenses.

(h) Non-current assets (or disposal groups)

held for sale and discontinued
operations
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are

classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will
be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use.

They are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for
assets such as deferred tax assets; assets arising
from employee benefits; financial assets; and
investment properties that are carried at fair value
and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any Initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal
group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value
less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but
not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss
previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset (or disposal group) Is recognised at the date of
de-recognition,

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and
other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to
be recognised.
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(i) Investments and other financial assets
Classification

Council classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity
investments; and available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at
initial recognition and, in the case of assets
classified as heid-to-maturity, re-evaluates this
designation at each reporting date.

(I) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category If acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short-term. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets,

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and recelvables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, They are included in
current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the reporting date
which that are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are included in other
receivables (note 8) and receivabies (note 7) in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. Receivables are generally due for
settlement within 30 days.

Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not
discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(ili) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that Council's management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If
Council were to sell other than an Insignificant

amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified as
available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-
current assets, except for those with maturities less
than 12 months from the reporting date, that are
classified as current assets.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12
months of the reporting date.

Investments are designated as available-for-sale if
they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments and management intends to
hold them for the medium to long term.

Recognition and de-recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date: the date on which Council
commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are Initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and Council has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are
sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as gains and losses from investment
securities.

Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity

investments are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
are recognised in equity.

Impairment

Council assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a 'loss event') and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.

() Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been Incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a
loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
Impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As @& practical
expedient, the Council may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument's fair value using an
observable market price.

Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an on-
going basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible
are written off by reducing the carrying amount
directly. An allowance account (provision for
impairment of receivables) is used when there is
objective evidence that Council will not be abile to
collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments (more than 30 days overdue) are
considered indicators that the receivable Is impaired.
The amount of the impairment allowance is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement within other expenses, When a
receivable for which an impairment allowance had
been recognised becomes uncollectible in a
subsequent period it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
other expenses in the income statement.

Investment Policy

Council has an approved investment policy
complying with Section 625 of the Local Government
Act 1993 (NSW) and Clause 212 of the Local
Government (General) Regulation 2005 (NSW).

Investments are placed and managed in accordance
with that policy and having particular regard to
authorised investments prescribed under the
Ministerial Local Govemment Investment Order.
Council maintains an investment policy that complies
with the Act and ensures that it, or its
representatives, exercise the care, diligence and skill
that a prudent person would exercise in investing
Council funds.

Council amended its policy following revisions to the
Ministenal Local Government Investment Order (the
Order) arising from the Cole Inquiry
recommendations. Certain investments the Council
holds are no longer prescribed; however, they have
been retained under grandfathering provisions of the
Order. These will be disposed of when most
financially advantageous to Council.

(j) Fair value estimation - financial

instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities must be estimated for recognition and
measurement or for disclosure purposes.
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The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets Is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded In an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. Council uses & varnety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date.
Other techniques, such as estimated discounted
cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustiments
of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilties for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the cumrent market interest rate that is
available to the Council for similar financial
instruments.

(k) Infrastructure, property, and
equipment (IPPE)

plant

Council's assets have been progressively revalued
to fair value in accordance with a staged
implementation advised by the Office of Local
Government. At reporting date, the following classes
of IPPE were stated at their fair value:

Externally valued:

« Operational land
«  Community land
« Buildings - specialised/non-specialised

Internally valued:

« Roads assets including roads, bridges and
footpaths

Bulk earthworks

Stormwater drainage

Swimming pools

Other open space/recreational assets
Other infrastructure

Water and Sewerage networks.

As approximated by depreciated historical cost:

Plant and equipment
Land improvements
Other structures
Other assets

Non-specialised assets with short useful lives are
measured at depreciated historical cost as an
approximation of fair value, Council has assessed
that any difference between fair value and
depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be matenial.

Water and sewerage network assets are indexed
annually between full revaluations in accordance with
the latest indices provided in the NSW Office of
Water Rates Reference Manual.

For all other asset classes, Council assesses at each
reporting date whether there is any indication that a
revalued asset's carrying amount may differ
materially from that which would be determined if the
asset were revalued at the reporting date. If any such
indication exists, Council determines the asset's fair
value and revalue the asset to that amount. Full
revaluations are undertaken for all assets on a five-

year cycle.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation are credited to the asset revaluation
reserva. To the extent that the increase reverses a
decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating
to that asset class, the increase is first recognised as
profit or loss.

Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets
in the same class are first charged against
revaluation reserves directly in equity to the extent of
the remaining reserve attributable to the class; all
other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their

residual values, over their estimated useful lives as
follows:
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Plant and equipment

- Office equipment 5to 10 years

- Office fumiture 10 10 20 years
- Computer equipment 4 years

- Vehicles 5to 8 years

- Heavy plant/road making equipment 5 to 8 years

- Other plant and equipment 510 15 years
Other equipment

- Playground equipment 5to 15 years

- Benches, seats etc. 10 to 20 years
Buildings

- Buildings: masonry 50 1o 100 years
- Buildings: other 20 10 40 years
Water and sewer assets

- Dams and reservoirs 80 10 100 years
- Bores 20 to 40 years
- Reticulation pipes: PVC 70-80 years

- Reticulation pipes: other 2510 75 years
- Pumps and telemetry 15 to 20 years
Stormwater assets

- Drains 80 10 100 years
- Culverts 50 to 80 years
- Flood control structures 80 to 100 years
Transportation assets

- Sealed roads: surface 20 years

- Sealed roads: structure 50 years

- Unsealed roads 20 years

- Bridge: concrete 100 years

- Bridge: other 50 years

- Road pavements 60 years

- Kerb, gutter and footpaths 40 years

Other infrastructure assets

- Bulk earthworks Infinite

The assets' residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in the income statement.

() Investment property
Investment property, principally comprising freehold

office buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
and is not occupied by the Council.

Investment property Is carried at fair value, which is
based on aclive market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If this information is
not available, Council uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices in less active
markets, or discounted cash flow projections.
Changes In fair values are recorded in the income
statement as part of other income.

Properties that are under construction for future use
as investment properties are regarded as investment
properties. These are also carried at fair value unless
the fair value cannot yet be reliably determined.
Where that is the case, the property will be
accounted for at cost until either the fair value
becomes reliably determinable or construction is
complete.

(m) Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Council prior to the end of
financial year that are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of

recognition.

(n) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
the income statement over the pericd of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw down occurs,

To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capilalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility
to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of

Financial Position when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
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difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in other income or
finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
Council has an unconditional nght to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date.

(o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed.

(p) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when Council has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a resuit of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and the amount has been reliably estimated.,

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
aven if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date. The discount rate used to determine
the present value reflects cumrent market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

(q) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating
sick leave expected to be wholly settled within 12
months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

The liability for annual leave and accumulating sick
leave is recognised in the provision for employea
benefits. All other short-term employee benefit
obligations are presented as payables,

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long service leave and annual leave
that is not expected to be wholly settted within 12
months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service is recognised
in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to
be made In respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period
using the projected unit credit method.

Consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels, experience of employee departures,
and periods of service. Expected future payments
are discounted using market yields at the end of the
reporting penod on national govemment bonds with
terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in
the Statement of Financial Position if the Council
does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting
date, regardless of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.

(iii) Retirement benefit obligations
All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits
on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes

to various defined benefit plans and defined
contribution plans on behalf of its employees.
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Defined Benefit Plans

A liability or asset in respect of defined benefit
superannuation plans would ordinarily be recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position, and
measured as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the reporting date plus unrecognised
actuarial gains (less unrecognised actuarial losses)
less the fair value of the superannuation fund's
assets at that date and any unrecognised past
service cosl.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
based on expected future payments that anise from
membership of the fund to the reporting date,
calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method.

Consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels, experience of employee departures,
and periods of service. However, when this
information is not reliably available, Council
accounts for its obligations to defined benefit plans
on the same basis as its obligations to defined
contribution plans, i.e. as an expense when it
becomes payable.

Council is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan
under the Local Government Superannuation
Scheme, named the ‘Local Government
Superannuation Scheme — Pool B'.

This scheme has been deemed to be a ‘'multi-
employer fund’ for the purposes of AASB 119.

Sufficient information is not available to account for
the Scheme as a defined benefit plan (in accordance
with AASB 119) because the assets to the scheme
are pooled together for all Councils.

The last valuation of the scheme was performed by
Mr Richard Boyfield of Mercer Consulting (Australia)
Pty Ltd AFS License #411770 on December
2016 and covers the period ended 30 June 2016.

However the position is monitored annually and the
actuary has estimated that as at 30 June 2017 the
prior period deficit still exists.

Effective from 1 July 2009, employers are required
to contribute additional contributions to assist in
extinguishing this deficit.

Council's share of that deficiency cannot be
accurately calculated as the scheme is a mutual
arrangement where assets and liabilities are pooled
together for all member councils. However, the share
of the deficit that can broadly be attributed to Council
is 0.26% as at 30 June 2017,

For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has
been recognised in these financial statements.

Council has, however, disciosed a contingent liability
in Note 18 to reflect the possible obligation that may
arise should the scheme require immediate payment
to correct the deficiency.

The amount of employer contributions to the defined
benefit section of the Local Government
Superannuation Scheme and recognised as an
expense and disclosed as part of superannuation
expenses at Note 4 (a) for the year ending 30 June
2017 was $182,516.

Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an expense as they become payable.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available,

(r) Land under roads

Land under roads is land under roadways and road
reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips
and median strips.

Council has elected not to recognise land under
roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance
with AASB 1051 Land Under Roads.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is
recognised in accordance with AASB 116 Property,
Plant and Equipment.

(s) Self-insurance

Council has decided to self-insure for various risks,
including public liability and professional indemnity.

A provision for self-insurance has been made to

recognise outstanding claims, the amount of which is
detailed in Note 10. Council also maintains cash and

page 19

Attachment A

Page 115



Item 12.5 - Attachment A

2016-17 Financial Statements

Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

investments to meet expected future claims; these
are detailed in Note 6(c).

(t) Intangible assets

Council has not classified any assets as intangible.

(u) Crown reserves

Crown Reserves under Council's care and control
are recognised as assets of the Council. While
ownership of the reserves remains with the Crown,
Council retains operational control of the reserves
and is responsible for their maintenance and use in
accordance with the specific purposes to which the
reserves are dedicated.

Improvements on Crown Reserves are also
recorded as assets, while maintenance costs
incurred by Council and revenues relating to the
reserves are recognised within Council's Income
Statement.

(v) Rural fire service assets

Under section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act
1997 (NSW), “all fire fighting equipment purchased
or constructed wholly or from money to the credit of
the Fund is to be vested in the council of the area for
or on behalf of which the fire fighting equipment has
been purchased or constructed”,

Until such time as discussions on this matter have
concluded and the legislation changed, Council will
recognise rural fire service assets including land,
buildings, plant and vehicles.

(w) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net
of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST
incured is not recoverable from the taxation
authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense,

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the
amount of GST receivable or payable. The net
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to the

taxation authority is included with other receivables
or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST
components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which that are recoverable from,
or payable to the taxation authority are presented as
operating cash flows.

(x) New accounting standards and
interpretations issued not yet effective

Certain  new  accounting standards  and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for the current reporting period and which
have not been applied.

As at the date of authorisation of the financial
statements, the standards and interpretations listed
below were in issue but not yet effective.

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017

. AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15

. AASB 2015-8 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Effective Date of
AASB 15

. AASB 2016-1 Amendments to Australian

Accounting Standards - Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
[AASB 112]

. AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative:
Amendments to AASB 107

. AASB 2016-4 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Recoverable
Amount of Non-Cash-Generating Specialised
Assets of Not-for-Profit Entities

. AASB 2016-7 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASB 15
for Not-for-Profit Entities

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 13 February 2017

AASB 2017-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting

Standards - Further Annual Improvements 2014- 16
Cycle
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Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 13 December 2017

AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - Transfers of Investment Property,
Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle and Other
Amendments

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018

. AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December
2008)

. AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

. AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2010)

. AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards (Part E)

. AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Ausiralian

Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
{December 2014)AASB 1057 Application of
Australian Accounting Standards

. AASB 2016-3 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Clarifications to
AASB 15

. AASB 2016-5 Amendments to Australian

Accounting Standards — Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

. AASB 2016-6 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Applying AASB 9
Financial Instruments with AASB 4
Insurance Contracts

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019

. AASB 16 Leases

. AASB 16 Leases (Appendix D)

. AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian
Accounting  Standards -  Australian
Implementation Guidance for Nor-for-Profit
Entities

. AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

. AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian
Accounting  Standards -  Australian
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit
Entities

The full impact of these standards has yet to be
ascertained or quantified but will range from
additional and/or revised disciosures to changes in

how certain transactions and balances are accounted
for.

(y) Rounding of amounts

Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in the financial
statements have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand dollars.

(z) Comparative figures

To ensure comparability with the current reporting
period's figures, some comparative period line items
and amounts may have been reclassified or
individually reported for the first time within these
financial statements and/or the notes.

(aa) Disclaimer
Nothing contained within these statements may be

taken to be an admission of any liability to any
person under any circumstance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2(a). Council functions/activities — financial information

|S ‘000 i , exp and ts have been directly attributed to the following functions/activities.
Detalis of these functions/activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Grants included in

Income from continuing Expenses from continuing Operating result from income from Tojal antets haid
4 (current and non-
L operations operations continuing operations continuing
Functions/activities operations current)
Original Original Original

budget | Actual Actual | budget | Actual Actual | budget | Actual Actual | Actual Actual Actual Actual
2017 2017 2018 2017 2017 20186 2017 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Governance = = = 478 S35 40 (478),  (539) (410) = = = =
Administration 698 949 151 4.823 4,800 5,504 (4.125)] (3,851) (5,353) | - 7| 45564 48,626
Public order and safety 619 367 3n 1,086 1,066 1,001 (467) (699) (690) 276 266 4,381 4,187
Health - - -| 28| o -] (248)] (a71) - - B I
Environment 8,066 10,804 4,684 8,944 7975 6,542 (878) 2,829 (1,858)} 232 59 482 505
| Community services and education 254 189 49| 518 469 |  B15| (264)  (280)  (566)] 152 49| 22054 | 16,982
Housing and community amenities 128 141 2,838 969 1,428 1.229 (841) (1,287 1.608 177 136 5,731 5376
Water supplies 6206 | 6385 6145| 4774| 4606 4537| 1432| 1779 1608| 120 34| 64283 | 62883
Sewerage services 5777| 4779 6858| 3285 3220| 3131| 2492 1550 3.727 35| 1009| 61611 64960
Recreation and culture 1,114 975 2,012 5,261 5,314 5,856 (4,147)  (4,339)  (3.844) 17 13| 47429 | 48494
Transport and communication 5942 | 5911 13915| 9609| 0699| 12.165| (3.757) (3788) 1750 | 4413 | 9462 | 373552 370,508
Economic affairs 3,168 3,051 5,961 2,344 2,156 2,935 824 895 3,026 303 4647 24714 27,693
Total functions and activities 31,972 33,551 42,924 42,427 41,548 43,925 | (10,455) (7,997), (1,001) 5734 15,682 | 650,074 | 650,515
Share of gains/(lcsses) in associates
and joint ventures (using the equity method) - 14 2 - - - - 14 2 - - 105 91
General purpose income ! 15,728 18,031 15,805 - - - 15,728 18,031 15,805 4,898 3,386 - -
Operating result from
contlnulng operations 47,700 51,596 58,731 42,427 | 41,548 | 43925 5,273 10,048 14,806 10,632 19,068 | 650,179 | 650,606
1. Includes: rates and annual charges (incl. ex-gratia), untisd general purpose grants and unrastricted Interest and investmeant Income.
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Financial Statements 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities — component descriptions
Details relating to the Council's functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

GOVERNANCE

Includes costs relating to Council's role as a component of democratic government, inciuding elections,
members' fees and expenses, subscriptions fo local authority associations, meetings of Council and policy-
making committees, public disclosure (e.g. GIPA), and legislative compliance.

ADMINISTRATION
Includes corporate support and other support services, engineering works, and any Council policy compliance.

PUBLIC ORDER AND SAFETY

Includes Council's fire and emergency services levy, fire protection, emergency services, beach control,
enforcement of reguiations and animal control.

HEALTH
Includes immunisation, food control, health centres elc.

ENVIRONMENT

Includes noxious plants and insect/vermin control; other environmental protection; solid waste management,
including domestic waste; other waste management; other sanitation; and garbage, street cleaning, drainage
and stormwater management.

COMMUNITY SERVICES AND EDUCATION

Includes administration and education; social protection (welfare); migrant, Aboriginal and other community
services and administration (excluding accommodation — as it s covered under 'housing and community
amenities’); youth services: aged and disabled persons services; children's’ services, including family day care;
child care; and other family and children services.

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AMENITIES

Includes public cemeteries; public conveniences,; street lighting; town planning; other community amenities,
including housing development and accommodation for families and children, aged persons, disabled persons,
migrants and Indigenous persons,

WATER SUPPLIES
SEWERAGE SERVICES

RECREATION AND CULTURE

Includes public libraries; museums,; art galleries; community centres and halls, including public halls and
performing arts venues; sporting grounds and venues; swimming pools; parks; gardens; lakes; and other
sporting, recreational and cultural services.

TRANSPORT AND COMMUNICATION

Urban local, urban regional, includes sealed and unsealed roads, bridges, footpaths, parking areas, and
aerodromes,

ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

Includes camping areas and caravan parks; tourism and area promotion; industrial development promotion; sale
yards and markets; real estate development, commercial nurseries; and other business undertakings.
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 3. Income from continuing operations

Actual Actual
$ 000 Notes 2017 2016
(a) Rates and annual charges
Ordinary rates
Residential 4,802 4716
Farmland 1,282 1,366
Mining 4,780 4,231
Business 1,146 1,149
Total ordinary rates 12,010 11,462
Special rates
Nil
Annual charges (pursuant to 5.496, 5.496A, 5.496B, 5,501 &s5.611)
Domestic waste management services 2,106 1,933
Stormwater management services 156 155
Water supply services 1,459 1,445
Sewerage services 3,373 3,293
Waste management services (non-domestic) _ 139 132
Total annual charges 7.233 6,958
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES 19,243 18,420

Council has used 2015 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating Its rates,
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Financal Statements 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

Actual Actual
$ '000 2017 2016
(b) User charges and fees
Specific user charges (per 5.502 - specific ‘actual use’ charges)
Water supply services 3,059 2,913
Sewerage services 516 488
Total user charges 3,575 3,401
Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges - statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)
Building regulation 104 120
Inspection services 52 42
Private works — section 67 48 64
Regulatory/ statutory fees 94 140
Section 149 certificates (EPA Act) 52 95
Section 603 certificates 23 19
Town planning 22 21
Development/building control 163 216
Water and sewer related sales 412 525
DECCW levy recovered 1,610 1,506
Total fees and charges - statutory/regulatory 2,580 2,748
(ii) Fees and charges — other (incl. general user charges (per s.608))
Cemeteries 75 61
Community centres 41 32
Fire and emergency services levy (FESL) implementation 76 -
Leaseback fees — Council vehicles 53 59
Leisure centre 30 34
Library and art gallery 50 55
Park rents 16 30
RMS (formerly RTA) charges (state roads not controlled by Council) 1,442 1,732
Swimming centres 563 529
Waste disposal tipping fees 2,939 2,664
Gym centre 79 83
Road vehicle permits 27 30
Other 46 a7
Total fees and charges - other 5,437 5,346
TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 11,592 11,495

page 25

Attachment A Page 121



Item 12.5 - Attachment A 2016-17 Financial Statements

Financal Statements 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

Actual Actual

$ 000 2017 2016
(c) Interest and investment revenue (including losses)
Interest

~ Interest on overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 157 117

— Interest earned on investments (interest and coupon payment income) 2,235 2,407
Impairment (losses)/reversals

- Investments other than available for sale - 107
Amortisation of premiums and discounts

~ 'Heid to maturity’ investments - _ (45)
TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT REVENUE 2,392 2,586
Interest revenue is attributable to:
Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
Overdue rates and annual charges (general fund) 157 17
General Council cash and investments 9266 B40
Restricted investments/funds - external:
Development contributions

— Section 94 82 96

- Section 64 603 641
Water fund operations 428 727
Sewerage fund operations 156 165
Total interest and investment revenue recognised 2,392 2,586
(d) Other revenues
Fair value increments — investment properties 14 545 -
Rental income — investment properties ] 2,219 1,097
Rental income ~ other council properties 192 204
Fines 42 a4
Legal fees recovery - rates and charges (extra charges) - 22
Insurance claim recoveries 9 130
Insurance rebates 117 69
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 3:124 ] 15563
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

2017 2016 2017 2016
$'000 Operating Operating Capital Capital
(e) Grants
General purpose (untied)

Financial assistance — general component 3,504 2,448 - -
Financial assistance — local roads component 1,315 860 - -
Pensioners' rates subsidies - general component 79 78 = =
Total general purpose 4,898 3,386 - -
Specific purpose
Pensioners’ rates subsidies:

- Water 35 34 - -

- Sewerage 35 34 - -

- Domestic waste management 34 32 - -
Bushfire and emergency services 216 247 60 19
Community care 118 49 - -
Economic development - - 303 4,647
Employment and training programs 34 7 - -
Environmental protection 95 59 - -
Heritage and cultural 52 10 - -
Library - 3 - -
LIRS subsidy 69 77 - -
Recreation and culture - - 17 15
Street lighting 57 57 - -
Transport (roads to recovery) 960 979 - -
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) 1,459 2,838 1,949 551
Planning 68 14 - -
Waste management 79 90 - -
Sewerage services - - - 960
Water supplies = > 94 =
Total specific purpose 3311 4530 2423 11152
Total grants 8,209 7,916 2,423 11,152
Grant revenue is attributable to:
— Commonwealth funding 5778 4,287 - 25
~ State funding 2431 3629 2423 11,127

8,209 7,916 2,423 11,152
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

2017 2016 2017 2016
$'000 Operating Operating Capital Capital
(f) Contributions
Developer contributions:

(s93 & s94 - EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):
S 93F ~ contributions using planning agreements 572 - 1,363 1,812
S 94 — contributions towards amenities/services 387 469 49 21
S 94A — fixed development consent levies - - 93 228
S 64 — water supply contributions - - 328 -
S 64 - sewerage service contributions - - 497 -
S 64 - stormwater contributions - - 2 1
Developer provided infrastructure roads/drainage - - - 386
Developer provided infrastructure water - - - 89
Developer provided infrastructure sewer - - - 129
Total developer contributions 17 959 469 2,332 2,666
Other contributions:
Bushfire services - - 325 -
Community services 79 254 - -
Hentage/cultural 3 2 - -
Recreation and culture 72 59 90 18
Roads and bridges - - 509 1,750
Environmental officer/monitoring 24 203 - -
Library operations 67 120 53 52
Total other contributions 245 638 977 1,820
Total contributions 1,204 1,107 3.309 4,486
TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 941 3 A 90?3 §7327 . 1 _5,63~8
Actual Actual
$ '000 2017 2016
(g) Unspent grants and contributions
Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition
that they be spent in a specified manner:
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 23,273 20,714
Add: grants and contributions recognised in the current period but not yet spent: 504 24,235
Less: grants and contributions recognised in a previous reporting period now spent. (1,385) (21,6786)
Net increase (decrease) in restricted assets during the period (881) 2,559
Unexpended and held as restricted assets 22392 @ 23273
Comprising:
- Specific purpose unexpended grants 941 1,824
- Developer contributions 21,451 21,449
232 23213
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations

Actual Actual
svooo Notes 2017 2016
(a) Employee benefits and on-costs
Salanes and wages 11,876 11,166
Employee termination costs 170 14
Travel expenses 290 228
Employee leave entitlements (ELE) 1.205 1,556
Superannuation 1,281 1,251
Workers' compensation insurance 297 243
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 97 93
Payroll tax 93 50
Training costs (other than salaries and wages) 253 254
Sick leave insurance 2 1
Protective clothing 48 M
Staff appreciation 13 1
Total employee costs 15,625 14,908
Less: capitalised costs (1,808) (2,032)
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED 13,817 12,876
Number of ‘full-fime equivalent’ employees (FTE) at year end 164 165
Number of ‘full-time equivalent’ employees (FTE) at year end (incl. vacancies) 186 184
(b) Borrowing costs
(i) Interest bearing liability costs
Interest on loans 1,029 634
Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 1,029 634
(ii) Other borrowing costs
Discount adjustments relating to movements in provisions (other than ELE)

— Remediation liabilities X 301 283
Interest applicable on interest free (and favourable) loans to Council 49 56
Total other borrowing costs 350 339
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED 1,379 973
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Financal Statements 2017

Actual Actual
$ '000 Notes 2017 2016
(c) Materials and contracts
Raw materials and consumables 9,725 11,361
Auditors remuneration '’ 129 78
Legal expenses:

- Legal expenses: planning and development 28 78

- Legal expenses: debt recovery - 22

— Legal expenses: other a4 52
Operating leases:

— Operating lease rentals: minimum lease payments ' 50 75
Waste collection 897 866
Venue manager 10 10
TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS 10,883 12,542
1. Auditor remuneration
a. During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by

the Auditor-General:
(i) Audit and other assurance services
- Audit and review of financial statements: Auditor-General 63 -
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 63 -
Total Auditor-General remuneration 63 -
b. During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by
the other Council's Auditors:
(1) Audit and other assurance services
— Audit and review of financial statements: Council's Auditor 16 47
- Other audit and assurance services: Internal Auditor 50 31
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 66 78
Total remuneration of other Council's Auditors 66 78
Total Auditor remuneration 129 78
2. Operating lease payments are attributable to:
Computers 50 75
50 75
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
Actual Actual
svooo Notes 2017 2016
(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Plant and equipment 1.201 1,160
Office equipment 165 166
Furniture and fittings 92 92
Land improvements (depreciable) 110 112
Infrastructure:
— Buildings — non-specialised 1 1
- Buildings -~ specialised 537 277
— Other structures 366 306
— Roads 3,658 3,622
— Bridges 605 605
- Footpaths 305 281
- Stormwater drainage 595 593
— Water supply network 1,439 1,438
— Sewerage network 1,198 1,196
Other assets
— Other 137 125
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 10,409 9,874
Less: capitalised costs - -
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 10,409 9,874
Impairment
Infrastructure:
_~ Buildings ~ specialised = 600
Total gross impairment costs - 600
Total impairment costs - 600
TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT COSTS EXPENSED 10,409 10,474
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Actual Actual

$'000 Notes 2017 2016
(e) Other expenses
Advertising 60 41
Bank charges 53 50
Cleaning 199 178
Community facility contribution 130 130
Contributions/levies to other lavels of government

— Emergency services levy (inciudes FRNSW, SES, and RFS lavies) 24 28

~ NSW fire brigade levy 41 39

— NSW rural fire service levy 335 296

- Upper Hunter Weeds Authority 79 78

— Waste levy 1,851 1,895
Councillor expenses — mayoral fee 24 24
Councillor expenses ~ councillors’ fees 131 127
Councillors' expenses (incl. mayor) — other (excluding fees above) 21 15
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356) 85 159
Electricity and heating 720 707
Fair value decrements — investment properties 3 - 1,967
Insurance 686 724
Postage 26 25
Printing and stationery 38 23
Street lighting 398 380
Telephone and communications 105 112
Valuation fees 54 62
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 5,060 7,060
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 5. Gains or losses from the disposal of assets

Actual Actual
s 000 Notes 2017 2016
Plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment 154 339
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/wntten off (116) (197)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 38 142
Infrastructure
Less: carrying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off (165) (138)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal (165) (138)
Real estate assets held for sale
Proceeds from disposal - real estate assets 690 -
Less: carrying amount of real estate assets sold/written off (477) -
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 213 -
Financial assets
Proceeds from disposal/redemptions/maturities — financial assets 14,099 8,839
Less: carrying amount of financial assets sold/redeemed/matured (14,099) (8,839)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal - =
NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 86 4
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 6a. — Cash assets and Note 6b. — investments
2017 2017 2016 2016
Actual Actual Actual Actual
$ '000 Notx Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6a)
Cash on hand and at bank 4,098 - 754 -
Cash-equivalent assets '

— Deposits at call 2,056 - 1,565 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 6,154 - 2,319 -
Investments (Note 6b)

— Long term deposits 11,753 10,250 4,000 23,653

— NCD's, FRN's (with maturities > 3 months) 3,500 15,500 - 13,250

— Other long term financial assets - 1,000 5416 2,016
Total investments 15,253 26,750 9,416 38,919
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS _21_,497_ __29,750 11,735_ 38,919
! Those investmants where time to maturity (from date of purchase) is < 3 mths.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments were
classified at year end in accordance with
AASB 139 as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents —
a. At fair value through the profit and loss' 6,154 - 2,319 -
Investments
a. 'Held to maturity’ 15,253 26,750 9416 38,919
Investments 15,253 26,750 9,416 38,919
Refer to Note 27. Fair value measurement for information regarding the fair value of investments held.
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Financial Statemants 2017

Note 6¢. Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details

2017 2017 2016 2016
Actual Actual Actual Actual
$ '000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Total cash, cash equivalents
and investments 21,407 26,750 11,735 38,919
attributable to:
Extemnal restrictions  (refer below) 8,675 27,716 8,850 29,211
Internal restrictions (refer below) 4,691 7,072 2,691 9,708
Unrestricted 3 - 194 -
13,369 34,788 11,735 38,919
2017 Opening Transfersto  Transfers from Closing
$ '000 balance restrictions restrictions balance
Details of restrictions
External restrictions - included in liabilities
Nil
External restrictions — other
Developer contributions — general (D) 5,619 3,413 (2,371) 6,661
Developer contributions -~ water fund (D) 6,161 563 - 6,724
Developer contributions — sewer fund (D) 9,669 - (1,603) 8,066
Specific purpose unexpended grants (F) 834 107 - 941
Specific purpose unexpended grants-water fund (F) 30 - (30) -
Specific purpose unexpended granis-sewer fund (F) 960 - (960) -
Water supplies (G) 12,806 - (784) 12,022
Sewerage services (G) 1,626 - (103) 1,523
Domestic waste management (G) 356 2,325 (2,227) 454
External restrictions — other 38,061 6,408 (8,078) 36,391
Total external restrictions 38,061 6,408 (8,078) 36,391

D Development confributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance

with contributions plans (refer Note 17).

F Grants which are not yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were obtained. (refer Note 1 (b))
G Water, sewerage, domestic waste management (DWM) and other special rates/levies/charges are extemnally

restricted assets and must be applied for the purposes for which they were raised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 6¢. Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details (continued)

2017 Opening  Transfers to Transfers from Closing
$'000 balance restrictions restrictions balance

Internal restrictions

Plant and vehicle replacement 411 881 (449) 843
Infrastructure replacement 1170 - (402) 768
Employees leave entitlement 868 133 - 1,001
Deposits, retentions and bonds 611 60 - 671
Carpark replacement 45 - (35) 10
Road works contingency 486 507 (507) 486
Land bank development 3 - - 3
Building replacement 378 - (145) 233
Art gallery 33 - (5) 28
Administrative 152 25 (10) 167
Environmental 230 16 (69) 177
Waste management centre 4,667 - (1,952) 2,715
Aquatic centre 115 60 (101) 74
Stormwater management 297 156 (15) 438
Carry over works 15/16 operational 446 - (230) 216
Carry over works 15/16 capital 1,438 - (301) 1,137
Carry over works 16/17 capital - 1,657 - 1,657
Recreation Al 214 (377) 608
Builders Rubble - 61 - 61
Legal matters 42 - - 42
Infrastructure works 125 - - 125
Heritage Matters 18 - - 18
Strategic town planning 93 - (93) -
Building Capacity - 92 - 92
Road Closure - 28 - 28
Carry over works 16/17 operational =~ 165 - 165
Total internal restrictions 12,399 4,055 (4,691) 11,763
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 50,460 10,463 (12.769) 48,154
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 7. Receivables

2017 2016

$'000 Noles Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Purpose
Rates and annual charges 3,081 - 1,247 -
User charges and fees 1,887 - 1,909 -
Accrued revenues

— Interest on investments 735 - 709 -
Amounts due from other councils 130 - 1 -
Government grants and subsidies 260 - 2,114 -
Net GST receivable 342 - 366 -
Waste depot charges 477 - 626 -
On site management system 21 - 22 -
Community enhancement 635 - 748 -
RMS IPWO's 277 - 186 -
Other debtors 16 - 23 -
Total 7,861 - 7,951 -
Less: provision for impairment
User charges and fees (52) - (52) -
Other debtors (11) - (11) -
Total provision for impairment - receivables (63) - (63) -
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 7,798 - 7,888 -
Externally restricted receivables
Water supply

- Rates and availability charges 153 - 88 -
— Other 726 - 580 -
Sewerage services

~ Rates and availability charges 544 - 381 -
— Other 79 - 73 -
Domestic waste management 149 - 168 -
Total external restrictions 1,651 - 1,290 -
Internally restricted receivables
Nil
Unrestricted receivables 6,147 - 6,598 -
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 7,798 - 7,888 -

Notes on debtors above:
(i) Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property,
(i) Doubtful rates debtors are provided for where the value of the property is less than the debt outstanding.
An aliowance for other doubtful detts is made when there is objective evidence that a receivable is impaired.
(iii) Interest was charged on overdue rates and charges at 8.50% (2016 8.50%).
Generally all other recelvables are non-interest beanng.
(iv) Please refer to Note 15 for issues canceming credit risk and fair value disclosures.

page 37

Attachment A Page 133



Item 12.5 - Attachment A 2016-17 Financial Statements

Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 8. Inventories and other assets

Financal Statements 2017

2017 2016
$'000 Noles Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
(a) Inventories
(i) Inventories at cost
Real estate for resale (refer below) 1,497 ~ 1,974 ~
Stores and materials 201 - 99 -
Other 43 = 43 =
Total inventories at cost 1,741 - 2,116 -
(ii) Inventories at net realisable value (NRV)
Nil
TOTAL INVENTORIES 1,741 - 2,116 -
(b) Other assets
Prepayments 156 - 102 -
TOTAL OTHERASSETS 156 - 102 il

Externally restricted assets
There are no restrictions applicable to the above assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 8. Inventories and other assets (continued)

2017 2016

$ '000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current

Other disclosures

(a) Details for real estate development

Residential 282 - 309 -

Industriallcommercial 1,215 - 1,665 -

Total real estate for resale 1,497 - 1974 -

(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

Represented by:

Acquisition costs 1,497 — 1,974 -

Total costs 1,497 - 1,974 -

Total real estate for resale 1,497 - 1,974 -

Movements:

Real estate assets at beginning of the year 1,974 - 1,948 -
- Purchases and other costs - - 26 -
— WDV of sales (expense) 5 (477) - - -

Total real estate for resale 1,497 - 1,974 -

(b) Current assets not anticipated to be settled within the next 12 months
The following inventories and other assets, even though classified

as current are not expected to be recovered in the next 12 months;

2017 2016

Real estate for resale 760 1,234

760 1,234

(c) Inventory write downs

There were no amounts recognised as an expense relating to the write down of inventory balances

held during the year.
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Note 9a. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Financial Statements 2017

Asset class Asset movements during the reporting period
as at 30/6/2016 as at 30/6/2017
» N Cairying - . Tirs Revalualion
Gross Accumulated Net Additions Additions Valie Depreciation wWip Adjustments . from/(to) uncremepts Gioss Accumulated Net
At x PR 3 rer | new L 4 expense transfers and transfers | investment o equity At z 2alix A
carrying dePfeclatlon carrying of disposals R ARR) cost carrying de;_)recu_atlon carrying
$°000 oo amount and impairment amount e ¢ amount and impairment amount
Capital work in progress - 8,928 - 8,928 1,826 5,463 - - (532) - - - 15,685 - - 15,685
Plant and equipment - 13,908 9,950 3,958 569 507 (116) (1,201) - - - - - 14,650 10,932 3,718
Office equipment - 2,504 2.007 497 - 301 - (165) - - - - - 2,805 2,172 633
Furniture and fittings - 1,394 693 701 - 52 - (92) - - - - - 1,446 785 661
Land:
— Operational land - 8,341 - 8,341 - 43 - - - - - - - 8,384 - 8,384
— Community land - 11,795 - 11,795 - - - - - - - (1,797) - 9,998 - 9,998
Land improvements — depreciable - 4,398 779 3,619 - 192 - (110) 49 - - - - 4,638 888 3,750
Infrastructure:
— Buildings - non-specialised - 3,043 573 2,470 - - - n - 331 - - - 3,373 573 2,800
— Buildings — specialised - 57,523 5,097 52,426 428 281 - (537) - (331) 1,725 - - 59,027 5,036 53,991
— Other structures - 8,209 1,911 6,298 290 250 - (343) 65 - - - - 8,815 2,255 6,560
— Roads - 357,883 86,807 271,076 3,540 463 (135) (3,658) 18 (467) - - - 361,233 90,398 270,835
— Bridges - 59,745 16,538 43,207 221 - - (605) - - - - - 59,966 17,143 42,823
— Footpaths - 13,857 3,416 10,441 225 536 (30) (305) - 467 - - - 15,038 3,704 11,334
— Stormwater drainage - 58,207 19,923 38,284 115 - - (595) - - - - - 58,322 20,518 37,804
— Water supply network - 86,848 38,025 48,823 1,234 716 - (1,439) 81 - - 401 - 93,286 43470 49,816
— Sewerage network - 86,936 33,548 53,388 259 1,199 - (1,198) 319 - - (7,312) - 85,904 39,246 46,658
Other assets:
— Heritage collections - 4.331 - 4331 - 70 - - - - - - - 4,401 - 4,401
— Other - 1,366 1,124 242 12 107 - (137) - - - - - 1,484 1,260 224
IReinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration
assets (refer Note 26):
— Tip assets - 2,191 1,936 255 - - - (23) - - - - - 2,191 1,959 232
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE,
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIP. - 791,407 222,327 569,080 8,719 10,180 (281)|  (10,409) - - 1,725 (8,708) 15,685 794,961 240,339 570,307
Renewals are defined as the rep t of existing ts (as opposed lo the acquisition of new assets).
Refer to Note 27. Fair value measurement for information regarding the fair value of other infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 9b. Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

$'000 Actual Actual
2017 2016
Class of asset Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
carrying depn. and “':;:me"g carrying depn. and Nomng
amount impalrment amount Impairmeant
Water supply
Piant and equipment 571 337 234 495 293 202
Office equipment a7 87 - 87 87 -
Fumiture and fittngs 21 14 7 21 13 8
Land
~ Operational tandg 582 - 582 582 - 582
Infrastructure 94,683 43470 51,213 88.067 38,025 50,042
Total water supply 95,944 43,908 52,036 89,252 38,418 50,834
Sewerage services
Plant and equipment 383 262 121 285 256 39
Office equipment 29 29 - 29 29 -
Furniture and fitings 2 2 - 2 2 ~
Land
~ Operational land 1172 - 1172 1172 - 1172
~ Community land 45 - 45 50 - 50
Infrastructure 90,883 39,246 51,637 68,779 33,548 55,231
Total sewerage services 92,514 39,539 52,975 90,327 33,835 56,492
TOTAL RESTRICTED |,PP&E 188,458 83,447 105,011 179,579 72,253 107,326
Note 9c. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — current year
impairments
Impairment losses recognised in the Income Statement:
In December 2015, the Denman Memorial Hall was badly damaged by fire - (600)
Total impairment losses - (600)
IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS — GAINS/(LOSSES) in P/L o - (600)
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Note 10a. Payables, borrowings and provisions

2017 2016
$ 000 Mol Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Payables
Goods and services — operating expenditure 1,524 - 1.613 -
Goods and services — capital expenditure 2,782 - 3,179 -
Accrued expenses:

— Salaries and wages 210 - - -
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 671 - 675 -
Other 62 - 62 -
Total payables 5,249 - 5,529 -
Income received in advance
Nil
Borrowings
Loans —secured ' 806 24,855 987 26,393
Total borrowings 806 24,855 987 26,393
Provisions
Employee benefits:

Annual leave 1477 - 1.413 -
Long service leave 1,540 320 1,700 280
Other leave 59 - 72 -
Sub-total - aggregate employee benefits 3,076 320 3,185 280
Asset remediation/restoration (future works) - 5,305 - 5,004
Total provisions 3,076 5,625 3,185 5,284

TOTAL PAYABLES, BORROWINGS
AND PROVISIONS

9,131 _ 30,480

9701 _ 31677

(i) Liabilities relating to restricted assets

2017
Current  Non-current

2016
Current  Non-current

Externally restricted assets

Water 1,470 1,956 1,040 2,213
Sewer 1,284 727 947 788
Domestic waste management 89 - 68 -
Liabilities refating to externally restricted assels 2,843 2,683 2,055 3,001
Internally restricted assets

Nil

Total liabilities relating to restricted assets 2,843 2,683 2,055 3,001
Total liabilities relating to unrestricted assets 6,288 27,797 7,646 28 676
TOTAL PAYABLES, BORROWINGS AND

PROVISIONS 9131 30,480 9,701 __ 31677

" Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council

Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found in Note 15.
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 10a. Payables, borrowings and provisions (continued)
Actual Actual
$'000 2017 2016
(ii) Current liabilities not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months
The following liabilities, even though classified as current, are not expected
to be settled in the next 12 months.
Provisions - employees benefits 2,346 2,314
Payables — security bonds, deposits and retentions 165 170
2,511 2,484
Note 10b. Description of and movements in provisions
2016 2017
Opening Remeasurement Unused Closing
Class of provision balance Md‘::“" Dycontue doa : effects due to amounts balance
as at 1/7116 et 5 discounting reversed as at 3006117
Annual leave 1413 926 (862) - - 1,477
Long service leave 1,980 220 (340) - - 1,860
Other leave 72 (13) - - - 59
Assel remediation 5,004 - - 301 - 5,305
TOTAL 8,469 1,133 (1,202) 301 - 8,701

a. Emp!oyees leave entitiements and on-costs reprasents those benefits accrued and payable and an estimate of

those that will become payable in the future as a result of past service.

b. Asset ramediation, reinstalement and restoralion provisions represent the present value eslimate of fulure costs
Council will incur in order to remove, restore and remediate assets andl/or activities as a result of past operations.
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for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 11. Statement of cash flows — additional information

Actual Actual
$ '000 2017 2016
(a) Reconciliation of cash assets
Total cash and cash equivalent assets 6,154 2,319
Less bank overdraft 1 - -
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 6,154 2,319
(b) Reconciliation of net operating result
to cash provided from operating activities

Net operating result from Income Statement 10,048 14,806
Adjust for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation 10,409 9,874
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of assets (86) (4)
Non-cash capital grants and contributions (325) (604)
Impairment losses recognition — |, PP&E - 600
Impairment losses/(prior period reversals) - financial investments - (107)
Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurements through the P&L:

- Investment properties (545) 1,967
Amortisation of premiums, discounts and prior period fair valuations

— 'Held to maturity' financial assets - 45

- Interest exp. on interest-free loans received by Council (previously fair valued 49 56
Unwinding of discount rates on reinstatement provisions 301 283
Share of net (profits) or losses of associates/joint ventures (14) (2)
+/- Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:
Decreasel/(increase) in receivables 90 (2,429)
Decreasel(increase) in inventories (102) 41
Decrease/(increase) in other assets (54) (74)
Increase/(decrease) in payables (89) (186)
Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable 210 -
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (4) (8)
Increase/(decrease) in employee leave entitiements (69) 357
Net cash provided from/(used in)
operating activities from the Statement of Cash Flows 19,819 24,615
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 11. Statement of cash flows — additional information (continued)

Actual Actual

$'000 Notes 2017 2016
(c) Non-cash investing and financing activities
Other dedications - 604
Other non-cash items (Rural Fire Service) 325 -
Total non-cash investing and financing activities 325 604
(d) Financing arrangements
(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the

following lines of credit:
Bank overdraft facilites " 750 750
Credit cards/purchase cards 77 77
Total financing arrangements 827 827
1. The bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

Interest rates on overdrafts are mterest rates on loans and other payables are disciosed in Note 15.

(i) Secured loan liabilities

Loans are secured by a mortgage over future years rate revenue only.
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 12. Commitments for expenditure

Actual Actual
$'000 Notes 2017 2016
(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)
Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment
Buildings 10 2,377
Plant and equipment 1,336 -
Road Infrastructure 1,081 6,870
Land 44 i
Sewerge Infrastructure 27,300 -
Other 1,330 932
Investment property
~ Buildings 35,209 179
Total commitments 66,310 10,358
These expenditures are payable as follows:
Within the next year .. B§310 10358
Total payable 66310 10358
Sources for funding of capital commitments:
Unrestricted general funds - 1,090
Future grants and contributions 9,539 7,040
Unexpended grants 1,361 2,228
Internally restricted reserves 1,966 -
New loans (to be raised) 53,444 -
Total sources of funding 66,310 10,358

Details of capital commitments
Projects that have not been completed in the 2016/17 financial year but have capital commitments,

(b) Operating lease commitments (non-cancellable)

a. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the
reporting date, but not recognised as liabilities are payable:

Within the next year 41 13
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 82 -
Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments 123 13

b. Non-cancellable operating leases include the following assets:
Contingent rentals may be payable depending on the condition of items or usage during the lease term,

Conditions relating to operating leases:
— All operating lease agreements are secured only against the leased asset,
— No lease agreements impose any financial restrictions on Council regarding future debt etc.

(c) Investment property commitments
Council has received grant funding that allows for the partial funding of the refurbishment and repurposing

of Loxton House in Bridge St Muswellbrook.
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 13a. Statement of performance measurement — indicators (consolidated)

Amounts Indicator Prior periods Benchmark

$ '000 2017 2017 2016 2015

Local government industry indicators — consolidated

1. Operating performance ratio

Total continuing operating revenue ' excluding capital

_grants and contributions less operating expenses 3,671 8.12% 282% .3,09%
Total continuing operating revenue ‘'’ excluding capital 45,219

grants and contributions

NG
>0.009%,

2. Own source operating revenue ratio

Total continuing operating revenue ‘"'

excluding all grants and oontnbutiorzs 35,806 70.28%  58.01% 53.60%
Total continuing operating revenue "' 50,951

3. Unrestricted current ratio

Current assets less all extemal restrictions ¥/ 20,016 5.30x . 82k .
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities 3,777 ; : ¥ '
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result ' before capital excluding interest
and depreciation/impalrment/amortisation 15,459 4.91x 3.35% 4.18x %
Principal repayments {Statement of Cash Flows) 3,147
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)
5. Rates, annual charges, interest and

extra charges outstanding percentage < 5%
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding 3,081 14.92%  636%  5.20% Meatio
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible 20,647 ;”l

6. Cash expense cover ratio

Current year's cash and cash equivalents

plus all teem deposits 12 28,157 10.28
Payments from cash flow of operating and 2,738 mths
financing activities

94 mths 140mths > 3mins

Notes

1" Excludes fair value adjustments and reversal of revaluation decrements,
net gain/(loss) on sale of assets and the net share of interests in joint ventures and associates.

™ Refer Notes 6-8 Inclusive.
Also excludes any real estate and land for resale not expected to be sold in the next 12 months

™ Refer to Note 10(a).
I Refer to Note 10{a)il) — excludes all payables and provisions not expected to be paid in the next 12 months (incl. ELE).
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 13b. Statement of performance measurement — indicators (by fund)

Financial Staternents 2017

General indicators * Water indicators
$ '000 2017 2016 2017 2016

Sewer indicators
2017 2016

Benchmark

Local government industry indicators — by fund

1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue '’ excluding capital grants and contributions

less operating expenses - : 8.16%  -2.13% 211%  12.70%
Total continuing operating revenue ' excluding capital grants and contributions

2. Own source operating revenue ratio

il
Total conllnuTng operating revenue = axcluding capital grants and contributions 64.46% 46.98% 92.44% 97.97%
Total continuing operating revenue {

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assels less all external restrictions ! e - o -
Current liabilities less spacific purpose liabilities ©* - . & i}

Notes

-4 Refer to Notes at Note 13a(i) above.
B General fund refers to all of Council's activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately,
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Note 13b. Statement of performance measurement — indicators (by fund) (continued)

Financial Statements 2017

General indicators * Water indicators Sewer Indicators Benchmark
$ '000 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Local government industry indicators — by fund (continued)
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result "'’ before capital excluding interest and
depreciation/impairment/amartisation 4.49% 2 43x 4.26x 5 88x 16.68x 19.64x %
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) plus borrowing costs (Income
Statement)
5. Rates, annual charges, interest and extra charges outstanding percentage
Fintos, sl ) eidsn changes outstanding 15.14%  525% 1023%  6.24% 15.08%  11.30%  <10% Rura
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible
6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year's cash and cash equivalents plus all term deposits %12 6.71 4.88 2421 30.71 23.87 3243 o % st
Payments from cash flow of operating and financing activities months  months months  months months  months
Notes
™ Refer to Notes at Note 13a(i) above
1% General fund refers to all of Council's activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately.

page 48

Attachment A Page 145



Item 12.5 - Attachment A 2016-17 Financial Statements

Financal Statements 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 14. Investment properties

Actual Actual
$'000 Notes 2017 2016
(a) Investment properties at fair value
Investment properties on hand 21,915 20,675
Reconciliation of annual movement:
Opening balance 20,675 8,861
— Acquisitions 2,054 12,310
— Capitalised expenditure — this year 366 2,870
— Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments 545 (1,967)
— Transfers from/(to) owner occupied (Note 9) (1,725) (1,399)
CLOSING BALANCE — INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 21,915 20,675

(b) Valuation basis

The basis of valuation of investment properties is fair vaiue, being the amounts for which the properties could
be exchanged between willing parties in arms length transaction, based on current prices in an active market
for similar properties in the same location and condition and subject to similar leases.

The 2017 revaluations were based on independent assessments made by:
Property Valuations NSW with a market appraisal of each of the properties.

(c) Contractual obligations at reporting date

Refer to Note 12 for disclosures relating to any capital and service obligations that have been contracted.
(d) Leasing arrangements — Council as lessor

Details of leased investment properties are as follows;

Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable
investment property operating leases not recognised in the
financial statements are receivable as follows:

Within 1 year 4144 1,761
Later than 1 year but less than 5 years 12,656 2,279
Later than 5 years 2,978 B64
Total minimum lease payments receivable 19,778 4,904

(e) Investment property income and expenditure — summary

Rental income from investment properties:

— Minimum lease payments 2,219 1,097

Direct operating expenses on investment properties:

— that generated rental income (941) (374)

Net revenue contribution from investment properties 1,278 723
6

:alr value movement for year 545 (1,967)

Total income attributable to investment properties 1,823 (1,244)

Refer 1o Note 27. Fair value measurement for information regarding the fair value of investment properties held.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 15. Financial risk management

$'000

Risk management

Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk
and (4) interest rate nisk.

The Council’s overall isk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign
currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by Council’s finance section under policies approved by the Council
finance section under policies approved by the Council.

A comparison by category of the carrying amounts and fair values of Council's financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the financial statements is presented below.

Carrying value Fair value

2017 2016 2017 2016
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,154 2,319 6,154 2,319
Investments
— "Heid to maturity’ 42,003 48,335 42 864 48,602
Receivables 7,798 7,888 7,798 7,888
Total financial assets 55,955 58,542 56,816 58,809
Financial liabilities
Payables 5,249 5,529 5,249 5,529
Loans/advances _ 25661 27380 _ 25661 _ 27,380
Total financial liabilities 30,910 32909 30,910 32,909

Fair value Is determined as follows:

— Cash and cash equivalents, receivables. payables — are estimated to be the carrying value that approximates
market value.

~ Borrowings and held-to-maturity investments — are based upon estimated future cash flows discounted by the current
mkt interest rates applicable o assets and liabilities with similar risk profiles, unless quoted market prices are available.

~ Financial assets classified (i) ‘at fair value through profit and loss' or (il) ‘available-for-sale’ - are based upon quoted
market prices (in active markets for identical investments) at the reporting date or independent valuation.

Refer to Note 27. Fair value measurement for information regarding the fair value of financial assets and liabllites.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 15. Financial risk management (continued)

$'000

Council's objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and preserving capital,

Council's finance area manages the cash and Investments portfolio with the assistance of independent
advisors.

Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 1993 and Minister's
investment order. This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an investment report is tabled
before Council on a monthly basis setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance.
The risks associated with the investments held are:
— Price risk — the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices,
whether there changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers
or are caused by factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

— Interest rate risk — the nisk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.

— Credit risk — the risk that the investment counterparty will not complete their obligations particular (o a
financial instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council - be it of a capital or income nature.

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing
investments with high credit ratings or capital guarantees.

Council also seeks advice from independent advisers hefore placing any funds in cash equivalents and
investments.

(a) Market risk — price risk and interest rate risk

The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council's Income Statement and accumulated surplus
(for the reporting period) due to a change in either the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable.

It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period.

Increase of values/rates Decrease of values/rates
2017 Profit Equity Profit Equity
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 482 482 482 482
2016
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 506 506 506 506
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 15. Financial risk management (continued)

$'000

(b) Credit risk

Council’'s major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (ii) user charges and fees,

The major risk associated with these receivables is credit risk — the risk that debts due and payable to Council
may not be repaid in full.

Council manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures.
It also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council lo secure a charge over the land
relating to the debts — that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest
on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers,
specific industry sectors and/or regions.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for
acceptable collection performance.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most
non-rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.
A profile of Council’s receivables credit risk at balance date follows:

2017 2017 2016 2016
Rates and Rates and
annual Other annual Other
charges receivables charges receivables
(i) Ageing of receivables - %
Current (not yet overdue) 100% 53% 100% 19%
Overdue 0% 47% 0% 81%
100% 100% 100% 100%
Rates and Rates and

(ii) Ageing of receivables — value annual Other annual Other
Rates and annual charges Other receivables charges  receivables charges  receivables

Current Currant - 663 - 2,324

< 1 year overdue 0 - 30 days overdue 1,849 1,448 892 -

1 — 2 years overdus 31 - 60 days overdue 770 48 214 1,669

2 - § vears overdue 61 - 90 davs overdus 308 923 123 12
> 5 years overdoe > 91 days overcue 154 1,698 18 2699

3,081 4,780 1,247 6,704

(iii) Movement in provision for impairment 2017 2016

of receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year 63 63

Balance at the end of the year 63 63
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(c) Liquidity risk

Payables and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk — the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand
to meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an
adequate cash buffer.

Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.

The contractual undiscounted cash outflows (ie. principal and interest) of Council's payables and borrowings
are set out in the maturity table below:

$°000 Subject Total Actual
to no payable in: cash carrying
maturity S 1 Year 12 Yrs 23 Yrs 34 Yrs 4.5 Yrs >5Yrs  outflows values

2017

Trade/other payables 671 4,578 - - - - = 5.249 5,249
Loans and advances 18,539 1,809 1,809 1,809 1,653 1,653 1653 28925 25661
Total financial liabilittes 19,210 6,387 1809 1,809 1653 1653 1653 34174 30,910
2016

Trade/other payables 675 4,854 - - - - - 5,529 5,529
Loans and advances 19,309 2,361 1,809 1,808 1,653 1,653 6.129 34723 27,380
Total financial liabilities 19,984 7,215 1,808 1,809 1,653 1,653 6,129 40,252 32,909

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely
affect funding costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through the diversification of
borrowing types, maturities and interest rate structures.

The following interest rates were applicable 2017 2016
to Council's borrowings at balance date: Carrying Average Carrying Average

value interest rate value interest rate
Tradel/other payables 5,249 0.00% 5,529 0.00%
Loans and advances - fixed interest rate 19,852 3.75% 21,571 3.85%
Loans and advances — variable interest rate 5,809 3.22% 5,809 3.22%

30910 32909
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Note 16. Material budget variations

Council's original financial budget for 16/17 was adopted by the Council on 27 June 2016.

While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Report must disclose the original
hudget adopted by Council, the Local Government Act 1993 requires Council to review its financial budget
on a quarterly basis, so that it is able to manage the vanous variations between actuals versus budget that
invaniably occur throughout the year.

This note sets out the details of material variations between Council’s original budget and its actual
results for the year as per the Income Statement — even though such variations may have been adjusted for
during each quarterly budget review.

Note that for variations® of budget to actual :
Material variations represent those variances that amount to 10% or more of the original budgeted figure.
F = Favourable budget variation. U = Unfavourable budget variation

2017 2017 2017
$ '000 Budget Actual wnenneee Variance*
REVENUES
Rates and annual charges 19,377 19,243 (134) (1%) u
User charges and fees 13,529 11,592 (1,937) (14%) u

This variance relates to a wide range of User Fees and Charges that were not recived to the same extent that had
been achieved in previous years. The major variances that occurred were in regard to activities such as a newly
acquired commercial bullding (3625K) and a commercial buildings($122K) were less than expected. Aiso less
than expected Water Usage Charges ($244K) and infringements ($55K),

Interest and investment revenue 2:254 2,392 138 8% F

Other revenues 2,325 3,124 799 34% F
This result 1s mainly due 1o more than expected receipt of bullding lease fees, hawever these had been
included in their entity in the subsequent quarterly reviews for 2016/17 financial year.

Operating grants and contributions 6,251 9,413 3,162 51% F
This variation is mainly brought about the early payment of the 50% 2017/18 Financial Assistance Grant. These
payments are recorded in the year of receipt rather than the year they pertain lo as Councll accepts control of the
funds upan the receipt,

Capital grants and contributions 3,964 5732 1,768 45% F
There are a number of major revenues in this category that are not included in the orginal estimates due to the
difficulty faced In the making a meaningful estimate. Major items in this category included Section 64 payments
($704K), additional amounts received for Voluntary Planning Agreements ($290K) and receipting of ($1.181K)

grant funding for the Denman Intersection project that was a carry over program from the pevious year.

Net gains from disposal of assets - 86 86 0% F
Joint ventures and associates - net profits - 14 14 0% F
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2017 2017 2017
$'000 Budget Actual Variance® ———-
EXPENSES
Employee benefits and on-costs 13,696 13,817 (121) (1%) u
Borrowing costs 1,716 1,379 337 20% 3
Planned borrowing for 2016/17 was able to be delayed until 2017/18 for a commercial property purchase.
Materials and contracts 10,823 10,883 (60) (1%) U

This differnece between budget and actual occurred across a range of activities conducted by Councll 2016/17.
They accurred for a variety of reasons including non-completion of the activity, Examples of these activities include
Sewerage Treaiment, Roads to Recovery, Waste Management services and Investigation and Design projects.

Depreciation and amortisation 11,287 10,409 878 8% F
Other expenses 4905 5,060 (155) (3%)

[

Budget variations relating to Council’s Cash Flow Statement include:

Cash flows from operating activities 16,560 19,819 3,259 19.7% F
This resull is due to the higher than expected recelpt of grant funding.

Cash flows from investing activities (40,727) (14,216) 26,511 {65.1%) F
This has resulted from delays in the completion of a range of capital work, That have been carried over to 2017/18,
Cash flows from financing activities (800) (1,768) (968) 121.0% u

This has resulted from Council not undertaking proposed borrowings in 2016/17.
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$ '000

Council recovers contributions, raises levies and enters into planning agreements on development works that are subject to a development consent issued by Council.

All contributions must be spent/utilised for the specific purpose they were levied and any interest applicable to unspent funds must be attributed to remaining funds.

The following tables detail the receipt, interest and use of the above contributions and levies and the value of all remaining funds which are 'restricted’ in their future use.

SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND LEVIES

Contributions Interest Exponditure Internal Held as C‘:’::r'::;m
PURPOSE Opening received during the year earned during borrowing restricted botrowings
balance Cash Non-cash In year year (tojfrom assat dua(payable)
Drainage 210 1 - 8 - 219 -
Roads 700 48 - 27 - 773 -
Parking 2 - - - - 2 -
Open space 540 2 - 20 - 562 —
Community facilities 69 - - 3 - 72 -
Tourism 71 - - 3 (13) 61 -
|Bushfire 96 - - 3 - 99 -
Social Infrastructure 327 2 - 11 (9) 331 -
|S94 contributions — under a plan 2,015 51 - 75 (22) 2,119 -
|S94A levies - under a plan 109 93 - 7 (156) 53 -
Total S94 revenue under plans 2,124 144 - 82 (178) 2172 -
S94 not under plans 3,495 2,322 - - (1,329) 4,488 -
S64 contributions 15,830 825 - 603 (2,467) 14,791
Total contributions 21,449 3,291 - 685 (3,974) 21,451 -
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$ '000
S94 CONTRIBUTIONS — UNDER A PLAN
CONTRIBUTION PLAN
Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as C‘::‘:‘r:“;"’
PURPOSE Opening roceived during the year earned during borrowing restricted W:Bs
balance Cash Non-cash in year year (to)from asset due/(payable)
Drainage 210 1 8 - 219 -
Roads 700 46 27 - 773 -
Parking 2 - - - 2 -
Open space 540 2 20 - 562 -
Community facllities 69 - 3 - 72 -
Tourism 71 - 3 (13) 61 -
|Bushfire 96 - 3 - 99 -
Social Infrastructure 327 2 11 (9) 331 -
Total 2,015 51 75 (22) 2,119 =
S94A LEVIES - UNDER A PLAN
CONTRIBUTION PLAN
Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as C‘m‘m
PURPOSE Opening received during the year earned during borrowing restricted borrowings
batance Cash Non-cash in year year (to)from asset duel{payable)
S94A Levies 109 93 7 (156) 53 =
Total 108 93 7 (156) 53 =
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$ '000
S94 CONTRIBUTIONS — NOT UNDER A PLAN
VOLUNTARY PLANNING AGREEMENTS
Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as C‘:’::‘"";’“
PURPOSE Opening received during the year earned during borrowing restricted bonm::gs
balance Cash Non-cash In year year (to)from asset due/(payable)
Roads = 560 = (503) 57 2
Community facilities 2,705 1.363 - (715) 3,353 -
Recreation 99 325 - - 424 -
Wybong Uplands Strategy 491 - - (37) 454 -
Education 200 - - - 200 =
Environment - 74 - (74) - =
[T otal 3,495 2,322 - (1,329) 4,488 -
S64 contributions
Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as c';::‘:"l"e
PURPOSE Opaning roceived during the year earned during borrowing restricted borrow1:gs
balance Cash Non-cash in year year (to)from asset dus/(payable)
Water 6,161 328 235 = 6,724 =
Sewer 9,669 497 368 (2,467) 8,067 -
otal 15,830 825 603 (2.467) 14,791 -
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The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for
recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but
their knowledge and disclosure is considered relevant
to the users of Council's financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:
1. Guarantees

(i) Defined benefit superannuation
contribution plans

Councli participates In an employer-sponsored
defined benefit superannuation scheme, and makes
contributions as determined by the superannuation
schema's lruslees.

Member councils bear responsibility of ensuring there
are sufficient funds available to pay out the required
benefits as they fall due.

The schemes most recent full actuanal review
Indicated that the net assets of the scheme were
not sufficient to meet the accrued benefits of the
schemes defined benefit member category with
member councils required to make significantly
higher contributions in future years.

The Local Government Superannuation Scheme
however is unable to provide Council with an accurate
estimate of its share of the net deficit and accordingly
Council has not recorded any net liability from it's
defined benefit scheme obligations in accordance
with AASB 118,

Future contributions made to the defined benefit
scheme to rectify the net deficit position will be
recognised as an expense when they become
payable - similar to the accounting for defined
contributions plans.

(ii) Statewide Limited

Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual
pool scheme providing lability insurance to local
government,

Membership includes the potential to share in either
the net assets or liabilities of the fund depending on
its past performance. Council’s share of the net
assets or liabilities reflects Council's contributions to
the pool and the result of insurance claims within
each of the fund years.

The future realisation and finalisation of claims
incurred but not reported to 30/6 this year may result
in future liabilities or benefits as a result of past
events that Council will be required to fund or share
In respectively,

(iii) StateCover Limited

Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited
and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

StateCover Is a company providing workers
compensation insurance cover to the NSW local
government industry and specifically Council.

Council has a contingent liability to contrbute further
equity in the event of the erosion of the company's
capital base as a result of the company's past
performance and/or claims experience or as a result
of any Increased prudential requirements from APRA.

These future equity contributions would be required
to maintain the company's minimum level of net
assets in accordance with its licence requirements.

(iv) Other guarantees

Council has provided no other guarantees other than
those listed above,
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Note 18. Contingencies and other assets/liabilities not recognised (continued)

$'000

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED (continued):
2. Other liabilities
(i) Third party claims

The Council is involved from time to time in various
ciaims incidental to the ordinary course of business
Including claims for damages refating o its services.

Council believes that it is appropriately covered
for all claims through its insurance coverage and
does not expect any material liabilities to eventuate.

(ii) S94 plans

Council levies section 84/94A contributions upon
various development across the Council area through
the required contributions plans.

As part of these pilans, Council has received funds
for which It will be required to expend the monies In
accordance with those plans.

As well, these plans indicate proposed future
expenditure {o be undertaken by Council, which will
be funded by making levies and receipting funds in
fulure years or where a shortfall exists by the use of
Council's general funds.

These future expenses do not yet qualify as liabilities
as of the reporting date, but represent Council's
Intention to spend funds in the manner and timing
set out in those plans,

(iii) Potential land acquisitions due to planning
restrictions imposed by Council

Council has classified a number of privately owned
land parcels as local open space or bushland,

As a result, where notified in writing by the various
owners, Council will be required to purchase these
land parcels.

At reporting date, reliable estimates as to the value
of any potential liability {and subsequent land asset)
from such potential acquisitions has not been
possible.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED:

(i) Land under roads

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected
not to bring to account land under roads that it
owned or controlled up to and including 30/6/08.

(ii) Infringement notices/fines

Fines and penalty income, the result of Council
issuing infringement notices is followed up and

collected by the Infringement Processing Bureau,

Councll's revenue recognition policy for such
income is to account for it as revenue on receipt,

Accordingly, at year end, there is a potential asset
due to Council representing issued but unpaid
Infringement notices.

Due to the limited information available on the status,

value and duration of outstanding notices, Council is
unable to determine the value of outstanding income.
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Note 18. Contingencies and other assets/liabilities not recognised (continued)
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(iii) Contribution to Muswellbrook Cinema

During 2014/15 Council made a conditional loan to the
owners of the Muswellbrook Cinema with the aim of
facilitating the establishment of the cinema. The loan
amount was $650K and is only repayable in the event
of the conditions set out in the agreement between
the owners and Council are not met. The loan is
secured by bank guarantees issued In favour of
Council. The amount repayable decreases in each of
the years between 2014/15 and 2018/19.

The cinema has met all the necessary requirements
dunng 2016/17 and as such the value of the loan
outstanding has been reduced to $390K,

The loan was issued in accardance with Council's
Community Strategic Plan and after an
appropriate period of public consultation.

Related Assets and Liabilities Not Recognised

As a result of the Thomas Mitchell Drive Contribution
Study and the planning and approval conditions
related to that, Council has an obligation to undertake
road works on Thomas Mitchell Drive . These take

the form of a completion of upgrading works, two
reseals and rehabilitation. The reseals are planned for
around 2023 and 2031 and the rehabiliation between
2035 and 2040.

The costs of these works is estimated at $9.74M in
2013 dollars. As the works are undertaken, coal mines
deemed to be the major contributors to the need for the
works are required to make a monetary contributiuon
toward the works. In total, these mines are required lo
pay 39.1% of the actual cost of the works.

As the works are completed the effected coal mines
will be invoiced for their contributions based upon the
costs of the work and their assessed impact on
Thomas Mitchell Drive.
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Council's objectives can and in some cases are best met through the use of separate entities and operations.

These operations and entities range from 100% ownership and control through to lower levels of ownership
and control via co-operative arrangements with other councils, bodies and other outside organisations,

The accounting and reporting for these various entities, operations and arrangements varies in accordance
with accounting standards, depending on the level of council’s (i) interest and (ii) control and the type (form) of
entity/operation, as follows;

Controlled entities (subsidiaries) Note 13(a)
Operational arrangements where Council's control (but not necessarily interest) exceeds 50%.

Joint ventures and associates Note 19(b)
Joint ventures are operational arrangements where the parties that have joint control have

rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

Associates are separate entities where Council has significant influence over the operations

(but neither controls nor jointly controls them).

Joint operations Note 19(c)
Operational arrangements where the parties that have joint control have rights to specific

assets and obligations for specific liabilities relating to the arrangement rather than a right

to the net assets of the arrangement,

Unconsolidated structured entities Note 19(d)
Unconsolidated structured entities represent “special vehicles™ that Council has an interest

in but which are naot controlled by Council and therefore not consolidated as a subsidiary,

Joint arrangement or associate. Attributes of structured entities include restricted activities,

a narrow and well-defined objective and insufficient equity to finance its activities without

financial support.

Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised Note 19(e)

Accounting recognition:

(i) Subsidiaries disclosed under Note 19(a) and joint operations disclosed at Note 19(c) are accounted for on a
‘line by line' consolidation basis within the Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position.

(ii) Joint ventures and associates as per Note 19(b) are accounted for using the equity accounting method
and are disclosed as a 1 line entry in both the Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position.

Council’'s share of net income Council’s share of net assets

Actual Actual Actual Actual

2017 2016 2017 2016

Joint ventures 14 2 105 a1

Associates - - - -

Total 14 2 105 91
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(a) Controlled entities (subsidiaries) — being entities and operations controlled by Council
Council has no interest in any controlled entities (subsidiaries).
(b) Joint ventures and associates

Council has incorporated the following joint ventures and associates into its consolidated financial statements.

(a) Net carrying amounts — Council’s share

Nature of Measurement
Name of entity relationship method 2017 2016
Strategic Services Australia Ltd Joint Venture Equity Method 105 91
Total carrying amounts — material joint ventures and associates 105 91
(b) Details
Place of
Name of entity Principal activity business
Strategic Services Australia Ltd Local Government Services Thornton
(c) Relevant interests and fair values Quoted Interest in Interost in Proportion of
fair value outputs ownership voting power
Name of entity 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
na na 4% 4% 4% 4% 8% 8%

(d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures and associates
Strategic Services Australia

Ltd
Statement of financial position 2017 2016
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 217 212
Other current assets 1,393 1,043
Non-current assets 4129 4827
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities (excl. accounts payable) 2,575 3,307
Other current liabilities 477 294
Non-current liabilities 219 342
Net assets 2,468 2,139
Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Opening net assets (1 July) 2,557 2,084
Profit/(loss) for the period 328 473
Closing net assets 2,885 2,557
Council's share of net assets (%) 4.3% 4.3%
Council's share of net assets (s) 105 91
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(b) Joint ventures and associates (continued)

(d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures and associates (continued)

Strategic Services Australia

Ltd

2017 2016
Statement of comprehensive income
Income 6,213 6,947
Depreciation and amortisation (221) (358)
Interest expense (97) (109)
Other expenses (5,909) (6,611)
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations (14) (131)
Profit/{loss) from discontinued operations 343 603
Profit/(loss) for period 329 472
Total comprehensive income 329 472
Share of income — Council (%) 4.3% 4.3%
Profiti(loss) — Council ($) 14 20
Less Other Changes in Equity - (18)
Total comprehensive income — Council ($) 14 2

(c) Joint operations

Council has no interest in any joint operations.

(d) Unconsolidated structured entities

Council has no unconsolidated structured entities

(e) Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised

All subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates have been recognised in this financial report.
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Note 20. Retained earnings, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting

policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

Actual Actual

$'000 Nots 2017 2016
(a) Retained earnings
Movements in retained earnings were as follows:
Balance at beginning of year (from pravious years audited accounts) 306,238 291,432
a, Net operaling result for the year 10,048 14806
Balance at end of the reporting period 316,286 306,238
(b) Revaluation reserves
(i) Reserves are represented by:

- Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve 294282 302,990

Total 294,282 302,990
(ii) Reconciliation of movements in reserves:

Infrastructure, property, piant and equipment revaluation reserve

- Opening balance 302,990 300,660

— Revaluations for the year %Ha (8,708) 2,330

~ Balance at end of year 204,282 302,990

TOTAL VALUE OF RESERVES 294,282 302,9907
(iii) Nature and purpose of reserves

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve

— The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation

reserve is used to record increments/decrements of non-current
asset values due to their revaluation,

(¢) Correction of error/s relating to a previous reporting period

Council made no correction of errors during the current reporting period.
(d) Voluntary changes in accounting policies

Council made no voluntary changes in any accounting policies during the year.
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Note 21. Financial result and financial position by fund

Income Statement by fund Actual Actual Actual Actual
$'000 2017 2017 2017 2017
Continuing operations DWM Water Sewer  General'
Income from continuing operations

Rates and annual charges 2,244 1,459 3,373 12,167
User charges and fees 12 3,396 516 7,668
Interest and investment revenue 16 663 289 1,424
Other revenues - 133 306 2,685
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 34 134 35 9,210
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes - 328 497 4,907
Other income

Net gains from disposal of assets - - - 86
Share of interests in joint ventures and associates
using the equity method - - - 14
Total income from continuing operations 2,306 6,113 5,016 38,161
Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs 83 1,169 976 11,589
Borrowing costs - 155 54 1,170
Materials and contracts 2163 2,521 1,368 4831
Depreciation and amortisation - 1,482 1,204 7,723
Impairment - - - -
Other expenses 3 244 214 4,599
Total expenses from continuing operations 2,249 5,571 3,816 29912
Operating result from continuing operations 57 542 1,200 8.249
Discontinued operations

Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - - - -
Net operating result for the year 57 542 1,200 _ 8,249
Net operating result attributable to each council fund 57 542 1,200 8,249
Net operating resuit attributable to non-controlling interests - - - -
Net operating result for the year before grants

and contributions provided for capital purposes 57 214 703 3.342

! General tund refers to all Council’s activities other than Water, Sewer and DWM
NB. All amounts disclosed above are gross — that is, they include intemal charges and recoveries made between
the funds,
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Note 21. Financial result and financial position by fund (continued)

Statement of Financial Position by fund Actual Actual Actual Actual
$ '000 2017 2017 2017 2017
ASSETS DWM Water Sewer  General'
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - - 6,154

Investments 91 4,659 2,428 8,075
Receivables 149 879 623 6,147
Inventories - - - 1,741

Other - - - 156
Total current assets 240 5,538 3,051 22 273

Non-current assets

Investments 363 14,087 7,161 5,139
Receivables - 1,451 - (1,451)
Inventories - - - -
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - 52,036 52,975 465,296
Investments accounted for using the equity method - - - 105
Investment property - - - 21915
Intangible assets - - - -
Total non-current assets 363 67,574 60,136 491,004
TOTAL ASSETS 603 73,112 63,187 513,277
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables 89 799 952 3,409
Income received in advance - - - -
Borrowings - 257 62 487
Provisions - 414 270 2392
Total current liabilities 89 1,470 1.284 6,288

Non-current liabilities

Payables - - - -
Borrowings - 1,956 727 22172
Provisions - - - 5,625
Total non-current liabilities - 1,956 727 27,797
TOTAL LIABILITIES 89 3,426 2,011 34,085
Net assets 514 69,686 61,176 479,192
EQUITY

Retained eamings 514 38,028 45,770 231,974
Revaluation reserves - 31,658 15,406 247 218
Total equity 514 69,686 61,176 479,192

! General Fund refers to all Council's activities other than Water, Sewer and DWM
NB. All amounts disclosed above are gross — that is, they include intemal receivables and payables between the funds.
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 22. 'Held for sale’ non-current assets and disposal groups

$'000

Council did not classify any non-current assets or disposal groups as ‘held for sale’.

Note 23. Events occurring after the reporting date

Events that occur between the end of the reporting period (30 June 2017) and the date when the financial
statements are 'authonsed for issue' have been taken into account in preparing these statements.

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors' Report as the applicable 'authorised for issue' date
relating to these General Purpose Financial Statements,

Accordingly, the ‘authonsed for issue' date is 301017,
Events that occur after the reporting period represent one of two types:
(i) Events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting period

These financial statements (and the figures therein) incorporate all ‘adjusting events’ that provided evidence of
conditions that existed at 30 June 2017.

(ii) Events that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the reporting period

These financial statements (and figures therein) do not incorporate any ‘non-adjusting events' that have occurred
after 30 June 2017 and which are only indicative of conditions that arose after 30 June 2017.

Council is aware of the following ‘non-adjusting events’ that merit disclosure:

Muswelibrook Shire Council has purchased an additional commercial building in Muswelibrook. The settlement
of the Muswellbrook Market Place was on 15 August 2017. The deposit was paid in 16/17 financial year

and was taken up in Investment Properties (Note 14). The purchase price was $35M and was funded from
Borrowings, taken up in the 17/18 Financial year.

Note 24. Discontinued operations

Council has not classified any of its operations as 'discontinued'.

Note 25. Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance.

Council Is unaware of any control over intangible assets that warrant recognition in the financial statements,
inciuding either internally generated and developed assets or purchased assets.
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 26. Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration liabilities

$'000

Council has legal/public obligations to make restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the following assets/operations:

Estimated
year of NPV of provision
Asset/operation restoration 2017 2016
Rehabilitation of the Muswellbrook Waste
Management Facility 2027 5,305 5,004
Balance at end of the reporting period 5,305 5,004

Under AASB 116 — Property, Plant and Equipment, where the use of an asset results in the obligation to
dismantle or remove the asset and restore the site on which the asset stands, an estimate of such costs is
required to be included in the cost of the asset.

An equivalent liability must be recognised under AASB 137 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets.

The provision has been calculated by determining the present value of the future expenditures expected to be
incurred. The discount rate used is the risk free borrowing rate applicable to Council,

Specific uncertainties relating to the final costs and the assumptions made in determining the amounts of
provisions include;

— the actual rehabilitation date may change if significant changes occur in relation to the amount of waste
accepted in any given year or technological or statutory changes that impact on useful life of the current waste
void. In such a case, Council will be required to recalculate the annual remediation costs and the value of the
liability.

Reconciliation of movement in provision for year:

Balance at beginning of year 5,004 4721

Amounts capitalised to new or existing assets:

Amortisation of discount (expensed to borrowing costs) 301 283

Total - reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration provision 5,305 5,004
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement

$'000

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:
- Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

- Investment property

- Financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for
either recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a
"level’ in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at

fair values:
| Fair value measurement hierarchy |
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Jnte Quoted Significant Significant
Recurring fair value measurements of latist prices In observable  unobservable
active mkls Inputs inputs
Financial assets
Investment Properties
Commercial Properties V0617 - - 21915 21,915
Total financial assets - - 21,915 21,915
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Plant and Equipment - - 3,718 3,718
Office Equipment 06813 - - 633 633
Furniture and Fittings 06113 - - 661 661
Operational Land e - - 8,384 8,384
Community Land VOBI1? - - 9,998 9,998
Depreciable Land Improvements JOV06(16 - - 3,750 3,750
Buildings - Non-Specialised W61 2 - - 2,800 2,800
Buildings - Specialised 0012 - - 53,991 53,991
Other Structures 0616 - - 6,560 6,560
Roads - - 270,835 270,835
Bridges N85 - - 42,823 42,823
Footpaths 06/15 - - 11,334 11,334
Stormwater Drainage 0/06/15 - - 37,804 37.804
Water Supply Network 0617 - - 49,816 49,816
Sewerage Network YVO6 - - 46,658 46,658
Heritage Collections V06! 14 - = 4,401 4401
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment ; - - 554390 554,390
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at
fair values: (continued)

| Fair value measurement hierarchy |

2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Date Quoted Significant Significant
Recurring fair value measurements of latest prices In observable  unobservable

aclive mkts Inputs inpuls

Financial assets
Investments
Commercial Properties he/17 - - 20,675 20,675
Total financial assets - - 20,675 20,675
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Plant and Equipment AN0B/1 - - 3,958 3,958
Office Equipment 0613 - - 497 497
Furniture and Fittings WN06/13 - - 701 701
Operational Land 30/06/13 - - 8,341 8,341
Community Land 06716 - - 11,795 11,795
Depreciable Land Improvements V0618 - = 3,619 3619
Buildings - Non-Specialised V0612 - - 2,470 2,470
Buildings - Specialised 0612 - - 52,426 52426
Other Structures 08/18 - - 6,298 6,298
Roads 0615 - - 271,076 271,076
Bridges 0E15 - - 43,207 43,207
Footpaths V0615 - = 10,441 10,441
Stormwater Drainage 06/15 - B 38,284 38,284
Water Supply Network - ~ 48,823 48,823
Sewerage Network KNDBI16 - - 53,388 53,388
Heritage Collections YN0 - - 4,331 4,331
Other I0V06(13 - - 242 242
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - - 559,897 559,897

(2) Transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies

During the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring fair
value measurements.
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values

Where Council is unable to derive fair valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets
(ie. leve! 1 inputs) Council instead utilises a spread of both observable Inputs {level 2 inputs) and
unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

The fair valuation techniques Councll has employed while utilising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows:

Financial assets

Council's investments in the form of deposits and other notes held with financial institutions are valued at their face
of par value. This value is adjusted where the security has been acquired at either a discount or a premium with
that discount or premium being amortised over period between the acquisition and the maturity of the security.
This valuation occurs based on the principle that Council has designated the securities as being "Held to Maturity”,
Accounts receivables are valued at their face value.

The key unobservable input is that Council has no motive to test the marketability of either its financial securities or
its accounts receivable.

Investment properties

Council obtains independent valuations of its Investment Properties on an annual basis as at the reporting date in
order to ensure that the Financial Statements include the most current valuation. The best evidence of fair value is
the current price in an active market for similar assets. Investment Property is included in Level 3 of the hierachy.,
The key unobservable input is the estmated lease returns in which the valuations are based.

The fair value is determined by an independent local real estate agent with the appropriate level of expenence and a
solid understanding of the market for local properties of this type, There has been no change to the valuation
process during the reporting period.

Plant and Equipment, Office Equipment and Furniture and Fittings.

Plant and Equipment, Office Equipment and Fumiture and Fittings are valued at cost and this is disclosed as the
fair value in the Notes. The carrying amount of these assets is assumed to approximate fair value due to the nature
of the items. Examples of assets within these classes include;-

- Plant and Equipment including Council’s works and vehicle fleet.

- Office Equipment including computer and associated Equipment including printers, servers, etc.

- Furniture and Fittings includes items such as Office Furniture, blinds and carpets, etc.

The key unobservable inputs into the valuation are the remaining useful life and any residual value. Council reviews

the value of these assets by taking into account the pattern of consumption, estimated remaining useful life and
any residual value. There has been no change to the valuation process dunng the reporting period.
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values (continued)

Operational Land

This asset class comprises all of Council's land classified as Operational Land under the NSW Local
Government Act 1993. The key unobservable input to the valuation is the price per square metre. The last
valuation was undertaken at 30 June 2013 and was performed by Liguid Pacific Valuers.

Generally, fair value is the most advantegeous price reasonably obtainabie by the seller and the most
advantageous price reasonably obtained by the buyer. This is not necessarily the market selling price of the asset,
rather, it is regarded as the maximum value that Council would rationally pay to acquire the asset If it did not hold
it, taking into account quoted market price in an active and liquid market, the current market pnice of the same or
similar asset, the cos! of replacing the asset, If management intend to replace the assel, the remaining useful life
and condition of the asset; and cash flows from the future use and disposal. There has been no change to the
valuation process during the reporting period.

Community Land

Valuations of all Council's Community Land and Counclt managed land were based on the Unimproved Capital
Value as provided by the Valuer-General. As these rates were not considered to be observable market evidence
they have been classified as Level 3. There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting
penod.

Depreciable Land Improvements.

This assel class comprises land improvements such as spectator mounds, swales, berms, gardens, muiched
areas, sireetscaping and landscaping. These assels may be located on parks, reserves and also within road
reserves. 'Land Impravements' were valued in-house using the replacement cost approach by experienced Council
Engineers and Asset Management Staff.

The cost approach has been utilised whereby the replacement cost was estimated for each asset by taking into
account a range of factors, Inputs such as estimates of pattern of consumption, residual value, asset condition
and useful life required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of
fair value, As such, these assets were sl classified as having been valued using Level 3 valuation inputs. There
has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Buildings - Non specialised and Specialised.

Buildings were valued by APV Valuers and Asset Management in June 2012 using the cost approach. The
approach estimated the replacement cost for each building by componentising the buildings into significant parts
with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. While all buildings were physically inspected,
inputs such as estimates of residual value and pattern of consumption required extensive professional judgement
and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair value. As such these assets were classified as having
been valued using Level 3 valuation inputs,

There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.
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Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values (continued)

Other Structures.

This asset class comprises infrastructure such as dog leash free areas, ancillary waste facilities, fences, carparks
and skateparks.

The cost approach has been utilised whereby the replacement cost was estimated for each asset by taking into
account a range of factors, Inputs such as estimates of pattern of consumption, residual value, asset condition
and useful life required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of
fair value, As such, these assets were all classified as having been valued using Level 3 valuation inputs. There
has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Roads, Bridges and Footpaths

This asset class comprises infrastructure including the Road Carriageway, Foolpaths, Guardrails, Kerb and Gutter,
Retaining walls, Bridges and Traffic facilities, The road carriageway is defined as the trafficable portion of a road,
between but not including the kerb and gutter. The 'Cost Approach' using Level 3 inputs was used to value the
road carriageway and other infrastructure within this class. These valuations for the asset class have been based
on calculations carried out intemally by qualified and experienced Council staff.

The cost approach was utilised with inputs such as the estimated pattern of consumption, residual value, asset
condition and useful life requining extensive professional judgement which impacted significantly on the final
determination of fair value. Additionally due to limitations in the historical records of very long fived assets there
was some uncertainty regarding the actual design, specifications and dimensions of some assets. There has
been no change to the valuation process dunng the reporting period.

Drainage Infrastructure

Assets within this class comprise pits, pipes, open channels, headwalls and various types of water quality devices.
The 'Cost Approach’ estimated the replacement cost for each asset by componentising the assets into

significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account & range of factors. The Level of

componentisation adopted by Council is in accordance with Office of Local Government Circular 09-09 and the
Institute of Public Works Engineers Australia’s International Infrastructure Management Manual (IIMM). Inputs such
as estimates of the pattern of consumption, residual value, asset condition and useful life required extensive
professional judgement and impact significantly on the final determination of fair value. Additionally due to
limitations in the historical records of very long lived assets there is uncertainty regarding the actual design,
specifications and dimensions of some assets. There has been no change to the valuation process during the
reporting period.

Water Supply and Sewerage Network

Assets within these classes include the mains, pump stations, access pits, reservoirs and treatment plants which
enable the treatment and reticulation of potable water and the collection and treatment of waste water. Mains are
valued in accordance with the NSW Reference Rates Manual issued by the NSW Office of Water, which is based
on exlensive data collected in relation 1o expected replacement cost of water and sewer mains. All other items are
valued in accordance with their replacement cost. Valuations are undertaken internally by experienced and

qualified Council staff. Inputs such as estimates of the pattern of consumption, residual value, asset condition and
useful life required extensive professional judgement and impact significantly on the final determination of fair value,

Heritage Assets

Assets within this class comprise of Council's Art Collection. The collection is independently valued with the most
racent valuation being completed In 2014.
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Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

Financal Statements 2017

$'000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes.

Plant Office Furniture Operational
and Equipment and Land
Equipment Fittings Total
Opening balance - 1/7/15 3,982 522 787 8,341 13,632
Purchases (GBV) 1,333 141 6 - 1,480
Disposals (WDV) (197) - - - (197)
Depreciation and impairment (1,160) (166) (92) - (1,418)
Closing balance — 30/6/16 3,958 497 701 8,341 13,497
Purchases (GBV) 1.077 301 52 43 1473
Disposals (WDV) (116) - - - (116)
Depreciation and impairment (1,201) (165) (92) - (1,458)
Closing balance — 30/6/17 3,718 633 661 8,384 13,396
Community Deprec. Buildings Buildings
Land Land Non Specialised
Improve. Specialised Total
Opening balance — 1/7/15 9,389 3,899 247 41,500 57,259
Transfers from/(to) another asset class - - - 1,399 1,399
Purchases (GBV) - 13 - 8,066 8,079
Depreciation and impairment - (112) (1) (877) (990)
Revaluation Increments 2,406 (440) - - 1,966
Work in Progress Transfers - 259 - 2,338 2,597
Closing balance - 30/6/16 11,795 3619 2,470 52,426 70,310
Purchases (GBV) - 192 - 708 900
Depreciation and impairment - (110) (1) (537) (648)
Revaluation Increments (1,797) - - - (1,797)
Work in Progress Transfers - 49 - - 49
Other movement (details here) - - - 1,725 1,725
Adjus! specialised/non-specialised balances. - - 331 (331) -
Closing balance - 30/6/17 9,998 3,750 2,800 53,991 70,539
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Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes. (continuad)

Other Roads Bridges  Footpaths
Structures
Total
Opening balance - 1/7/15 7.449 258,320 43,812 9,792 319,373
Purchases (GBV) 312 4,125 - 930 5,367
Disposals (WDV) - (138) - - (138)
Depreciation and impairment (283) (3,522) (605) (281) (4,691)
Work in Progress Transfer 12 12,291 - - 12,303
Revaluation Increment (1,192) - - - (1,192)
Closing balance — 30/6/16 6,298 271,076 43,207 10,441 331,022
Purchases (GBV) 540 4,002 221 760 5523
Disposals (WDV) - (135) - (30) (165)
Depreciation and impairment (343) (3,658) (605) (305) (4,911)
Work in Progress Transfer 18 - - 83
Balance between Roads and Footpaths. - (468) - 468 -
Closing balance - 30/6/17 6,560 270,835 42,823 11334 331,552
Stormwater Water  Sewerage Other
Drainage Supply Network Minor
Network Classes Total
Opening balance - 1/7/15 38,576 48,081 50,001 4,576 141,234
Purchases (GBV) 123 1,367 1,590 122 3,202
Depreciation and impairment (593) (1,438) (1,196) (125) (3,352)
Work in Progress Transfer 178 73 2177 - 2,428
Revaluation Increment - 740 816 - 1,556
Closing balance - 30/6/16 38,284 48823 53388 4573 145,068
Purchases (GBV) 115 1,849 1,461 189 3714
Depreciation and impairment (595) (1,438) (1,198) (137) (3.368)
Work in Progress Transfer - 81 319 - 400
Revaluation Increment - 401 (7,312) - (6,911)
Closing balance - 30/6/17 37,804 49,816 46,658 4,625 138,903
(5). Highest and best use
All of Council's non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 28. Related party disclosures

a. Key management personnel

Key management personnel {KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
council, directly or indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

Actual
Compensation: 2017
Short-term benefits 856,342
Post-employment benefits 109,682
Other long-term benefits 22,080
Termination benefits 14,508
Total 1,002,612
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Note 28. Related party disclosures (continued)

$ '000

b. Other transactions with KMP and their related parties

Council has determined that transactions at arm's length between KMP and Council as part of Council delivering a public service objective (e.g. access to library
or Council swimming pool by KMP) will not be disclosed.

Nature of the transaction Value of Outstanding Terms and conditions Provisions Doubtful
transactions balance for doubtful debts
during year (incl. loans and debts expense
commitments) outstanding recognised

$'000 $'000 $000 $'000

Bush Regeneration Works 124 - 21 days - -
Upper Hunter Weeds Authority -Contribution 79 - Annually - -
Contributon from Upper Hunter Weeds Authority 38 Annually - -
Local Government Training Institute - Training Services 34 - 7 days - -
Hunter Council Inc. - Training Services 9 - 7 days - -

page 79

Attachment A Page 175



Item 12.5 - Attachment A 2016-17 Financial Statements

\(OF-GEy,

o @,e’

S
¥ C

4, &

%

"
Soyrn "

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the general purpose financial statements

Muswellbrook Shire Council

To the Councillors of Muswellbrook Shire Council
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Muswellbrook Shire Council (the Council),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the income statement, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the Statement by Counciliors and Management.

In my opinion,
. the Council’s accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 1993, Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2 (the Division)
. the financial statements:
- have been presented, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of this
Division
- are consistent with the Council's accounting records

- present fairy, in all material respects, the financial position of the Council as at
30 June 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

. all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained

no matenial deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements have come to light
during the audit.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of my report.

| am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).

| have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Leved 15, 1 Margaret Street, Sydney NSW 2000 | GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | 10292757101 | 102 0275 7179 | e malaudt rewgovay | suditnsw.gov.au
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Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parfiament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General
. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

The Councillors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1993, and for such
internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors must assess the Council’s ability to continue as a
going concern except where the Council will be dissolved or amalgamated by an Act of Parliament.
The assessment must disclose, as applicable, matters related to going concern and the
appropriateness of using the going concem basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect matenal misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take based
on the financial statements,

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: waw auash gov.au/auditors rasponsibilities/ar3 pdf
The description forms part of my auditor's report.
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My opinion does not provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. on the Original Budget information included in the Income Statement, Statement of Cash Flows,
Note 2(a) and Note 16 budget variation explanations

. on the attached Special Schedules

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented
. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

B

David Nolan
Director, Financial Audit Services

30 October 2017
SYDNEY
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Cr Martin Rush
mayor sh Co | Contact: David Nolan
uswellbrook Shire Counci

PO Box 122 Phone no, 92?."; 71.377
Muswellbrook NSW 2333 Our ref: D1728552/1765

30 October 2017
Dear Mayor

Report on the Conduct of the Audit
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council
| have audited the general purpeose financial statements of Muswellbrook Shire Council (the Council)
for the year ended 30 June 2017 as required by s415 of the Local Government Act 1993 (the Act).
| expressed an unmedified opinion on the Council's general purpose financial statements.

This Report on the Conduct of the Audit (the Report) for the Council for the year ended 30 June 2017
is issued in accordance with section 417 of the Act. This Report should be read in conjunction with my
audit opinion on the general purpose financial statements issued under section 417(2) of the Act.

INCOME STATEMENT
Operating result
2017 2016 Variance
$m $m %
Rates and annual
charges revenue 19.2 18.4 43 1
Grants and 3
contributions revenue 151 24.7 38.9
Operating result 100 e -
for the year
Net operating result %
before capital amounts 4.3 (0.8)
Leovel 15, 1 Murganet Street, Sydney NSW 2000 | GFO Bax 12, Sycney NEW 2001 | 102 9275 7100 1 102 0275 7200 | @ musket i ooe il | suditnsw.gow s
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The operating result for the year was a surplus of $10 million (2016: $14.8 million) and included a
depreciation expense of $10.4 million (2016: $9.9 million). The lower operating result for this year is
mainly due to a reduction in the receipt of capital grants and contributions,

Rates and annual charges represent 37 per cent of Council's total revenues.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The Statement of Cash Flows Statement of Cash Flows
illustrates the flow of cash and cash 15 ¢
equivalents moving in and out of

Counail dunng the year and reveals

that cash increased by $3.8 million to 5 _- l’[ )
$6.2 million at the close of the year. 2 0 ‘ N u

The increase can be attributed to the .
receipt of the prepayment of the w4

Financial Assistance Grant. A0 L
($1.6 million) 2015 2016 2017

Year ended 30 June
e Nel cash Now » Cash and cash equivalents
In addition to operating activities which contributed net cash of $19.8 million were the proceeds from
the sale of investment securities ($14.1 million) and sale of assets ($844,000). Cash outflows other

than operating activities were used to purchase investment securities ($7.8 million), repay loans
($1.8 million) and to purchase and construct assets ($21.4 million).

FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and Investments

Restricted Cash and 2017 2016 Commentary
Investments
$m Sm
External restrictions 36.4 38.1 Cash and investments amounted to $48.2 million at
R —— 1.8 12.4 30 June 2017 (2016: $50.7 million).
Unrestricted Qo 0.2
Cash and investments 482 50.7

Externally restricted cash and investments are restricted in their use by externally imposed
requirements. These include unspent grants and contributions and domestic waste, water and
sewerage funds.

Internally restricted cash and investments have been restricted in their use by resolution or policy of
Council to reflect forward pians and identified programs of works. These totalled $11.8 million and
their purpose is fully disclosed in Note 6 of the financial statements.

The Council's unrestricted cash and investments amounted to $3,000.
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Debt

After repaying principal and interest of $3.1 million during the financial year, total debt as at
30 June 2017 was $25.7 million (2016: $27.4).

PERFORMANCE RATIOS

The definition of each ratio analysed below (except for the 'building and infrastructure renewals ratio’)
is included in Note 13 of the Council's audited general purpose financial statements. The ‘building and
infrastructure renewals ratio” is defined in Council's Special Schedule 7,

Operating performance ratio

The ‘operating performance ratio’
measures how well coundil contained
operating expenditure within
operating revenue (excluding capital
grants and contributions, fair value
adjustments, and reversal of o |
revaluation decrements). The o e .
benchmark set by the Office of Local —-
Government (OLG) is greater than |

Zero per cent. 2015 2016 2017

Operating performance ratio

Ratio

Year ended 30 June

m Opesating parformance ratio s industry banchmark > 0%

Council’s operating performance indicator of 8.1 per cent (2.6 per cent in 2016) exceeded the
benchmark due to the improved operating result before capital grants and contributions.

Own source operating revenue ratio

The 'own source operating revenue
ratio' measures council's fiscal
flex:bility and the degree lo which it
relies on external funding sources

Own source oparating revenue ratio

such as operating grants and Ratio
contributions, The benchmark set by
OLG is greater than 60 per cent.
2015 2016 2017
Year ended 30 June
m_— OWn Source opearating revenue ratio
— |rUSlry banchmark > 60%

Council's own source operating revenue ratio was 70 per cent for 2016/17 (58 per cent in 2016) and
now exceeds the benchmark of 60 per cent.
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Unrestricted current ratio

The ‘unrestricted current ratio’ is

Unrestricted currant ratio
specific to local government and

represents council’s ability to meet its g
short-term obligations as they fall due. 4
The benchmark setby OLG is greater .,
than 1.5 times. x 2
S =
0 . )

2015 2016 2017
Year ended 30 June
 Unrestricted current ratio

w—|ri0USIry benchmark > 1.5x

Council's unrestricted current ratio increased to 5.3 as at 30 June 2017 (2 in 2016) and exceeded the
benchmark of 1.5 times. The improvement in the ratio is primarily due to a greater level of cash and
investments being held in shorter term deposits.

Debt service cover ratio

The ‘debt service cover ratio’ Debt sarvica cover ratio

measures the operating cash to
service debt including interest, 6 r
principal and lease payments. The 5
benchmark set by OLG is greater than Al
two times. Ratio
X %k

2

1 -

(1 [ — . . J

2015 2016 2017

Year ended 30 Jung

mm Debl service cover ralio e |ngustry benchmark > 2x

The debt service cover ratio for the Council as at 30 June 2017 was 4.9 (3.4 in 2016), exceeding the
benchmark of 2.
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Rates and annual charges outstanding ratio

The ‘rates and annual charges

; Ratas and annual charges outstanding ratio
outstanding ratio’ assesses the impact ‘

of uncollected rates and annual e
charges on councd's liquidity and the 15 L
adequacy of debt recovery efforts.
The benchmark setby OLG is beiow "7 |
10 per cent for rural councils.
I
0 : L

2015 2018 2017
Year anded 30 June
s Rates and annual charges outsatanding ratio
e dustry benchmark < 10%

The rates and annual charges outstanding ratio stood at 14.9 per cent as at 30 June 2017

(6.4 per cent in 2016) and is now worse than industry benchmark of being below 10 per cent. This
ratio was impacted as at 30 June 2017 by the late receipt of payment for a significant rating
assessment due to the timing of a property valuation.

Cash expense cover ratio

This liquidity ratio indicates the number Cash expense cover ratio
of months the council can continue

paying for its immediate expenses 16 r

without additional cash inflow, The 14

benchmark set by OLG is greater than 12

three months.

(months)

g2 10
35 8
(14
h‘ S
4
2t
0 )

2015 2016 2017
Yaar ended 30 Juna

mmm Cash expenss cover ratio
w— | rydustry benchmark > 3 months

Council's cash expense cover ratio was over ten months and continues to easily exceed the
benchmark of three months,
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Building and infrastructure renewals ratio

The 'building and infrastructure
renewals ratio assesses the rate at
which these assets are being renewad 200
against the rate at which they are

depreciating. The benchmark set by 150
OLG is greater than 100 per cent. Ratio

Building and infrastructure renewals ratio

This ratio is sourced from information ) i e
contained In council’'s Special ‘
Schedule 7 which has not been
audited. 2

il

2015 2018 2017

Year ended 30 June

s Buiiding and infrastructura repewals ratio
— N dustry benchmark > 1004

Special Schedule No. 7 disclosed infrastructure renewals for 2017 represented 94 per cent
(116 per cent in 2016) of the depreciation charges for those assets; below the benchmark of
100 per cent,

OTHER MATTERS
New accounting standards implemented

AASB 124 ‘Related Party Disclosures’

Effective for annual reporting periods AASB 2015-6 extended the scope of AASB 124 to Include not-
beginning on or 1 July 2016 for-profit public sector entities. As a result, Council’s financial
statements disclosed the:
© compensation pald to their key management personnel
© nature of their related party relationships
© amount and nature of their related party transactions,
outstanding balances and commitments and outstanding
balances (including commitments).

Asset Revaluations

Council’s infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are required to be carried at fair value with
revaluations of each asset class to be performed at least every five years.

During the year, water and sewerage infrastructure and community land was revalued. This resulted in
a net decrease of $8.7 million recognised directly in Asset Revaluation Reserves.

Legislative compliance

My audit procedures did not identify any instances of non-compliance with legisiative requirements or
a material deficiency in the Council's accounting records or financial reports, The Council's:

o accounting records were maintained in a manner and form to allow the general purpose
financial statements to be prepared and effectively audited

-] staff provided all accounting records and information relevant to the audit.
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Management acknowledgement
The audit team appreciated the co-operation and help received from the Council’s staff, in particular,
the finance team for their invaluable assistance throughout the audit.

D WV S

David Nolan
Director, Financial Audit Services

30 October 2017
SYDNEY

cc: Stephen McDonald, General Manager
Ms Brigette Thomas, Chair of the Audit Committee
Mr Tim Hurst, Acting Chief Executive of the Office of Local Government
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Contents Page
1. Statement by Councillors and Management 2
2. Special Purpose Financial Statements:
Income Statement — Water Supply Business Activity 3
Income Statement — Sewerage Business Activity 4
Income Statement — Other Business Activities 5
Statement of Financial Position — Water Supply Business Activity 6
Statement of Financial Position — Sewerage Business Activity 7
Statement of Financial Position — Other Business Activities 8
3. Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements 9
4. Auditor's Report 18

Background

(0

(i

(i)

(iv)

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of
Local Government In fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a leval playing field' between persons/entities
competing in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially, the principle is that government businessas, whether Commonwealth, state or local, should operate
without net competitive advantages aver other businesses as a result of their public ownership,

For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to declared business activities.

These Include {a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being
water supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation, and (b) those activities with a turnover
of more than $2 million that Council has formally declared as a buginess activity (defined as Category 1 activities).

In preparing these financial statements for Counail's sell-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined
aclivities, counciis must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including tax-equivalent
regime payments and debt guarantes fees (where the business banefits from Council's borrowing position by
comparison with commercial rates).

Attachment A

Page 187



Item 12.5 - Attachment A 2016-17 Financial Statements

SPFS 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

the NSW Government Policy Statement 'Application of National Competition Policy to
Local Government’,

the Division of Loca! Government Guidelines "Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses —
A Guide to Competitive Neutrality’,

the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,

* the NSW Office of Water Best-Practice Management of Water and Sewerage Guidelines.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these financial statements:

¢ present fairly the operating result and financial position for each of Council's declared business

activities for the year, and

*  accord with Council's accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 12 September 2017.

g

! ‘«/\/\M

Cr. M. Rush v Cr. 57 Baflay
Mayor buricilior

;/‘

&
0 “ /\ \\}
S (A=
Mr. S, McDonaid Mrg WCowley
General manager Responsible accounting officer
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Income Statement of Council's Water Supply Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Actual Actual
$ '000 2017 2016
Income from continuing operations
Access charges 1,459 1,380
User charges 3,396 3,422
Fees - -
Interest 663 976
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes 134 36
Profit from the sale of assets - 9
Other income 133 241
Total income from continuing operations 5,785 6,064
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 1,169 1,007
Borrowing costs 155 171
Materials and contracts 2,521 2,370
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 1,482 1,482
Water purchase charges - -
Calculated taxation equivalents - -
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable) - -
Other expenses 244 263
Total expenses from continuing operations 5,571 5,293
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 214 7M1
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 328 88
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 542 859
Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations - -
Surplus {deficit) from all operations before tax 542 859
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital] (64) (231)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 478 628
Plus opening retained profits 37,486 36,627
Plus/less: prior period adjustments - -
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments - -
- Debt guarantee fees - -
~ Corporate taxation equivalent 64 231
Less:
— Tax equivalent dividend paid - -
— Surplus dividend paid_ 8 =
Closing retained profits 38,028 37,486
Return on capital % 0.7% 1.9%
Subsidy from Council 869 161
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax 478 628
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions) (328) (88)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 150 540
Potential dividend calculated from surplus 75 270
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Income Statement of Council's Sewerage Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Actual Actual
$ ‘000 2017 2016
Income from continuing operations
Access charges 3.373 3,350
User charges 463 388
Liquid trade waste charges 53 42
Fees - -
Interest 289 557
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes 35 34
Profit from the sale of assets - -
Other income 306 304
Total income from continuing operations 4,519 4,675
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 976 889
Borrowing costs 54 59
Materials and contracts 1,368 1.271
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 1,204 1,210
Calculated taxation equivalents 9 1"
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable) - -
Other expenses 214 189
Total expenses from continuing operations 3,825 3,629
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 694 1,046
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 497 1,091
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 1,191 2,137
Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations — -
Surplus {deficit) from all operations before tax 1,191 2137
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital] (208) (314)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 983 1,823
Plus opening retained profits 44743 42595
Plus/less: prior period adjustments - -
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent paymenis 9 1
- Debt guarantee fees - -
— Corporate taxation equivalent 208 314
Less:
— Tax equivalent dividend paid = -
— Surplus dividend paid (173) -
Closing retained profits 45,770 44,743
Return on capital % 1.4% 2.0%
Subsidy from Council 513 121
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax 983 1,823
Less: capital grants and contributions (exciuding developer contributions ) ) (497) (1.091)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 486 732
Potential dividend calculated from surplus 243 366
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Commercial
Buildings
Category 2

Actual Actual
$'000 2017 2016
Income from continuing operations
Access charges - -
User charges 2,363 1,239
Fees - -
Interest - 20
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes - -
Profit from the sale of assets = -
Share of profit from equity accounted investment - -
Other income 7 -
Total income from continuing operations 2,370 1,259
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 87 -
Borrowing costs 665 174
Materials and contracts 514 332
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment pach| 14
Loss on sale of assets - -
Calculated taxation equivalents - -
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable) - -
Other expenses 341 2,689
Total expenses from continuing operations 1898 3209
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 472 (1,950)
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes - -
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 472 (1,950)
Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations - -
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 472 (1,950)
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30%) [cased on result before capital) (142) -
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 330 (1,950)
Plus opening retained profits 15.858 18,210
Plus/less: prior period adjustments - -
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
~ Taxation equivalent payments - -
— Debt guarantee fees - -
— Corporate laxation equivalent 142 -
Add:
— Subsidy paid/contribution to operations 1,251 (402)
Less:
- TER dividend paid - -
- Dividend paid - -
Closing retained profits 17,581 15,858
Return on capital % 11.1% -17.2%
Subsidy from Council - 2,001
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Water Supply Business Activity

as at 30 June 2017

Actual Actual
$ ‘000 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents - -
Investments 4,659 4,685
Receivables 879 668
Inventories - -
Other - -
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - -
Total current assets 5,538 5,353
Non-current assets
Investments 14,087 14,312
Receivables 1.451 1,497
Inventories - -
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 52,036 50,834
Investments accounted for using equity method - -
Investment property - -
Intangible assets - -
Total non-current assets 67,574 66,643
TOTAL ASSETS 73,112 71,996
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Bank overdrait - -
Payables 799 411
Income received in advance - -
Borrowings 257 257
Provisions 414 372
Total current liabilities 1,470 1,040
Non-current liabilities
Payables - -
Borrowings 1,956 2,213
Provisions o -
Total non-current liabilities 1,956 2,213
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,426 3,253
NET ASSETS 69,686 68,743
EQUITY
Retained eamings 38,028 37,486
Revaluation reserves 31,658 31,257
Other reserves - -
Council equity interest 69,686 68,743
Non-controlling equity interest - 35
TOTAL EQUITY 69,686 68,743
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Sewerage Business Activity

as at 30 June 2017

Actual Actual
$ ‘000 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents - -
Investments 2428 3,019
Receivables 623 454
Inventories - -
Other - -
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - -
Total current assets 3,051 3,473
Non-current assets
Investments 7,161 9,236
Receivables - -
Inventories - -
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 52,975 56,492
Investments accounted for using equity method - -
Investment property - -
Intangible assets - -
Total non-current assets 60,136 65,728
TOTAL ASSETS 63,187 69,201
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Bank overdrait - -
Payables 952 648
Income received in advance - -
Borrowings 62 63
Provisions 270 236
Total current liabilities 1,284 947
Non-current liabilities
Payables - -
Borrowings 727 788
Provisions A -
Total non-current liabilities 727 788
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,011 1,735
NET ASSETS 61176 67,466
EQUITY
Retained eamings 45.770 44743
Revaluation reserves 15,406 22,723
Other reserves - -
Council equity interest 61,176 67,466
Non-controlling equity interest o S
TOTAL EQUITY 61,176 67,466
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Other Business Activities
as at 30 June 2017

Commercial Buildings

Category 2
Actual Actual
$ '000 2017 2016

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents - -
Investments = s
Receivables - -
Inventories - -
Other - —
Total current assets - =

Non-current assets

Investments 3 3
Receivables - -
Inventories 1,497 1,947
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 10,266 10,350
Investments accounted for using equity method - -
Investment property 21915 20,675
Intangible assets - -
Total non-current assets 33681 32975
TOTAL ASSETS 33,681 32,975

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Bank overdraft - it
Payables = -
Income received in advance - -
Borrowings - -
Provisions - _
Total current liabilities - =

Non-current liabilities

Payables - -
Borrowings 16,100 17,417
Provisions - -
Total non-current liabilities 16,100 17,117
TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,100 17,117
NET ASSETS 17,581

EQUITY

Retained eamings 17,581 15,858
Revaluation reserves - -
Other reserves o - -
Council equity interest 17,581 15,858
Non-controlling equity interest - -
TOTAL EQUITY 17,581 - 1 5,558_
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Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements
Note Details
1 Summary of significant accounting policies
2 Water Supply Business Best-Praclice Management disclosure requirements

3 Sewerage Business Best-Practice Management disclosure requirements
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Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies

A statement summansing the supplemental
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
Special Purpose Financial Statements (SPFS) for
National Competition Policy (NCP) reporting
purposes follows.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for
use by Council and the Office of Local Government.
For the purposes of these statements, the Council is
a non-reporting not-for-profit entity,

The figures presented in these Special Purpose
Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement
criteria of relevant Australian Accounting Standards,
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian
Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these Special Purpose Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), the Local
Government (General) Regulation, and the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice and
Financial Reporting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis.
They are based on historic costs and do not take into
account changing money values or, except where
specifically stated, current values of non-current
assets. Certain taxes and other costs, appropriately
described, have been Iimputed for the purposes of
the National Competition Policy.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive
neutrality’ in its business activities as part of the
National Competition Policy which is being applied
throughout Australia at all levels of government.

The framework for its application is set out in the
June 1996 NSW government policy statement titled
‘Application of National Competition Policy to Local
Government'.

The Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses, A
Guide to Competitive Neutrality issued by the Office
of Local Government in July 1997 has also been
adopted.

The pricing and costing guidelines outline the
process for identifying and allocating costs to

activites and provide a standard for disclosure
requirements,

These disclosures are reflected in Council's pricing
and/or financial reporting systems and include
taxation equivalents, Council subsidies, return on
investments (rate of return), and dividends paid.

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council
Businesses - A Guide to Competitive Neutrality,
Council has declared that the following are to be
considered as business activities:

Category 1

(where gross operaling lurmover is over $2 millian)
a. Water Supplies

Provision of portable water for the communities of
Muswellbrook, Denman and Sandy Hollow

b. Sewerage Services
Provision of sewerage treatment of the communities of
Muswellbrook and Denman

Category 2

(where gross opevating turnover is less than $2 miion)

a. Commercial Buildings

The provision of residential and commercial properties
for the lease and the sale of both development ready
and surplus vacant land.

Monetary amounts

Amounts shown in the financial statements are in
Australian currency and rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars, except for Note 2 (Water Supply
Best-Practice Management Disclosures) and Note 3
(Sewerage Best-Practice Management Disclosures).

As required by the NSW Office of Water (Department

of Primary Industries) the amounts shown in Note 2
and Note 3 are disclosed in whole doilars.
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Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Taxation-equivalent charges

Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial
duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as
a cost of operations just like all other costs.

However, where Council does not pay some taxes
which are generally paid by private sector
businesses, such as income tax, these equivalent fax
payments have been applied to all Council-
nominated business activities and are reflected in
Special Purpose Financial Statements.

For the purposes of disclosing comparative
information relevant to the private sector equivalent,
the following taxation equivalents have been applied
to all Council-nominated business activities (this
does not include Council's non-business activities):

Notional rate applied (%)

Corporate income tax rate — 30%

Land tax — the first $549,000 of the combined land
values attracts 0%. For the combined land values in
excess of $594,001 up to $3,357,000 the rate is
1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land value
that exceeds $3,357,000 a premium marginal rate of
2.0% applies.

Payroll tax — 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries
and wages in excess of $750,000.

In accordance with the Department of Primary
Industries Water (DPIW), a payment for the amount
calculated as the annual tax equivalent charges
{excluding income tax) must be paid from water
supply and sewerage business activities,

The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred
to in the NSW Office of Water Guidelines to as a
‘dividend for taxation equivalent’, may be applied for
any purpose allowed under the Local Government
Act, 1993.

Achievement of substantial compliance to the NSW
Office of Water Guidelines is not a prerequisite for
the payment of the tax equivalent charges, however
the payment must not exceed $3 per assessment.

Income tax

An income tax equivalent has been applied on the
profits of the business activities.

Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the
purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to be
taken into account in terms of assessing the rate of
return required on capital invested.

Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a
pre-tax level - gain/(loss) from ordinary activities
before capital amounts, as would be applied by a
private sector competitor. That is, it should include a
provision equivalent to the corporate income tax rate,
currently 30%.

Income tax is only applied where a gain/ (loss) from
ordinary activities before capital amounts has been
achieved.

Since the taxation equivalent is notional — that is, it is
payable to Council as the 'owner of business
operations - it represents an intemal payment and
has no effect on the operations of the Council,
Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of
internal charges in the SPFS.

The rate applied of 30% the equivalent company tax
rate prevalent at reporting date. No adjustments
have been made for vanations that have occurred
during the year.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges
payable on all category 1 businesses has been
applied to all land assets owned or exclusively used
by the business activity.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that
council business activities face ‘true’ commercial
borrowing costs in line with private sector
competitors.

In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Council
has determined what the differential borrowing rate
would have been between the commercial rate and
Council’s borrowing rate for its business activities.
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Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Subsidies

Government policy requires that subsidies provided
to customers, and the funding of those subsidies,
must be explicitly disclosed.

Subsidies occur when Council provides services on a
less-than-cost-recovery basis. This option is
exercised on a range of services in order for Council
to meet its community service obligations.

Accordingly, 'subsidies disclosed” (in relation to
National Competition Policy) represents the
difference between revenue generated from 'rate of
returmn’ pricing and revenue generated from prices set
by Council in any given financial year,

The overall effect of subsidies is contained within the
Income Statement of each reported business activity.

(iii) Return on investments (rate of return)

The NCP policy statement requires that councils with
Category 1 businesses 'would be expected to
generate a return on capital funds employed that is
comparable to rates of return for private businesses
operating in a similar field'.

Such funds are subsequently available for meeting
commitments or financing future investment
strategies.

The actual rate of return achieved by each business
activity is disclosed at the foot of each respective
Income Statement.

The rate of return is calculated as follows:

Operating result before capital income + interest expense

Written down value of |, PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generate a
return equal to the Commonweaith 10 year bond rate
which Is 2.38% at 30/6/17.

(iv) Dividends
Council is not required to pay dividends to either

itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any
external entities.

Local govermnment water supply and sewerage
businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend
from its water supply or sewerage business surplus.

Each dividend must be calculated and approved in
accordance with the DPIW guidelines and must not
exceed:

(i) 50% of this surplus in any one year, or

(ii) the number of water supply or sewerage
assessments at 30 June 2017 multiplied by $30
(less the payment for tax equivalent charges, not
exceeding $3 per assessment).

In accordance with the DPIW guidelines a Dividend
Payment form, Statement of Compliance, Unqualified
Independent Financial Audit Report and Compliance
Audit Report are required to be submitted to the
DPIW.
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SPFS 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2. Water supply business
best-practice management disclosure requirements

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated)

1. Calculation and payment of tax-equivalents
[all local government local water utilities must pay this dividend for tax equivalents)

(i) Calculated tax equivalents

(ii)  Number of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment
(i) Amounts payable for tax equivalents flosser of (i) and (Ii})
(iv) Amounts actually paid for tax equivalents
2. Dividend from surplus

(i) 50% of surplus before dividends

[calculated in accordance with Best-Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]

(i)  Number of assessments multiplied by $30/assessment, less tax equivalent
charges/assessment

(iil) Cumulative surplus before dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2017, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015

2017 Surplus 2016 Surplus 539.700 | 2015 Surplus (61,000
2016 Dividend = 2015 Dividend -
(iv) Maximum dividend from surplus fleast of (1), (i) and (iii) above) 74,900

(v) Dividend actually paid from surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment criteria)
(vi) Are the overhead reallocation charges to the water business fair and reasonable? *

3. Required outcomes for 6 criteria
[to be eligible for the payment of a ‘dividend from surplus’, all the criteria below need a 'YES’)

(i) Completion of strategic business plan (including financial plan)

(i) Full cost recovery, without significant cross subsidies
[refer item 2 (a) In table 1 on page 22 of the Best-Practice Guidelines)

~ Complying charges [item 2 (b} In table 1]
~ DSP with commercial developer charges [item 2 («) in table 1]
— If dual water supplies, complying charges [item 2 (g) In table 1]

(li)  Sound water conservation and demand management implemented
(iv) Sound drought management implemented
(v) Complete performance reporting form (by 15 September each year)
(vi) a. Integrated water cycle management evaluation
b. Complete and implement integrated water cycle management strategy
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2. Water supply business
best-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)

SPFS 2017

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated)

2017

National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators

NWI F1

NWIF4

NWIF9

NWIF11

NWI F14

NWI F17

NWI F26

Notes: 1,

Total revenue (water)
Total i {w13)~g for the acquisition of {w11a) « interest income (w9)
~ Aboriginal Communities W&S Program income (w10a)

Revenue from residential usage charges (water)

from residentlal usage charges (wéb) x 100 divided by the sum of
[income from residential usage charges (w6a) + Income from residential
access charges (wéb))

Written down replacement cost of fixed assets (water)
Written down current cost of system assets (wd7)

Operating cost (OMA) (water)
Management expenses (w1) ¢ operational and maintenance expenses (w2)

Capital expenditure (water)
Acquisition of fixed assets (w16)

Economic real rate of retum (water)

[total iIncome (w13) ~ Interest income (w@) — grants for acquisition of assets (wila) -
operating costs (NW| F11) - current cost depreciation (w3)] x 100 divided by

[written down current cost of system assets (wd7) + plant and equipment (w33b)]

Capital works grants (water)
Grants for the acquisition of assets (wi1a)

References 1o w (e.g. w12) refer 1o item numbers wihin Special Schedules 3 and 4 of
Council's Annual Financial Statements.

The NWI performance Indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework
Handbecek for Urban Performance Reporting Indicatoes and Definttions.

refer 1o 3.2 (2) on page 15 of the Best-Practice Management of Water Supply
and Sewerage Guidelines, 2007

$000

$'000

$'000

$000

$'000

70.56%

2,347
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SPFS 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 3. Sewerage business
best-practice management disclosure requirements

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2017

1. Calculation and payment of tax-equivalents
[all local government local water utilities must pay this dividend for tax equivalents)

(i) Calculated tax equivalents 9,000
(i)  Number of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment 18,117
(i) Amounts payable for tax equivalents flosser of (i) and (Ii})
(iv) Amounts actually paid for tax equivalents

2. Dividend from surplus

(i) 50% of surplus before dividends 42,
[calculated in accordance with Best-Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines)
{ii)  Number of assessments x ($30 less tax equivalent charges per assessment) 172,170
(iif)  Cumulative surplus before dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2017, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015 1,878,800
2017 Surplus 2016 Surplus 732,200 2015 Surplus 660,800
2016 Dividend - 2015 Dividend -
(iv) Maximum dividend from surplus fieast of (i), (ii} and {iii) above] 172,170

(v) Dividend actually paid from surplus refer below for required pre-dividend payment criteria]
(vi) Are the overhead reallocation charges to the sewer business fair and reasonable? "

3. Required outcomes for 4 criteria
[to be sligible for the paymant of a ‘dividend from surplus’, all the criteria below need a 'YES’)

(i) Completion of strategic business plan (including financial plan)

(li)  Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significant cross subsidies
[refer item 2 (a) In table 1 on page 22 of the Best-Practice Guidelines]

Complying charges (a) Residential fitem 2 (¢) in table 1]
(b) Non-residential fitem 2 (c) in table 1]
(c) Trade waste [item 2 (d) in table 1]
DSP with commercial developer charges [item 2 (o) In table 1]
Liquid trade waste approvals and policy [item 2 {f) in table 1)

(iii) Complete performance reporting form (by 15 September each year)
(iv) a. Integrated water cycle management evaluation

b. Complete and implement integrated water cycle management strategy

> § §
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SPFS 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 3. Sewerage business
best-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)
Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2017
National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators
NWIF2  Total revenue (sewerage) $000 4758

Total income {s14) - grants for acquisition of assets (s12a) - interest income (510)
~ Aboriginal Communities W&S Program income (w10a)

NWIF10  Written down replacement cost of fixed assels (sewerage) $'000
Written down current cost of system assets (s548)

NWIF12 Operating cost (sewerage) $000
Management expenses (s1) + operational and maintenance expenses (s2)

NWIF15 Capital expenditure (sewerage) $000 00
Acquisition of fixed assets (817}

NWIF18 Economic real rate of retum (sewerage) %
[total income (514) ~ interest income (810) ~ grants for acquisition of assets (s12a)
- operating cost (NWI F12) - current cost depreciation {$3)] x 100 divided by
[writton down current cost (i,e. WDCC) of system assets (s48) + plant and equipment (534b)]

NWIF27 Capital works grants (sewerage) $'000
Grants for the acquisition of assets (12a)

National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators
Water and sewer (combined)

NWIF3  Total income (water and sewerage) $'000
Total iIncome (w13 + s14) + galn/loss on disposal of assets (wid + 815)
minus grants for acquisition of assets (w11a + s12a) — interest income (w9 + s10)

NWIF8  Revenue from community service obligations (water and sewerage) %
Community service obligations (NWI F25) x 100 divided by total income (NWI F3)

NWIF16 Capital expenditure (water and sewerage) $'000 7,349
Acquisition of fixed assets (w16 + 517)

NWIF18 Economic real rate of retum (water and sewerage) % 0.99%
[total income (w13 + 514) ~ Interast income (w9 + 510) - grants for acquisition of assets
{wi1a + 512a) - operating cost (NWI F11 + NWI F12) - current cost deprociation (w3 + s3)] x 100
divided by [written down replacement cost of fixed assets (NWI F9 + NWI F10)
+ plant and aquipment (w33b + 534b)]

NWIF20 Dividend (water and sewerage) $'000
Dividend pald from surplus (2 (v) of Note 2 + 2 (v) of Note 3)

NWIF21 Dividend payout ratio (water and sewerage) % 0.00%
Dividend (NWI F20) x 100 divided by net profit after tax (NW1 F24)

iRy
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SPFS 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 3. Sewerage business
best-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2017

National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators
Water and sewer (combined)

NWIF22 Net debt to equity (water and sewerage) % -19.36%
Overdraft (w36 + 537) + borrowings (w38 + 539) - cash and investments (w30 + 531)
x 100 divided by [total assets (w35 + 536) - total llabilities (w40 + 541)]

NWIF23 Interest cover (water and sewerage)

Eamings before interest and tax (EBIT) divided by net interest

Eamings before Interest and tax (EBIT): m
Operating result (wi5a + s16a) + Interest expense (wda + sda) - Interest income (wd + s10)

~ gain/loss on disposal of assets (wid + 815) + miscellaneous expenses (wdb + wdc + s4b + sdc)

Net interest:
Interest expense (wda + ada) - interest income (w9 + s10)

NWIF24 Net profit after tax (water and sewerage) $'000 1,648
Surplus before dividends (w18a + 516a) - tax equivalents paid (Note 2.1 (iv) + Note 31 (iv))

NWIF25 Community service obligations (water and sewerage) $'000
Grants for pensioner rebates (w11b + 512b)

Notes: 1. Relerences 1o w (eg. $12) refer to llem numbers within Special Schedules 5 and 6 of
Council's Annual Financial Statements.

2. The NWI performance indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework Handbook
for Urban Performance Reporting Indicators and Definitions,

a referto 3.2 (2) on page 15 of the Best-Practice Management of Water Supply
and Sewerage Guidelines, 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the special purpose financial statement

Muswellbrook Shire Council

To the Councillors of Muswellbrook Shire Council
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statements (the financial statements) of
Muswellbrook Shire Council’s (the Council) Declared Business Activities, which comprise the
statement of financial position of each Declared Business Activity as at 30 June 2017, the income
statement of each Declared Business Activity for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of
significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information for the Business Activities declared
by Council, and the Statement by Councillors and Management.

The Declared Business Activities of the Council are:

. Water Supply Business
. Sewerage Business
. Commercial Buildings Business

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Council's declared Business Activities as at 30 June 2017, and their financial performance for the
year then ended, in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards described in Note 1 and the
Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting (LG Code).

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report and in particular, the Emphasis of
Matter referring to the basis of accounting.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of my report.

| am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Pariament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of New
South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament. and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

. mandating the Auditor-General as the auditor of councils
. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

Level 15, 1 Margaret Street, Sydney NSW 2000 | GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | 10292757101 | 102 8275 7979 | & mel@audinsw govau | sudibnsw.gow.su
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| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, | draw attention to Note (1) to the financial statements which describes
the basis of accounting. The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling
Council’s financial reporting responsibilities under the LG Code. As a result, the financial statements
may not be suitable for another purpose.

The Councillors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
and for determining that the accounting policies, described in Note 1 to the financial statements, are
appropriate to meet the requirements in the LG Code. The Councillors’ responsibility also includes
such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors must assess the Council's ability to continue as a
going concern except where the Council will be dissolved or amalgamated by an Act of Parliament.
The assessment must disclose, as applicable, matters related to going concern and the
appropriateness of using the going concem basis of accounting, as it affects the Council’s Declared
Business Activities.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the financial statements.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at:
http.//www.auash.gov.au/auditors _responsibilities/ard . pdf

The description forms part of my auditor's report.
My opinion does not provide assurance:

that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically
. on the best practice management disclosures in Notes 2 and 3 of the financial statements

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.
T S I

David Nolan
Director, Financial Audit Services

30 Octaber 2017
SYDNEY
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Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Schedules

for year ended 30 June 2017

w’., muswellbrook
* shire councll
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Schedules
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Contents
Special Schedules'
Special Schedule 1

Special Schedule 2(a)
Special Schedule 2(b)

Special Schedule 3
Special Schedule 4

Special Schedule 5
Special Schedule 6

Notes to Special Schedules 3 and 5
Special Schedule 7

Special Schedule 8

Special Schedules 2017
Page

Net Cost of Services 2
Statement of Long Term Deblt (all purposes) B
Statement of Internal Loans (Sect. 41043) LGA 1993) 5
Water Supply Operations — incl. Income Statement 6
Water Supply - Statement of Financial Position 9
Sewerage Service Operations — incl. Income Statement 10
Sewerage Service - Statement of Financial Position 13

14
Report on Infrastructure Assets 15
Permissible Income Calculation 20

! Special Schedules are not audited (with the exception of Special Schedule 8).

Background

() These Speclal Schedules have been designed 1o meet the requirements of special purpose users such as,

the NSW Grants Commission

the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS),
the NSW Office of Water (NOW), and
the Office of Local Government (OLG).

{iiy The financial data is collected for vanous uses Iincluding:

the allocation of Financial Assistance Grants,

the Incorporation of Local Government financial figures in national statistics,
the monitoring of loan approvals,

the allocation of borrowing rights, and

the monitoring of the financial activities of specific services,
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Schedule 1 — Net Cost of Services
for the year ended 30 June 2017
$'000
Ex”nm from Income from N

Function or activity continuing continuing operations ot cost

of services

operations Non-capital Capital
Governance 535 - - (535)
Administration 4,800 949 - (3,851)
Public order and safety
Fire service levy, fire protection, emergency
services 801 216 60 (525)
Beach control - - = =
Enforcoment of local government regulations - - - -
Animal control 265 91 - (174)
Other - - - -
Total public order and safety 1,066 307 60 (699)
Health 271 - - (271)
Environment
Noxous plants and insect/vermin control - — - =
Other environmental protection 682 729 - 47
Solid waste management 6,374 10,004 - 3,630
Street cleaning 210 - - (210)
Drainage - - - -
Starmwater management 709 71 - (638)
Total environment 7975 10,804 - 2,829
Community services and education
Administration and education 469 189 - (280)
Social protection (welfare) - - - -
Aged persons and disabled - - = -
Children's services - - B -
Total community services and education 469 189 - (280)
Housing and community amenities
Public cemetenes 100 75 - (25)
Public conveniences 52 - - (52)
Street lighting 398 57 - (341)
Town planning 878 9 - (869)
Other community amenities - - - -
Total housing and community amenities 1,428 141 - (1,287)
Water supplies 4,606 6,291 94 1,779
Sewerage services 3,229 4779 - 1.550
page 2
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Schedule 1 — Net Cost of Services (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2017
$'000
Ex”nm m 'ﬂcom. 'loﬂl N

Function or activity continuing continuing operations ot cost

of services

operations Non-capital Capital

Recreation and culture
Public libraries 893 169 - (724)
Museums - - - -
At galieries 349 35 - (314)
Commundty centres and halls 95 26 - (69)
Performing arts venues - - - -
Other performing ans - - - -
Other cultural senvices - - - -
Sporting grounds and venues 61 89 - 28
Swimming pools 1,295 656 - (639)
Parks and gardens (lakes) - - = i
Other sport and recreation 2,621 - - (2,621)
Total recreation and culture 5,314 975 - (4,339)
Fuel and energy - - - —
Agriculture - - - -
Mining, manufacturing and construction
Buitding control - = s i
Other mining, manufacturing and construction - - - -
Total mining, manufacturing and const. = = -~ =
Transport and communication
Urban roads (UR) — local 189 186 - (3)
Urban roads — ragional 3,382 487 - (2,895)
Sealed rural roads (SRR) — local 3,244 2,085 1,899 740
Sealed rural roads (SRR) - regional 804 1,079 - 275

Unsealed rural reads (URR) — local - - = i
Unsealed nural roads (URR) - regional - - - -
Bridges on UR - local - = E= =
Bridges on SRR - local 681 N - (681)
Bridges on URR ~ local - - - .
Bndges on regional roads - - = o
(109)

Parking areas 109 - -
Footpaths 89 - 50 (39)
Aerodromes - 23 = e
Other transport and communication 1,201 125 - (1,076)
Total transport and communication 9,699 3,962 1,949 (3,788)
Economic affairs
Camping areas and caravan parks - - - -
Other economic affairs 2,156 2,961 90 895
Total economic affairs 2,156 2,961 90 895
Totals; - functipns 41,548 31,358 2,193 (7,997)
General purpose revenues | 18,031 18,031
Share of interests - joint ventures and
associates using the equity method - 14 14
NET OPERATING RESULT ¥/ 41,548 49,403 2,193 10,048
(1) Includes. ratas and aonual charpes (Inchding ex grasa, excludng watsr and sawar), nan-copial ganeral purpose 12} As reported in e Incorms Stalemen|

grants, o0 18 (exchuding ealemally resiricled gssets) snd svdersst on overdue ryles and anmunl charges
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Special Schedulés 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Schedule 2(a) — Statement of Long Term Debt (all purpose)
for the year ended 30 June 2017

$'000
Principal outstanding New Debt redemption Principal outstanding
at beginning of the year loans during the year | Transfers | Interest at the end of the year
raised to sinking |applicable
Cument | NOW Total during From | Sinking | funds | foryear | cyrene  NO™ Total
Classification of debt current the year | revenue  funds current
Loans (by source)
Commonwealth Government - - - - -
Treasury corporation 92 532 624 - 156 - - - 156 312 468
Other State Government - - - -
Public subscription - - - -
Financial institutions 695 25,917 26,612 - 1,563 - - 1,029 650 24,399 25,049
Other 200 | 49 249 - - - - - - 249 249
Total loans 987 26,498 27,485 - 1,719 - - 1,029 806 24,960 25,766
Other long term debt
Ratepayers advances - - - - -
Govemnment advances - - - - -
Finance leases - - - - ~
Deferred payments - | —| - | -
Total long term debt - - - - - - - - - - -
Total debt 987 26,498 27,485 - 1,719 - - 1,029 806 24,960 25,766

Notes: excludes (i) internal loans and (i) principal inflows/outfiows relating to koan re-financing.
This schedule is prepared using the face value of debt obligations, rather than fair value (which are reported in the GPFS).
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Special Schedules 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Schedule 2(b) — Statement of Internal Loans [Section 410(3) of the Local Government Act 1993]
for the year ended 30 June 2017

$'000

Summary of internal loans

=53 : Total repaid during the year Principal outstanding
Borrower (by purpose) Amount originally raised (principal and interest) at end of year
General 1,750 136 1,495
Water
Sewer
Domestic waste management
Gas
Other
Totals 1,750 136 1,495

Note: the summary of internal loans (above) represents the total of Council’s internal loans categonsed according to the borrower.

Details of individual internal loans

Date of Amount Total repaid Principal

Borrower Lender minister's Date raised Term Dates of Rate of originally during year outstanding

(by purpose) (by purpose) approval (years)  maturity interest raised (princ. and int.) at end of year

General fund Water fund 10/08/10 11/08/10 25 10/08/35 6.00% 1,750 136 1,495

Totals 1,750 136 1,495
page 5
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Schedule 3 — Water Supply Income Statement
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Actuals Actuals
$'000 2017 2016
A Expenses and income
Expenses
1. Management expenses
a. Administration 1,068 775
b. Engineering and supervision 439 498
2. Operation and maintenance expenses
-~ dams and weirs
a. Operation expenses - -
b. Maintenance expenses - -
- Mains
c. Operation expenses 18 1"
d. Maintenance expenses 3N 233
- Reservoirs
e. Operation expenses 7 6
f. Maintenance expenses 22 20
—~ Pumping stations
g. Operation expenses (excluding energy costs) 3 6
h. Energy costs 184 199
I. Maintenance expenses 183 143
~ Treatment
}. Operation expenses (excluding chemical costs) 45 48
k. Chemical costs 248 313
I. Maintenance expenses 855 789
- Other
m. Operation expenses 136 121
n. Maintenance expenses 203 264
0. Purchase of water 188 150
3. Depreciation expenses
a. System assets 1,438 1,437
b. Plant and equipment 44 44
4. Miscellaneous expenses
a. Interest expenses 155 171
b. Revaluation decrements i -
¢. Other expenses 24 64
d. Impairment - system assets - -
a. Impairment — plant and equipment - -
f. Abariginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program - -
g. Tax equivalents dividends (actually paid) - -
5. Total expenses 5,571 5,292
page 6
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Schedule 3 — Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Actuals Actuals

$'000 2017 2016

Income
6. Residential charges

a. Access (including rates) 1,005 1,008

b. Usage charges 2,409 2,299
7. Non-residential charges

a. Access (including rates) 383 372

b. Usage charges 1,059 1,122
8. Extra charges 36 30
9. Interest income 626 946
10. Other income 133 240
10a. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program - -
11. Grants

a. Grants for acquisition of assets 94 -

b. Grants for pensioner rebates 35 34

c. Other granis 5 -
12, Contributions

a. Developer charges 328 -

b. Developer provided assets - 89

c. Other contributions - 2
13. Total income 6,113 6,142
14. Gain (or loss) on disposal of assets - 9
15, Operating result : 542 859
15a. Operating result (less grants for acquisition of assets) 448 859
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Schedule 3 — Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Actuals Actuals
$'000 2017 2016
B Capital transactions
Non-operating expenditures
16. Acquisition of fixed assets
a. New assets for improved standards - -
b. New assets for growth 900 424
c. Renewals 1,308 1,260
d. Piant and equipment 139 -
17. Repayment of debt 257 241
18, Totals 2,604 1,925
Non-operating funds employed
19. Proceeds from disposal of assets - -
20. Borrowing utilised - -
21. Totals - -
C Rates and charges
22. Number of assessments
a, Residential (occupied) 5,329 5,330
b. Residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot) 281 282
c. Non-residential (occupied) 469 471
d. Non-residential (unoccupied, je. vacant lot) 106 102
23. Number of ETs for which developer charges were received - ET - ET
24. Total amount of pensioner rebates (actual dollars) 62781 § 62,627
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Schedule 4 — Water Supply Statement of Financial Position

Includes intemal tfransactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis

as at 30 June 2017
Actuals Actuals Actuals
$'000 Current Non-current Total
ASSETS
25. Cash and investments
a. Developer charges 1,557 5,167 6,724
b. Special purpose grants - - -
c. Accrued leave 414 - 414
d. Unexpended loans - - -
e, Sinking fund - - -
f. Other 2,688 8.920 11,608
26. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants - - -
b. Rates and availability charges 153 - 153
c. User charges 678 - 678
d. Other 48 1.451 1,499
27. Inventories - - -
28. Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets - 51,795 51,795
b. Plant and equipment - 241 241
29, Other assets - - -
30. Total assets 5,538 67,574 73,112
LIABILITIES
31. Bank overdraft - - -
32. Creditors 799 - 799
33. Borrowings 257 1,956 2,213
34. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents - - -
b. Dividend - - -
c. Other 414 - 414
35. Total liabilities 1,470 1,956 3,426
36. NET ASSETS COMMITTED 4,068 65618 69,686
EQUITY
37. Accumulated surplus 38,028
38. Asset revaluation reserve 31,658
39. Other reserves
40. TOTAL EQUITY . 69,686
Note to system assets:
41. Current replacement cost of system assets 95.264
42. Accumulated current cost depreciation of system assets (43.469)
43. Wrilten down current cost of system assets 51,795
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Schedule 5 — Sewerage Service Income Statement
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Actuals Actuals
$'000 2017 2016
A Expenses and income
Expenses
1. Management expenses
a. Administration 619 513
b. Engineering and supervision 504 502
2. Operation and maintenance expenses
~ mains
a. Operation expenses ~ =
b. Maintenance expenses 286 296
- Pumping stations
c. Operation expenses (excluding energy costs) 41 59
d. Energy costs 110 101
e. Maintenance expenses 159 239
- Treatment
f. Operation eXpenses {exd chemical, energy, efluent and biosahds management costs) 106 117
g. Chemical costs 45 21
h. Energy costs - -
i. Effluent management - -
}. Biosolids management - -
k. Maintenance expenses 474 384
- Other
I. Operation expenses 62 60
m. Maintenance expenses 105 44
3. Depreciation expenses
a. System assets 1,198 1,196
b. Plant and equipment 6 14
4. Miscellaneous expenses
a. Interest expenses 54 59
b. Revaluation decrements - -
c. Other expenses 48 22
d. Impairment — system assets = =
e. Impairment — plant and equipment - -
f. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program - -
g. Tax equivalents dividends (actually paid) - -
5. Total expenses 3,817 3,627
page 10

Attachment A

Page 216



Item 12.5 - Attachment A 2016-17 Financial Statements

Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Schedule 5 — Sewerage Service Income Statement (continued)
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis

for the year ended 30 June 2017
Actuals Actuals
$'000 2017 2016
Income
6. Residential charges (including rates) 3,292 3,194
7. Non-residential charges
a, Access (including rates) 137 155
b. Usage charges 407 389

8. Trade waste charges
a. Annual fees =

b. Usage charges 46 34

c. Excess mass charges = -

d. Re-inspection fees - -
9. Extra charges 3 23
10. Interest income 259 534
11. Other income 313 3N
11a. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program - -
12. Grants

a. Grants for acquisition of assets - 960

b. Grants for pensioner rebates 35 34

c¢. Other grants e =
13. Contributions

a. Developer charges 497 128

b. Developer provided assets - -

¢. Other contributions - 2
14, Total income 5,017 5,764
15. Gain (or loss) on disposal of assets - -
16. Operating result 1,200 2,137
16a. Operating result (less grants for acquisition of assets) 1,200 1,177
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Schedules 2017

Special Schedule 5 — Sewerage Service Income Statement (continued)
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis

for the year ended 30 June 2017
Actuals Actuals
$'000 2017 2016
B Capital transactions
Non-operating expenditures
17. Acquisition of fixed assets
a. New assets for improved standards - -
b. New assets for growth 4,448 1,982
c. Renewals 466 1,420
d. Piant and equipment 88 13
18. Repayment of debt 63 59
19. Totals 5,065 3,474
Non-operating funds employed
20. Proceeds from disposal of assets - -
21. Borrowing utilised = >
22. Totals - -
C Rates and charges
23. Number of assessments
a. Residential (occupied) 5,406 5,400
b. Residential {unoccupied, ie. vacant lot) 236 238
c. Non-residential (occupied) 348 344
d. Non-residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot) 49 50
24, Number of ETs for which developer charges were received - ET - ET
25. Total amount of pensioner rebates (actual dollars) 62563 § 62,431
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Special Schedules 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Schedule 6 — Sewerage Service Statement of Financial Position
Includes intemal tfransactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis

as at 30 June 2017
Actuals Actuals Actuals
$'000 Current Non-current Total
ASSETS
26. Cash and investments
a. Developer charges 1,868 6,198 8,066
b. Special purpose granis - - -
c. Accrued leave 270 - 270
d. Unexpended loans - - -
e. Sinking fund - - -
f. Other 290 963 1,253
27. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants - - -
b. Rates and availability charges 544 - 544
¢. User charges - - -
d. Other 79 - 79
28. Inventories - - -
29, Property, plant and equipment
a. System assels - 52,854 52,854
b. Plant and equipment - 121 121
30. Other assets - - -
31. Total assets 3,051 60,136 63,187
LIABILITIES
32, Bank overdraft - - -
33. Creditors 952 - 952
34. Borrowings 62 727 789
35. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents - - -
b. Dividend - - -
c. Other 270 - 270
36. Total liabilities 1,284 727 2,011
37. NET ASSETS COMMITTED 1,767 59,409 61,176
EQUITY
38. Accumulated surplus 45770
39. Asset revaluation reserve 15,406
40. Other reserves -
41. TOTAL EQUITY 61,176
Note to system assets:
42. Current replacement cost of system assets 92,131
43. Accumulated current cost depreciation of system assets (39.277)
44, \Written down current cost of system assets 52,854
page 13
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Notes to Special Schedules 3 and 5
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Administration ' Engineering and supervision "
(item 1a of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the following: {item 1b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the following:
« Administration staff: « Engineering staff.
- Salaries and allowance - Salaries and allowance
- Travelling expenses - Travelling expenses
- Accrual of leave entitlements - Accrual of leave entittements
- Employment overheads. - Employment overheads.
*  Meter reading « Ofther technical and supervision staff:
- Salaries and allowance
+ Bad and doubtful debts - Travelling expenses
- Accrual of leave entitlements
» Other administrative/corporate support services -~ Employment overheads.

Operational expenses (item 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day operational expenses
excluding maintenance expenses.

Maintenance expenses (item 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day repair and maintenance
expenses. (Refer to Section 5 of the Local Government Asset Accounting Manual regarding capitalisation
principles and the distinction between capital and maintenance expenditure).

Other expenses (item 4c of Special Schedules 3 and 5) includes all expenses net recorded elsewhere.
Revaluation decrements (item 4b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) is to be used when |,PP&E decreases in FV.

Impairment losses (item 4d and 4e of Special Schedules 3 and 5) are to be used when the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (refer to page D-31).

Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program (item 4f of Special Schedules 3 and 5) is to be
used when operation and maintenance work has been undertaken on behalf of the Aboriginal Communities
Water and Sewerage Program. Similarly, income for item 11a of Special Schedule 3 and item 12a of Special
Schedule 5 are for services provided to the Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program and is not
part of Council's water supply and sewerage revenue.

Residential charges'' (items 6a, 6b and item 6 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include all income
from residential charges. Item 6 of Schedule 3 should be separated into 6a access charges (including rates if
applicable) and 6b usage charges.

Non-residential charges'’ (items 7a, 7b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) include all income from non-residential
charges separated into 7a access charges (including rates if applicable) and 7b usage charges.

Trade waste charges (item 8 of Special Schedule 5) include all income from trade waste charges separated
into 8a annual fees, 8b usage charges and 8c excess mass charges and 8d re-inspection fees.

Other income (items 10 and 11 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include all income not recorded
eisewhere.

Other contributions (items 12c¢ and 13¢ of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) including capital contributions
for water supply or sewerage services received by Council under Section 565 of the Local Government Act .

Notes:

" Administration and engineering costs for the development of capital works projects should be reported as part of the
capital cost of the project and not as part of the recurrent expenditure (ie. In ltem 16 for water supply and item 17 for
sewerage, and not in items 1a and 1b).

I To enable accurate reporting of residential revenue from usage charges, it is essential for councils to accurately
separate their residential (item 6) charges and non-residential (item 7) charges.
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Special Scheduleés 2017

Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June 2017

$'000
Estimated cost' Estimated cost
to bring assets  to bring to the 2016017 201617 Gross Avnis i conﬂ(;ol N :le::::\ugc of gross
to satisfactory  agreed level of Required Actual Net carrying replacement
Assot class Asset category standard  service set by maintenance” maintenance amount cost {GRC) 1 2 3 “ 5
Council
Buildings Administration 400 400 135 135 4,997 5689 | 21% 75% 1% 0% 3%
Public Order and Safety 75 75 33 33 3,321 3,652 | 43% @ 49% 8% 0% 0%
Community
Services/Education - - 117 | 117 22,202 23384 | 3%  27% @ 0% @ 0% 0%
Housing & Community 50 50 12 12 2,712 3261 | 0% @ 93% | 7% 0% 0%
Recreation & Culture - | - | 100 | 100 22,874 26440 | 67% | 32% | 1% | 0% = 0%
Economic Affairs - - 4 4 571 701 19% | 81% @ 0% 0% 0%
Transport and
Communication - - | - | - 114 122 | 68% | 32% @ 0% 0% 0%
Sub-total 525 525 401 401 56,791 63,249 | 59.7% 38.7%  1.3% 0.0% 0.3%
Roads Rural 1,930 1417 1,196 1,041 137,050 193941 | 04% 3% | 2% | 1% 0%
Urban 4,745 2114 281 545 100,308 135530 | 7% 7% 10% 6% 0%
Regional 62 - 219 201 21,988 27208 | 71% 24% 5% 0% 0%
Unsealed 737 737 | 354 277 6,551 6,551 | 25% | 30%  35%  10% 0%
Bridges 882 782 79 79 42,823 59,966 | 29% @ 56% 15% 0% 0%
Footpaths 618 197 84 99 11,334 15,051 | 32% 28% | 37% | 3% 1%
Carparks 11 - 114 119 4,937 6,731 | 85% | 13% | 2% 0% 0%
Sub-total 8,985 5,247 2,327 2,361 324,992 444978 | 754% 14.0% B8.0% 25%  0.0%
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June 2017 (continued)

Special Schedules 2017

$'000
Estimated cost Estimated cost
to bring assets  to bring to the 2016117 201617 Gross Asante i conﬂ:mm::luge of groes
to satisfactory  agreed level of Required Actual Net carrying replacement
Assot class Asset category standard  service set by maintenance” maintenance amount cost {(GRC) 1 2 3 4 5
Council
Water supply |Mains 3,955 3,955 334 305 25,794 44608 | 1% 61% = 30% 3% 6%
network Reservoirs 1.910 1,910 19 1 5,403 14345 | 0% 26% 24% 1% 39%
Pumping Stations 2,115 2,115 | 393 | 198 1,955 4396 | 0% 17% | 36% | 43% 5%
Treatment Infrastructure 3.993 3,993 1,266 736 16,441 30,887 | 0% 4% 85% | 1% 0%
Other 24 24 - | - 223 447 0% 0% | 100% 0% 0%
Sub-total 11,997 11,997 2,012 1,250 49 816 94,683 | 0.4% 346% 47.5% 83% 9.2%
Sewerage Mains 3.326 3,326 322 228 35,318 55288 | 29% @ 36% 26% | 6% 4%
network Pumping Stations 1,709 | 1,709 | 267 153 | 4,714 10465 | 0% 16%  30% @ 49% 6%
Treatment Infrastructure 495 495 675 436 4102 19,145 | 1% 14% | 20% 4% 62%
Effluent Re-Use 297 297 168 87 2,301 5,537 0% 16% 66% 19% 0%
Other 24 24 | - | - 223 447 0% | 0% | 100% @ 0% 0%
Sub-total 5,851 5,851 1,432 904 46,658 90,882 | 17.7%  27.5%  276%  11.2% 16.1%
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Muswellbrook Shire Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June 2017 (continued)

Special Schedules 2017

$'000
Estimated cost Estimated cost
to bring assets  to bring to the 2016117 201617 Gross Asante i cmz:mmxnge of groes
to satisfactory  agreed level of Required Actual Net carrying replacement
Assot class Asset category standard  service set by maintenance” maintenance amount cost {(GRC) 1 2 3 4 5
Council
Stormwater [Urban Drainage 2,057 526 137 151 37,804 58322 | 27% 20% 52% 1% 0%
drainage Sub-total 2,057 526 137 151 37,804 58,322 | 27.0% 20.0%  52.0% @ 1.0%  0.0%
Open spacel [Swimming pools 2324 2,324 92 107 3,291 - 62% | 1% | 0% | 7%  20%
recreational |Playgrounds/Sporting Field 323 323 | 854 854 3.269 8,104 | 37% | 35% | 23% 1% 4%
assets Sub-total 2,647 2,647 946 961 6,560 8,104 | 37.0% 35.0% 23.0% 1.0% 4.0%
TOTAL - ALL ASSETS 32,062 26,793 7,255 6,028 522,621 760,218 | 53.7% 20.9%  18.3%  3.9% 3.2%
Notes:
a Required maintenance is the amount identified in Council’s asset management plans
Infrastructure asset condition assessment 'key’
n Excellent No work required (normal maintenance)
B Good Only minor maintenance work required
3| Average Maintenance work required
n Poor Renewal required
B Very poor Urgent renewal/upgrading required
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Amounts Indicator Prior periods
$ '000 2017 2017 oo 2016 2015
Infrastructure asset performance indicators *
consolidated
1. Infrastructure renewals ratio
Asset ranewals "’ 8,138 e X
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 8,704 93.50% 0% 1I0AEN 1RO
2. Infrastructure backlog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard 32,062
Net carrying amount of infrastruclure assets 526,371 6.09% 1% 2.58%
3. Asset maintenance ratio
Actual assel maintenance 6,028
Required asset maintenance 7,255 0.83 R e
4. Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
Estimated cost to bring assets to
an agreed service level set by Councll 26,793 3.52% 0.00% 0.00%
Gross replacement cost 760,218
Notes

* Al assel performance indicators are calculated using the asset classes identified in the previous table.

™ Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent
capacity/performance as opposed to the acguisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that

Increases capacity/performance.
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Water Sewer  General "
$ '000 Botchmark 2017 2017 2017

Infrastructure asset performance indicators
by fund

1. Infrastructure renewals ratio

£

Asset renewals 0 o,
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 100 8575% 31.09% “107.00%

priof pericd;  B7.55% 114,63% 123.57%

2. Infrastructure backlog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard a
Net carrying amount of infrastruclure assets <2 2408% 12.56% 3.31%

prior penod: 10.31% 70.68% 2.07%

3. Asset maintenance ratio
Actugl assel malnte.nance . 0.62 0.63 1.02
Required asset maintenance 0o

prior penod 0.86 063 0.83

4. Cost to bring assets to agreed service level

Estimated cost to bring assets to
an agreed service level set by Councll 12.67% 6.44% 1.56%
Gross replacement cost

Notes
M General fund refers to all of Council's activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately,

@ psset renewals represent the replacement andlor refurbishment of exsting assets o an equivalent

capacity/performance as opposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that
Increases capacity/performance.
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Special Schedules 2017
Muswellbrook Shire Council
Special Schedule 8 — Permissible Income Calculation
for the year ended 30 June 2018
Calculation Calculation
$'000 2016117 2017/18
Notional general income calculation '
Last year notional general income yield ) 11,814 12,154
Plus or minus adjustments b 124 415
Notional general income =iz + ) 11,938 12,569
Permissible income calculation
Special vaniation percentage ¥/ , 0.00% 0.00%
or rate peg percentage . 1.80% 1.50%
or crown land adjustment (incl. rate peg percentage) f 0.00% 0.00%
Less expiring special variation amount - -
Plus special variation amount I x{c~g - -
Or plus rate peg amount =GR 215 189
Or plus Crown land adjustment and rate peg amount | =6 - -
Sub-total K=(esg=h+l+)) 12,153 12,758
Plus (or minus) last year's carry forward total 7 1
Less valuation objections claimed in the previous year 1 - -
Sub-total il + m 7 1
Total permissible income = hovn 12,160 12,758
Less notional general income yield o 12,154 12,755
Catch-up or (excess) result . i 6 3
Plus income lost due 1o valuation objections claimed *! : = =
Less unused catch-up ' (5) -
Carry forward to next year Qer-1 1 3

(1) The notional general Income will not reconcile with rate income in the financial statements in the corresponding
year. The statements are reported on an accrual accounting basis which include amounts that relate to prior years'
rates income,

(2) Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring
during the year. The adjustments are called ‘supplementary valuations’ as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1916

(3) The 'special variation percentage’ is inclusive of the rate peg percentage and where applicable Crown land adjustment.

(4) Valuation objections are unexpected changes in land values as a result of land owners successfully objecting to the
land value issued by the Valuer-General. Councils can claim the value of the income lost due to valuation objections in
any single year.

(5) Unused catch-up amounts will be deducted If they are not caught up within 2 years. Usually councils will have a
nominal carry forward figure. These amounts can be adjusted for in setting the rates In a future year.

(6) Carry forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require ministerial
approval by order published in the NSW Govemment Gazette In accordance with section 512 of the Local
Govemment Act 1993 . The OLG will extract these amounts from Council's Special Schedule 8 In the financial data
return (FDR) to administer this process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Special Schedule No. 8

Muswellbrook Shire Council

To the Councillors of Muswellbrook Shire Council

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statement comprising the reconciliation of
total permissible general income (Special Schedule No. 8) of Muswellbrook Shire Council (the Council)
for the year ending 30 June 2018.

In my opinion, Special Schedule No. 8 of Muswellbrook Shire Council for 2017-18 is prepared, in all
material respects in accordance with the requirements of the Lacal Government Code of Accounting
Practice and Financial Reporting (LG Code) issued by the Office of Local Government (OLG), and is in
accordance with the books and records of the Council,

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report, and in particular the Emphasis of
Matter paragraph, which describes the basis of accounting.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Special Schedule No.8’
section of my report.

| am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110
'‘Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110,

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of New
South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament. and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General
. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Lewel 15, 1 Margaret Street, Sydney NSW 2000 | GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | 10292757101 | 102 0275 7179 | e mal@audt new govay | suditnew.gov.au
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Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, | draw attention to the notes and explanations in Special Schedule
No. 8 that instruct councils in its preparation so it complies with OLG's requirements as described in
the LG Code. As a result, Special Schedule No. 8 may not be suitable for another purpose,

Councillors’ Responsibility for Special Schedule No. 8

The Councillors of the Council are responsible for the preparation of Special Schedule No. 8 in
accordance with the LG Code. The Councillors' responsibility also includes such internal control as the
Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Special Schedule No. 8 that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing Special Schedule No.8, the Councillors must assess the Council’s ability to continue as a
going concern except where the Council will be dissolved or amalgamated by an Act of Parliament.
The assessment must disclose, as applicable, matters related to going concern and the
appropriateness of using the going concem basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Special Schedule No. 8
My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance whether Special Schedule No, 8 as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on Special Schedule No.8.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of Special Schedule No.8 is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at http //www auash gov.au/auditors responsibllities/ar pdf,
The description forms part of my auditor's report,

My opinion does not provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited Special Schedule
No.8 on any website where they may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from Special Schedule No 8.

D W v S

David Nolan
Director, Financial Audit Services

30 October 2017
SYDNEY
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ORDINARY COUNCIL SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA 14 NOVEMBER 2017

18 ADJOURNMENT INTO CLOSED COUNCIL

In accordance with the Local Government Act 1993, and the Local Government (General)
Regulation 2005, in the opinion of the General manager, the following business is of a kind as
referred to in Section 10A(2) of the Act, and should be dealt with in a Confidential Session of the
Council meeting closed to the press and public.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council adjourn into Closed Session and members of the press and public be
excluded from the meeting of the Closed Session, and access to the correspondence and
reports relating to the items considered during the course of the Closed Session be
withheld unless declassified by separate resolution. This action is taken in accordance
with Section 10A(2) of the Local Government Act, 1993 as the items listed come within the
following provisions:

19.4 PROVISION AND MANAGEMENT OF COMPANION ANIMAL IMPOUNDING
FACILITY (ANIMAL SHELTER)
Iltem 19.4 is classified CONFIDENTIAL under the provisions of Section10A(2)(c) of the local
government act 1993, as it deals with information that would, if disclosed, confer a commercial
advantage on a person with whom the council is conducting (or proposes to conduct) business,
and Council considers that discussion of the matter in an open meeting would be, on balance,
contrary to the public interest.

19.5 REVIEW AND SELECT A LOAN FUNDING OPTION FOR THE SEWER
Iltem 19.5 is classified CONFIDENTIAL under the provisions of Section10A(2)(c) of the local
government act 1993, as it deals with information that would, if disclosed, confer a commercial
advantage on a person with whom the council is conducting (or proposes to conduct) business,
and Council considers that discussion of the matter in an open meeting would be, on balance,
contrary to the public interest.

Moved: Seconded:
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